ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area

ABAG
AGENDA

ABAG EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING NO. 425
Thursday, May 18, 2017, 7:00 PM
Location:

Bay Area Metro Center
Board Room

375 Beale Street

San Francisco, California

The ABAG Executive Board may act on any item on this agenda.
Agenda and attachments available at http://abag.ca.gov/meetings/
For information, contact Fred Castro, Clerk of the Board, at (415) 820 7913.

CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
2. PUBLIC COMMENT
INFORMATION
3. ANNOUNCEMENTS
INFORMATION
4. PRESIDENT’S REPORT
INFORMATION
5. ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
INFORMATION
6. CONSENT CALENDAR
ACTION

Unless there is a request by an Executive Board member to take up an item on the Consent
Calendar separately, the Consent Calendar will be acted upon in one motion.

A. Approval of Executive Board Summary Minutes of Meeting No. 424 held on
April 20, 2017

Attachment: Summary Minutes of April 20, 2017

Agenda


http://abag.ca.gov/meetings/

ABAG Executive Board
May 18, 2017
Page 2

B. Adoption of Resolution No. 02-17 Authorizing Conveyance of Real Property
Interest to City of South Lake Tahoe in Connection with Retirement of Lease
Revenue Bonds

Attachments: Memo Conveyance Real Property Interests South Lake Tahoe; Resolution
No. 02-17

C. Adoption of Debt Issuance Policy
Attachment: Adoption Debt Issuance Policy

D. Adoption of Resolution 01-17 Authorizing Execution of Documents in Connection
with Refunding of ABAG FAN Revenue Bonds for Windemere and Use of Funds to
Discharge a Reassessment

Attachments: Memo Supplement Fiscal Agent Agreement; Resolution No. 01-17;
Supplemental Agreement No. 2 Fiscal Agent Agreement

E. Approval of Contract with The Civic Edge
Attachments: Memo The Civic Edge; Contract The Civic Edge
7. ABAG LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION COMMITTEE REPORT
ACTION

Committee Chair Scott Haggerty, Supervisor, County of Alameda, will report on Committee
activities and request ABAG Executive Board approval of Committee recommendations.

Attachment: LGO Committee Agenda

Agenda and attachments available at http://abag.ca.gov/meetings/
8. ABAG FINANCE AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE REPORT

ACTION

Committee Chair Karen Mitchoff, Supervisor, County of Contra Costa, will report on
Committee activities and request ABAG Executive Board approval of Committee
recommendations.

Attachments: FP Committee Agenda
Agenda and attachments available at http://abag.ca.gov/meetings/

9. UPDATE ON PROPOSAL TO CREATE A NEW CONDUIT FINANCING JOINT POWERS
AUTHORITY—PROPOSED TIMETABLE

INFORMATION

Staff will present a status report on the proposal to create a new conduit financing Joint
Powers Authority, including proposed timetable.

Attachment: Memo Proposed Timetable

Agenda


http://abag.ca.gov/meetings/
http://abag.ca.gov/meetings/

ABAG Executive Board
May 18, 2017

Page 3

10. REPORT ON PLAN BAY AREA 2040
A. Report on Public Hearing on the Draft Plan Bay Area 2040

INFORMATION

Staff will report on public hearings to receive oral comments on the Draft Plan Bay Area
2040. Two additional public hearings are scheduled for Tuesday, May 16, 2017 from 6
p.m. to 8 p.m. in San Jose and Thursday, May 18, 2017 from 6 p.m. to 8 p.m. in Vallejo
(see PlanBayArea.org for complete details, including meeting locations).

Attachment: Public Hearing Draft PBA 2040

. Report on Public Hearing on the Draft Environmental Impact Report for Plan Bay

Area 2040
INFORMATION

Staff will report on public hearings to receive oral comments on the Draft Environmental
Impact Report. Two additional public hearings are scheduled for Tuesday, May 16, 2017
from 6 p.m. to 8 p.m. in San Jose and Thursday, May 18, 2017 from 6 p.m. to 8 p.m. in
Vallejo (see PlanBayArea.org for complete details, including meeting locations).

Attachment: Public Hearing Draft EIR PBA 2040

11. REPORT ON PROPOSED BUDGET AND WORK PROGRAM FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-
2018—PROPOSED REVISIONS AND AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR JUNE 2016

ACTION

Attachments: Memo Financial Considerations; Proposed Budget and Work Program for
Fiscal Year 2017-2018, including Planning and Communications Work Plans; Memo Audited
Financial Reports; Basic Financial Statement; Memorandum Internal Control Required
Communications; Single Audit Report; Memo Financial Reports March 2017; Indices
Financial Reports March 2017; Consultant Expenses by Program; FTEs by Program; Memo
Regional Planning Committee

REPORT ON ABAG/MTC OPTION 7 IMPLEMENTATION ACTION PLAN

12.

A.

REPORT ON CONTRACT FOR SERVICES
INFORMATION

. REPORT ON MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

ACTION

Attachment: Staff Memo Update on Budget and Work Plan and Staff Consolidation

Agenda



ABAG Executive Board
May 18, 2017
Page 4

13. ADJOURNMENT
The next meeting of the ABAG Executive Board will be on July 20, 2017.

Submitted:

/s/ Brad Paul, Acting Secretary-Treasurer

Date Submitted: May 10, 2017
Date Posted: May 12, 2017

Agenda



SUMMARY MINUTES (DRAFT)

ABAG Executive Board Meeting No. 424
Thursday, April 20, 2017

Bay Area Metro Center

375 Beale Street, Board Room

San Francisco, California

1. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ABAG President Julie Pierce, Councilmember, City of Clayton, called the meeting of the
Executive Board of the Association of Bay Area Governments to order at about 7:05 p.m.
A quorum of the ABAG Executive Board was present at about 7:05 p.m.
Representatives and Alternates Present Jurisdiction

Laurel Arvanitidis, OEWD Industry Programs City of San Francisco

Mayor Len Augustine
Mayor Mary-Lynne Bernald

Councilmember Annie Campbell Washington

Supervisor Dave Canepa
Supervisor Cindy Chavez
Councilmember Lan Diep
Councilmember Pat Eklund

Dir Nicole Elliott, Leg and Gov Affairs

Mayor Leon Garcia
Mayor Liz Gibbons

Councilmember Lynette Gibson McElhaney

Councilmember Abel Guillen
Mayor Pradeep Gupta
Supervisor Scott Haggerty
Mayor Barbara Halliday
Supervisor Erin Hannigan

Vice Mayor Dave Hudson
Councilmember Sergio Jimenez
Mayor Jake Mackenzie
Supervisor Karen Mitchoff
Councilmember Raul Peralez
Councilmember Julie Pierce
Supervisor David Rabbitt

Dir John Rahaim, Planning
Supervisor Belia Ramos
Councilmember Carlos Romero
Mayor Trish Spencer
Supervisor Norman Yee

Representatives Absent

Supervisor Candace Andersen
Supervisor David Cortese
Director William Kissinger *

City of Vacaville

City of Saratoga

City of Oakland

County of San Mateo
County of Santa Clara
City of San Jose

City of Novato

City of San Francisco
City of American Canyon
City of Campbell

City of Oakland

City of Oakland

City of South San Francisco
County of Alameda

City of Hayward

County of Solano

City of San Ramon

City of San Jose

City of Rohnert Park
County of Contra Costa
City of San Jose

City of Clayton

County of Sonoma

City of San Francisco
County of Napa

City of East Palo Alto
City of Alameda

County of San Francisco

Jurisdiction

County of Contra Costa
County of Santa Clara
RWQCB

ltem 6.A.



Summary Minutes (Draft)
ABAG Executive Board Special Meeting No. 424
Thursday, April 20, 2017

Page 2
Supervisor Nathan Miley County of Alameda
Supervisor Dave Pine County of San Mateo
Supervisor Dennis Rodoni County of Marin

[ * Non-voting Advisory Member]
PUBLIC COMMENT

There were no public comments.
ANNOUNCEMENTS

There were no announcements.

PRESIDENT’S REPORT

President Pierce reported that the ABAG General Assembly special meeting will be on
June 5, 2017.

. ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

There was no Acting Executive Director’s report.
CONSENT CALENDAR

President Pierce recognized a motion by David Rabbitt, Supervisor, County of Sonoma,
which was seconded by Karen Mitchoff, Supervisor, County of Contra Costa, to approve the
Consent Calendar, including the ratification of committee appointment.

There was no discussion.
There was no public comment.

The aye votes were: Arvanitidis, Augustine, Canepa, Chavez, Diep, Eklund, Elliot, Garcia,
Gibbons, Guillen, Gupta, Haggerty, Halliday, Hannigan, Hudson, Jimenez, Mackenzie,
Mitchoff, Peralez, Pierce, Rabbitt, Rahaim, Ramos, Romero, Spencer, Yee (26).

The nay votes were: None.
Abstentions were: None.

Absent were: Andersen, Campbell Washington, Cortese, Gibson McElhaney, Miley, Pine,
Rodoni, Scharff (8).

The motion passed unanimously.

A. Approval of Executive Board Summary Minutes of Meeting No. 423 held on
March 16, 2017

The ABAG Executive Board approved its Summary Minutes of the meeting on March 16,
2017.

B. Approval of Transmission of Federal Grant Applications to State Clearinghouse

With Executive Board consent, ABAG will transmit the attached list of federal grant
applications to the State Clearinghouse. These applications were circulated in ABAG’s
Intergovernmental Review Newsletter since the last Executive Board meeting.

C. Ratification of Committee Appointment

The Executive Board ratified the following committee appointment:

ltem 6.A.



Summary Minutes (Draft)

ABAG Executive Board Special Meeting No. 424
Thursday, April 20, 2017

Page 3

Regional Planning Committee

Scott Sedgley, Councilmember, City of Napa

D. Requesting Revision to Executive Board Resolution No. 17-16 Authorizing Real
Estate Exchange to Meet Bank Requirements

The Executive Board approved the revision to Executive Board Resolution No. 17-16.
7. ABAG LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Committee Chair Scott Haggerty, Supervisor, County of Alameda, reported on Committee
activities, including the following: approval of summary minutes of meeting on March 16,
2017; report on legislation, including AB 890 (Medina), local land use initiatives:
environmental review—oppose; and AB 358 (Grayson), regional economic development
areas—request meeting with legislative staff; report on legislative workshop and reception
on March 22, 2017.

President Pierce recognized a motion by Haggerty, which was seconded by Dave Hudson,
Vice Mayor, City of San Ramon, to approve the committee report.

There was no discussion.
There was no public comment.

The aye votes were: Arvanitidis, Augustine, Canepa, Chavez, Diep, Eklund, Elliot, Garcia,
Gibbons, Guillen, Gupta, Haggerty, Halliday, Hannigan, Hudson, Jimenez, Mackenzie,
Mitchoff, Peralez, Pierce, Rabbitt, Rahaim, Ramos, Romero, Spencer, Yee (26).

The nay votes were: None.
Abstentions were: None.

Absent were: Andersen, Campbell Washington, Cortese, Gibson McElhaney, Miley, Pine,
Rodoni, Scharff (8).

The motion passed unanimously.
8. ABAG FINANCE AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE REPORT

A. Report on Proposed Budget and Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2017-2018, including
Membership Dues

Committee Chair Karen Mitchoff, Supervisor, County of Contra Costa, reported on
Committee activities, including the following: approval of summary minutes of meeting on
March 16, 2017; report on contracts between $20,000 and $50,000, with request for staff to
provide additional contract information going forward; update on proposal to create a new
conduit financing joint powers authority; and report on proposed budget and work program
for fiscal year 2017-2018, including membership dues, which must be forwarded from the
Executive Board 45 days in advance of the meeting of the General Assembly.

President Pierce recognized a motion by Mitchoff, which was seconded by David Rabbitt,
Supervisor, County of Sonoma, to approve the committee report.

There was no members discussion.

There was no public comment.

ltem 6.A.



Summary Minutes (Draft)

ABAG Executive Board Special Meeting No. 424
Thursday, April 20, 2017

Page 4

The aye votes were: Arvanitidis, Augustine, Canepa, Chavez, Diep, Eklund, Elliot, Garcia,
Gibbons, Guillen, Gupta, Haggerty, Halliday, Hannigan, Hudson, Jimenez, Mackenzie,
Mitchoff, Peralez, Pierce, Rabbitt, Rahaim, Ramos, Romero, Spencer, Yee (26).

The nay votes were: None.
Abstentions were: None.

Absent were: Andersen, Campbell Washington, Cortese, Gibson McElhaney, Miley, Pine,
Rodoni, Scharff (8).

The motion passed unanimously.

Brad Paul, Acting Executive Director, reported on the program descriptions in the proposed
Budget and Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2017-2018, including a Draft Integrated Regional
Planning Program and Draft Communications and Member Services work plans.

Courtney Ruby, Finance and Administrative Services Director, reported on highlights of the
budget in the proposed Budget and Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2017-2018, including
operating budget, overhead blended rate, federal and state and other revenues, proposed
revenues and expenses by program, proposed membership dues.

Members discussed consultant services expenses; Plan Bay Area, including public
workshops and open houses and collaboration; local government housing development and
preservation; overhead expenses and blended rate; efficiencies and savings from
consolidation; regional housing trust fund and middle income housing; explanations
regarding increases and reductions from fiscal year 2016-17 and fiscal year 2017-18;
postponing General Assembly to allow review of Budget and Work Program; support for
committees and staff; assets and liabilities; regional land use planning and cities and
counties; affordable housing and homelessness; CalPERS payments; recommending
approval by the General Assembly; financial balance sheet review.

President Pierce recognized a motion by Rabbitt, which was seconded by Haggerty, to
forward the proposed amended Budget and Work Program for Fiscal Year 2017-2018,
including membership dues, for approval by the General Assembly. The amendment
reflects an approximately $33.5 million reduction in revenue and corresponding expenses
related to the San Francisco Estuary Partnership due to misclassification of multi-year
grants being fully attributed to Fiscal Year 2017-2018, and subject to minor clerical
adjustments by staff to the 2017-2018 budget but not to the 2017-2018 membership dues.

Members discussed Regional Planning Committee discussions regarding affordable
housing; Executive Board budget deliberations; League of Women Voters comments
regarding budget; incorporating comments received during the period prior to the General
Assembly; late receipt of the proposed Budget and Work Program; distributing Financial
Statement Audit and current Financial Statements to members; delaying action on the
proposed Budget and Work Program, postponing the General Assembly, and missing the
beginning of the Fiscal Year.

Kenneth Moy, Legal Counsel, commented that the Executive Board may forward the
proposed Budget and Work Program to the General Assembly noting the lateness of the
presentation of the budget document and presenting it in compliance with the Bylaws to the
General Assembly without recommendation. The Executive Board will meet in May at which
time staff may respond to concerns raised and may consider a subsequent resolution

ltem 6.A.



Summary Minutes (Draft)

ABAG Executive Board Special Meeting No. 424
Thursday, April 20, 2017

Page 5

indicating its support or non-support of the document as submitted or its recommended
amendments.

Members discussed amendments to the budget document made at the General Assembly;
impact of not approving the budget document; making recommendations for changes to the
budget document to the General Assembly; forwarding the budget document to cities and
counties for review and comment.

Rabbitt modified the motion to incorporate the suggestions by Moy which was accepted by
Haggerty.

Members discussed impact on employees without an adopted budget; continuing budget
deliberations at the May meeting; forwarding without recommendation the budget document
to the General Assembly for consideration.

President Pierce recognized a substitute motion by Lynnette Gibson McElhany,
Councilmember, City of Oakland, which was seconded by Pat Eklund, Councilmember, City
of Novato, to forward to the General Assembly the draft amended Proposed Budget and
Work Program for Fiscal Year 2017-2018, including membership dues, without
recommendation, noting that the budget document was received by the Executive Board on
the day of the vote in compliance with the Bylaws.

The following individual gave public comment: Ken Bukowski.
President Pierce called for a roll call vote on the substitute motion.

The aye votes were: Augustine, Eklund, Gibbons, Gibson McElhaney, Guillen, Halliday,
Peralez, Romero, Spencer, Yee (10).

The nay votes were: Arvanitidis, Campbell Washington, Canepa, Chavez, Diep, Elliot,
Garcia, Gupta, Haggerty, Hannigan, Hudson, Jimenez, Mackenzie, Mitchoff, Pierce, Rabbitt,
Rahaim, Ramos (18).

Abstentions were: None.

Absent were: Andersen, Cortese, Miley, Pine, Rodoni, Scharff (6).
The substitute motion failed.

President Pierce called for a roll call vote on the original motion.

The aye votes were: Arvanitids, Campell Washington, Canepa, Chavez, Diep, Elliot, Garcia,
Guillen, Gupta, Haggerty, Halliday, Hannigan, Hudson, Jimenez, Mackenzie, Mitchoff,
Peralez, Pierce, Rabbitt, Rahaim, Ramos (21).

The nay votes were: Augustine, Eklund, Gibbons, Gibson McElhaney, Romero, Spencer,
Yee (7).

Abstentions were: None.
Absent were: Andersen, Cortese, Miley, Pine, Rodoni, Scharff (6).
The original motion passed.
Members discussed the late delivery of the budget document.
9. REPORT ON ABAG/MTC OPTION 7 IMPLEMENTATION ACTION PLAN
A. Report on Approval of Contract for Services and Memorandum of Understanding

ltem 6.A.



Summary Minutes (Draft)

ABAG Executive Board Special Meeting No. 424
Thursday, April 20, 2017

Page 6

Brad Paul, Acting Executive Director, reported on the Contract for Services, including key
dates and schedule, overview of final documents, contract for services, and budget and
work plan. He commented on the Contract for Services and Memorandum of
Understanding, letter from CalPERS, integrated organization charts, Policies on ABAG
Committee Formation, Structure and Membership, letter from MTC Chair regarding
proposed changes, contingencies regarding CalPERS issues on ABAG transferred
employees, as described in the staff memo.

Moy clarified the meaning of “approval as to form” and contingencies regarding the CalPERs
issues.

The following individuals gave public comment: Ken Bukowski; Julie Combs,
Councilmember, City of Santa Rosa; Kathleen Cha, League of Women Voters of the Bay
Area; Lee Huo, SEIU Local 1021, ABAG Chapter; Darcie Luce, ABAG staff; Heidi Nutters,
ABAG staff; Christy Leffal, ABAG staff; James Muller, SEIU Local 1021, ABAG Chapter;
Gabriel Haaland, SEIU Local 1021; Patricia Perry, ABAG retiree; Henry Gardner, retired
ABAG Executive Director.

President Pierce recommended the changes by Revan Tranter and Henry Gardner.

President Pierce recognized a motion by Cindy Chavez, Supervisor, County of Santa Clara,
which was seconded by Liz Gibbons, Mayor, City of Campbell, to approve the Contract for
Services between ABAG and MTC as to form, contingent on the following: (1) the staff
recommendation as presented [regarding the CalPERs issues and recommendations from
Revan Tranter and Henry Gardner]; (2) requesting MTC to voluntarily accept SEIU Local
1021 as the bargaining unit for the purposes of collective bargaining to address the issues in
the letter [from ABAG SEIU Local 1021 Members] and other issues as may arise, and to
continue representing ABAG employees; and (3) including the recommended change
[regarding pension and medical benefits] in the letter from Henry Gardner; and with
resolutions regarding MTC voluntarily accepting SEIU Local 1021 indicated by a signed
agreement between MTC and SEIU Local 1021 reviewed by President Pierce, and,
regarding the other contingencies by a written agreement between the Chief Executive
Officer or Chair of MTC and the Chief Executive Officer or President of ABAG.

Jake Mackenzie, Mayor, City of Rohnert Park, made a friendly amendment to include
recommended changes regarding CalPERS Pension Obligation and Creation of a
Successor ABAG-affiliated Conduit Financing Authority as described in the memo from
himself as MTC Chair from the MTC Executive Committee. The friendly amendment was
accepted by the maker of the motion and the second.

Members discussed the voluntary recognition by MTC of SEIU Local 1021 to resolve issues
and represent ABAG employees; the recommendations from Revan Tranter and Henry
Gardner; a contingency plan in the event that a Contract for Services is not adopted;
defining Full Time Equivalents and 60 legacy employees or 57 staff positions and 3
vacancies; consolidation of ABAG employees and financial systems.

Moy presented the structure of the motion, i.e., to approve as to form the Contract for
Services between ABAG and MTC as presented to the Executive Board at its April 20
meeting, and amended as follows: (a) changes in the email from Revan Tranter; (b)
changes in the letter dated April 19 from Henry Gardner; (c) changes to the Contract for
Services in the memo dated April 19 from Jake Mackenzie, and contingent on the following
condition(s) being met: (a) ABAG and MTC senior management agreeing on contract

ltem 6.A.



Summary Minutes (Draft)

ABAG Executive Board Special Meeting No. 424
Thursday, April 20, 2017

Page 7

language that if CalPERS determines that one or more members of the consolidated staff
are, for CalPERS purposes, ABAG employees, the parties will make each other whole for
the financial consequences of the CalPERS determination and MTC will make each affected
employee whole for the financial consequences of the CalPERS determination; (b) MTC
voluntarily recognizes SEIU 1021 as the labor representative of the members of the
Transitioned Employees currently represented by them and to bargain with SEIU 1021
regarding employment with MTC. This/These condition(s) will be deemed to have been met
when the following occur: (a) As to the CalPERS condition, a written communication to the
ABAG Executive Board and the Commission of MTC signed by the chief executive officers
of ABAG and MTC stating that agreement has been reached and transmitting the agreed
upon contract language; (b) As to the labor condition, a written communication to the ABAG
President signed by the chief executive officer of MTC and the President of SEIU 1021
stating that the condition has been met.

Members discussed the changes regarding Contract for Services included in the attachment
to the Mackenzie memo; suggested changes to the draft Contract for Services included in
the memo from Marin County ABAG delegates/alternates; SEIU and Committee for Staff
Representation employee concerns; selection process and committee composition of future
MTC Executive Director; ABAG employee status and MTC salary and classification system;
letter from League of Women Voters of the Bay Area; how an ABAG employee at a
classification level and career ladder is going over to MTC at a lower classification level and
career ladder; ABAG retirees’ issues.

Abel Guillen, Councilmember, City of Oakland, called the question.
Moy commented that the Call the Question is a Point of Order.
Moy restated the motion.

Members commented on the intent of the Call the Question.
President Pierce called for a roll call vote on the motion.

The aye votes were: Augustine, Arvanitidis, Campbell Washington, Chavez, Diep, Elliot,
Garcia, Guillen, Gupta, Haggerty, Halliday, Hannigan, Hudson, Jimenez, Mitchoff, Peralez,
Pierce, Rabbitt, Rahaim, Ramos, Yee (21).

The nay votes were: Eklund, Gibbons, Gibson McElhaney, Mackenzie, Spencer, Romero
(6).

Abstentions were: None.

Absent were: Andersen, Canepa, Cortese, Miley, Pine, Rodoni, Scharff (7).

Members discussed parliamentary procedures.

Members discussed the procedure following the MTC Commission’s response to the
Executive Board’s action regarding the Contract for Services; voluntary recognition of SEIU
1021 as the labor representative of the members of the Transitioned Employees of ABAG;
and resolution of vacation rollover.

Paul reported on the draft Memorandum of Understanding as amended at the joint meeting
of the ABAG Administrative Committee and MTC Planning Committee, including selection of
the future Executive Director, the composition of the selection committee, and Brown Act
issues.

ltem 6.A.



Summary Minutes (Draft)

ABAG Executive Board Special Meeting No. 424
Thursday, April 20, 2017

Page 8

Mackenzie and President Pierce discussed the composition of the MTC Executive Director
selection committee.

President Pierce recognized a motion by Chavez, which was seconded by Carlos Romero,
Councilmember, City of East Palo Alto, to accept having an equal number of MTC
Commissioners and ABAG Executive Board members who are also MTC Commissioners
comprise the MTC Executive Director selection committee.

Moy commented on the Brown Act issues, the appointing authority of the members of the
MTC Executive Director selection committee, and a 1997 Attorney General opinion for a
school district that allowed the school district to appoint members of the community to the
interview panel for the superintendent of the school district.

The maker of the motion modified the motion as follows: to accept having the Chair of MTC
and the President of ABAG appoint equal numbers of MTC and ABAG board members,
respectively, to the interview/selection committee for the successor Executive Director of
MTC, and, alternatively, to accept having an equal number of MTC Commissioners and
ABAG Executive Board members who are also MTC Commissioners comprise the
interview/selection committee for the successor Executive Director of MTC. The
modification was accepted by the second.

Members discussed the standing of the Executive Board members who are also MTC
Commissioners,

The following individual gave public comment: Ken Bukowski.

Members discussed the deadline to initiate discussions on governance; the appointment of
ABAG board members to the interview/selection committee for successor MTC Executive
Director; future governance consideration; the ABAG Ad Hoc review committee; the process
of seeking an Attorney General opinion; trust and confidence in colleagues; the appointment
of the ABAG representative to MTC on the interview/selection committee.

President Pierce recognized a substitute motion by Mitchoff, which was seconded by
Haggerty, to accept that the Chair of MTC will establish an Executive Director
interview/selection committee comprised on MTC commissioners who do not serve on
ABAG to interview and select a final candidate or candidates who will then be presented to
an ABAG Ad Hoc review committee should the ABAG President decide in his or her
discretion to establish one; the MTC Chair and the ABAG President, may, in their discretion,
appoint themselves and the MTC Vice Chair and the ABAG Vice President, respectively, to
serve on the respective interview committees and none of the four aforementioned officers
shall be deemed ineligible if serving in a dual capacity for each agency; if an ABAG Ad Hoc
review committee is appointed, its recommendation will be communicated to the MTC
interview/selection committee who will then make a recommendation to the full MTC
Commission for the final decision; and to request that the ABAG representative to the MTC
Commission be appointed to the interview/selection committee comprised of MTC
Commissioners.

Members discussed the substitute motion and ABAG Executive Board obligation to have an
impact on the agency providing services under the Contract for Services.

President Pierce called for a roll call vote on the substitute motion.

The aye votes were: Arvanitidis, Campbell Washington, Elliot, Guillen, Haggerty, Hudson,
Jimenez, Mackenzie, Mitchoff, Pierce, Rabbitt, Rahaim, Ramos (13).

ltem 6.A.



10.

Summary Minutes (Draft)

ABAG Executive Board Special Meeting No. 424
Thursday, April 20, 2017

Page 9

The nay votes were: Augustine, Bernald, Chavez, Diep, Eklund, Garcia, Gibbons, Gibson
McElhaney, Gupta, Halliday, Hannigan, Peralez, Romero, Spencer, Yee (15).
Abstentions were: None.

Absent were: Andersen, Canepa, Cortese, Miley, Pine, Rodoni (6).

The substitute motion failed.

President Pierce called for a roll call vote on the original motion.

The aye votes were: Augustine, Arvanitidis, Bernald, Campbell Washington, Chavez, Diep,
Eklund, Elliot, Garcia, Gibbons, Gibson McElhany, Guillen, Gupta, Halliday, Hannigan,
Hudson, Jimenez, Mitchoff, Peralez, Pierce, Rabbitt, Ramos, Romero, Spencer, Yee (25).

The nay votes were: Haggerty, Mackenzie, Rahaim (3).
Abstentions were: None.

Absent were: Andersen, Canepa, Cortese, Miley, Pine, Rodoni (6).
The motion passed.

President Pierce recognized a motion by Eklund, which was seconded by Romero, to refer
the Contract for Services and the Memorandum of Understanding to the General Assembly.

Members discussed the Executive Board’s action regarding the Contract for Services and
the Memorandum of Understanding; allowing the members an opportunity to vote on
changes; comments from the General Assembly.

Moy commented on the Brown Act requirement to inform the public on the decisions that are
before the body.

Members discussed having ABAG members opportunity to consider the Contract for
Services and Memorandum of Understanding; forwarding to ABAG members the Contract
for Services and Memorandum of Understanding and Budget and Work Program for
comments.

The maker of the motion modified the motion to forward to ABAG members the Contract for
Services and Memorandum of Understanding and Budget and Work Program for comment.
The modification was accepted by the second.

With the maker of the motion and second withdrawing the motion, and, in lieu of the motion,
members directed staff to forward to ABAG members the Contract for Services and
Memorandum of Understanding and Budget and Work Program for information and
comment.

ADJOURNMENT
President Pierce adjourned the meeting of the ABAG Executive Board at about 11:11 p.m.
The next meeting of the ABAG Executive Board will be on May 18, 2017.

Submitted:

ltem 6.A.



Summary Minutes (Draft)

ABAG Executive Board Special Meeting No. 424
Thursday, April 20, 2017

Page 10

/s/ Brad Paul, Acting Secretary-Treasurer

Date Submitted: May 10, 2017
Approved:

For information or to review audio recordings of ABAG Executive Board meetings, contact
Fred Castro, Clerk of the Board, at (415) 820 7913 or FredC@abag.ca.gov.

ltem 6.A.


mailto:FredC@abag.ca.gov

ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area

ABAG

Date: May 8, 2017
To: ABAG Executive Board
From: Kenneth Moy

ABAG Legal Counsel

Subject: Conveyance of Real Property Interest—City of South Lake Tahoe

Summary and Requested Action

Staff requests Executive Board adopt Resolution No. 02-17 authorizing the transfer of real
property to the City of South Lake Tahoe (City).

Background and Analysis

On December 1, 2001, the Executive Board adopted Resolution 09-01, 13-01, and 18-01
authorizing the issuance of Lease Revenue Bonds to provide financing for (i) the acquisition of
certain capital equipment (ii) and to refund certain then outstanding obligations. Under that
financing structure, ABAG and the City entered into a Site and Facility Lease and a Lease
Agreement under which ABAG took title to the real property described in Exhibit A to Resolution
02-17, leased it to the City and the City made lease payments to retire the lease revenue bonds.
The City completed its payment obligations on November 15, 2010. Under section 9 of the Site
& Facility Lease, ABAG is required to transfer title to the Property to the City upon final
payment.

Attachments

Resolution No. 02-17
Exhibit A to Resolution

ltem 6.B.



Blank Page



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
EXECUTIVE BOARD

RESOLUTION NO. 02-17
AUTHORIZING TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY INTEREST

WHEREAS, in 2001 the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) issued
Lease Revenue Bonds pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of December 1, 2001
(the “Indenture”) that provided funding for the City of South Lake Tahoe (the “City”) (i)
the acquisition of certain capital equipment (ii), and refund certain then outstanding
obligations.

WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Indenture, ABAG and the City entered
into: (i) a Site and Facility Lease, dated as of December 1, 2001 (the “Site Lease”)
under which the City leased the Property (as defined in the Site Lease) described in
Exhibit A to ABAG, and (ii) a Lease Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2001 (the
“Lease”), under which ABAG subleased the Property to the City, and the City made
lease payments to the bond holders, and

WHEREAS, the City completed its payment obligations on November 15, 2010
and under the provisions of the Site Lease and Lease, ABAG is required to transfer title
to the Property to the City upon that event, and

WHEREAS, the City has requested that ABAG convey title to the Property to the
City.

Iltem 6.B., Resolution



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
RESOLUTION NO. 02-17

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Executive Board of the Association
of Bay Area Governments hereby authorizes Acting Executive Director, or his designee,
to execute all documents and take all actions reasonably necessary, to effectuate the
conveyance of title to the Property to the City of South Lake Tahoe.

The foregoing was adopted by the Executive Board this 18" day of May, 2017.

Julie Pierce
President

Certification of Administrative Committee Approval

I, the undersigned, the appointed and qualified Secretary-Treasurer of the Association
of Bay Area Governments (Association), do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution
was adopted by the Executive Board of the Association at a duly called meeting held on

the 18" day of May, 2017.

Brad Paul
Acting Secretary-Treasurer

Approved as To Legal Form

Kenneth K. Moy
Legal Counsel

Iltem 6.B., Resolution



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
RESOLUTION NO. 02-17

EXHIBIT A
Legal Description of the Property

All that certain real property situated in El Dorado County, State of California, described
as follows:

LOT 41, AS SHOWN ON THE OFFICIAL MAP OF KELLER PARK SUBDIVISION,
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY ON JULY
19, 1951 IN MAP BOOK A, MAP NO. 102.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE FOLLOWING: BEGINNING AT THE MOST
NORTHERLY COMER OF LOT 41 AS SHOWN AND SO DELINEATED ON THAT
CERTAIN MAP OF KELLER PARK SUBDIVISION, RECORDED IN MAP BOOK "A" AT
PAGE 102, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF ELDORADO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA; THENCE
FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING SOUTH 29°45' EAST ALONG THE
NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 41, 125.03 FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID
LINE SOUTH 60°15' WEST, 336.18 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHWESTERLY
LINE OF SAID LOT 41; THENCE NORTH 40°49' WEST ALONG SAID LINE 127.40
FEET TO THE MOST WESTERLY COMER OF SAID LOT 41; THENCE NORTH 60°15'
EAST ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 41, 360.63 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO MARGARET R.
KELLER, IN THE INSTRUMENT RECORDED OCTOBER 6, 1972 IN BOOK 1151 OF
OFFICIAL RECORDS, PAGE 262.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF
SOUTH LAKE TAHOE, IN THE INSTRUMENT RECORDED MARCH 20, 1974 IN
BOOK 1252 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, PAGE 185.

Iltem 6.B., Resolution



Blank Page



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area

To: Executive Board, Association of Bay Area Governments
Fr: Kenneth Moy, Legal Counsel

Dt: May 9, 2017

Re: SB 1029 — Debt Issuance Policy

Requested Action:  Consider the attached Debt Issuance Policy and adopt as
submitted, or as modified by the Executive Board.

Discussion: Effective January 1, 2017, SB 1029 amends Government Code Section
8855(i) to require that the issuer of any proposed debt issue of state or local
government shall adopt a local debt policy concerning the use of debt and that any
contemplated debt issuance is consistent with said policy. A local debt policy shall
include all of the following:

(A) The purposes for which the debt proceeds may be used.

(B) The types of debt that may be issued.

(C) The relationship of the debt to, and integration with, the issuer’s capital
improvement program or budget, if applicable.

(D) Policy goals related to the issuer’s planning goals and objectives.

(E) The internal control procedures that the issuer has implemented, or will implement,
to ensure that the proceeds of the proposed debt issuance will be directed to the
intended use.

The attached draft Debt Issuance Policy (Policy) has been prepared by the law firm of
Jones Hall for ABAG to comply with SB 1029. It conforms to ABAG’s authority to issue
debt as set forth in section IV.H of ABAG’s Bylaws (which is excerpted and attached to
this memorandum, following the Policy).

The adoption of the policy is a necessary prerequisite to ABAG’s participation in the
refinancing of the Windemere Bonds that is submitted for the Executive Board’s
consideration immediately after its consideration of the Policy. The mere adoption of
the Policy does not obligate ABAG to issue debt or to approve its participation in the
refinancing of the Windemere Bonds. The adoption of the Policy is prudent.

Address: Bay Area Metro Center 375 Beale Street, Suite 700 San Francisco, California 94105-2066
Phone (415) 820-7900 Fax (415) 660-3500 www.abag.ca.gov info@abag.ca.gov

£

ABAG

Item 6.C.


http://www.abag.ca.gov/

DEBT ISSUANCE POLICY
This Debt Issuance Policy of ABAG was approved by the Executive Board on May 18, 2017.
The Debt Policy may be amended by the Executive Board as it deems appropriate from time to time in
the prudent management of the debt of ABAG.
1. Definitions

The following terms, when capitalized herein, shall have the following meanings:

“Act” means the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the California
Government Code, commencing with Section 6500.

“Agreement” means the Joint Powers Agreement Creating ABAG, dated 1961, as heretofore
amended, by and among the members of ABAG, as the same may be amended from time to time.

“Debt Policy” means this Debt Issuance Policy, as it may be amended from time to time.

“Executive Board” means ABAG’s Executive Board established by and acting pursuant to the
Agreement.

“State” means the State of California.

2. Findings

This Debt Policy is intended to comply with Government Code Section 8855(i), effective on
January 1, 2017, and shall govern all debt undertaken by the ABAG. ABAG hereby recognizes that a
prudent debt policy is required in order to:

(@) Maintain the ABAG’s sound financial position.

(b)  Ensure ABAG has the flexibility to respond to changes in future service priorities,
market conditions and legal and financial risks.

(©) Protect the ABAG's reputation and exposure to financial and legal liabilities.

(d) Help ensure that all debt is structured in order to protect investors, ABAG, its
members, its borrowers and other stakeholders.

(e) Ensure that the ABAG’s debt is consistent with the ABAG’s objectives.
3. Purposes of Debt

@) Debt may be issued to finance the construction, acquisition, and rehabilitation of
real and personal property, capital improvements, equipment, furnishings, and any other capital
facilities, to be owned and operated by the Members or Cooperating Members of ABAG, and for

such other purposes as may be authorized under the Agreement, the Act and any other
applicable laws of the State of California.

1 Item 6.C.



exist:

(b) Debt financings are appropriate when one or more of the following conditions

@ The debt is intended to assist a Member or Cooperating Member of
ABAG in its financing needs or providing facilities or services in its jurisdiction or have
other public benefits.

(i) The debt will be used to refinance outstanding debt in order to produce
debt service savings or to realize the benefits of a debt or legal covenant restructuring.

(c) Debt financings must satisfy the following requirements:

0] The issuance of the debt will comply with the Agreement, the Act and any
other applicable state and federal law.

(i) The staff has made an independent recommendation for approval of the
transaction.

(iii) The debt must be approved by the Executive Board.

(iv) The debt must comply with the Debt Policy, or a waiver must be obtained.
Types of Debt
€) The following types of debt are allowable under this Debt Policy:

0] conduit revenue bonds or notes

(i) bond or grant anticipation notes

(iii) leases, lease revenue bonds, installment sale or purchase agreements,
certificates of participation and lease-purchase transactions

(v) revenue bonds

(vi) tax and revenue anticipation notes

(vii)  land-secured financings, such as special tax revenue bonds issued under
the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, and limited obligation
bonds issued under applicable assessment statutes, including PACE financings

(viii)  tax increment financing to the extent permitted under state law

(ix) any other type of debt permitted under the Agreement and authorized by
the Act or other applicable law.

(b) For purposes of this section, the term “bonds” may include notes, warrants,

leases, installment purchase agreements, certificates of participation, financing agreements or
any other evidence of an obligation to pay or repay money.

(© ABAG may from time to time find that other forms of debt would be beneficial to

2 Item 6.C.



further its public purposes and may approve such debt without an amendment of this Debt
Policy.

(d) Bonds may bear current interest at fixed or variable rates, with or without credit
or liquidity enhancement, or may be sold at a discount without current interest, subject to
applicable law.

5. Relationship of Debt to Capital Improvement Program and Budget

As a conduit financing vehicle, ABAG generally does not have its own capital improvement
program or budget. Therefore, any consideration of the consistency of proposed debt to capital
improvement programs or budgets shall only apply if ABAG has such a program or budget in effect,
and then such consideration shall be taken by the Executive Board on a case by case basis.

6. Policy Goals Related to Planning Goals and Objectives

@) This Debt Policy will help ABAG to function in an efficient and effective manner,
to the benefit of the Members and Cooperating Members of ABAG, as well as result in a
favorable reception by the market for ABAG’s debt issuances.

(b) In crafting this Debt Policy, ABAG has endeavored to strike a balance between
its interests and obligations as a conduit issuer formed by local governments, the needs of its
borrowers, and the concerns and interests of regulators and the municipal market. ABAG’s
purpose in adopting this Debt Policy is to provide for a fair, efficient and effective process for
facilitating the issuance of its bonds, giving borrowers substantial flexibility in structuring their
transactions while protecting the interests of ABAG.

7. Internal Control Procedures

(@) When issuing debt, in addition to complying with the terms of this Debt Policy, the
ABAG shall comply with (i) any other applicable policies regarding initial bond disclosure,
continuing disclosure, post-issuance compliance, and investment of bond proceeds, and (ii) all
applicable laws including the Act and federal tax and securities laws, to the extent applicable.

(b) ABAG will periodically review the requirements of and will remain in compliance
with the following:

0] any continuing disclosure undertakings under SEC Rule 15c2-12,

(ii) any federal tax compliance requirements, including without limitation
arbitrage and rebate compliance, related to any prior bond issues, and

(i) any requirements of State agencies such as the Office of the State
Treasurer, the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission, the California Debt
Limit Allocation Committee and the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee.

(© Whenever reasonably possible, proceeds of conduit revenue debt will not be held
by ABAG, and ABAG shall direct the disbursement or investment of such proceeds only at the
written direction of the borrower. ABAG shall require the borrower’s or the bond owner’s written
direction or consent when asked to take actions under the legal documents that involve their
interests and not the interests of ABAG.

3 Item 6.C.



EXCERPT
from
ABAG BYLAWS

ARTICLE IV
H. POWER TO FINANCE PROPERTY FOR MEMBERS.

The Association shall have the power to finance and acquire, by lease
purchase, installment sale or other financing agreements, both real and personal
property necessary or convenient for the operation of the Members and
Cooperating Members, and to sell or lease such property to such members
pursuant to installment sale or lease purchase agreements between the
Association and the members acquiring such property.

Item 6.C.



Blank Page



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area

ABAG
Date: May 8, 2017
To: ABAG Executive Board
From: Kenneth Moy
ABAG Legal Counsel
Subject: Supplement to a Fiscal Agent Agreement to Facilitate Refinancing of the

Windemere Ranch Infrastructure Financing Bonds by the ABAG Finance
Authority for Nonprofit Corporations (FAN) and Discharge of Outstanding
Reassessment Lien

Requested Action

Adopt Resolution No. 01-17 (attached), approving the Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the
Fiscal Agent Agreement between ABAG and the Trustee (Supplement 2) (attached), making
findings with respect to, and using funds released by reason of the refinancing to fully discharge
the reassessment lien on, a parcel in a Geologic Hazard Abatement District (District).

Summary

FAN will approve refinancing of outstanding bonds when interest rates can be reduced. ABAG
and FAN have been involved with the Windemere Ranch Infrastructure Financing Program
(“Project”) since the original financing in 1999 and has subsequently issued bonds to lower
interest rates with restructuring and refinancing bonds in 2007 and 2014. ABAG and FAN have
received a proposed 2017 refinancing similar to prior refinancings and will reduce the annual
assessment and special tax levies on all participating properties within the districts.

As part of the refinancing and restructuring, the Executive Board is asked to:

= approve Supplement 2 which makes technical changes to recognize and accommodate
the 2017 refinancing

» make certain findings and take certain actions to fully discharge the Reassessment levy
on a parcel owned by the District.

The FAN Executive Committee is scheduled to approve the refinancing at its regular meeting on

May 17. This item will be removed from the Consent Calendar if the refinancing is not
approved.

Item 6.D.



Supplement to a Fiscal Agent Agreement to Facilitate Refinancing of the Windemere Ranch
Infrastructure Financing Bonds by FAN) and Discharge of Outstanding Reassessment Lien
May 8, 2017

Page 2

Background

Windemere Ranch is a 2,300-acre, master-planned development located in the Dougherty
Valley area of southern Contra Costa County, in the City of San Ramon. The property has
5,170 residential units and 380,000 square feet of commercial space. The development is fully
built out. The apartment units fulfilled the development’s 25% affordable housing requirement
arising from the Dougherty Valley Affordable Housing Program -- adopted by all jurisdictions
involved.

In 1999, 2000 and 2002 ABAG issued special assessment bonds for an ABAG-sponsored
Assessment District aggregating about $125,000,000. Separately, FAN established a
community facilities district that included Phases 2-5 of the development and issued
$30,000,000 in special tax (Community Facilities District) bonds for the development in 2004. In
2007 a multi-series pooled refinancing of the above four bond issues generated net present
value debt service savings of more than $20 million. In 2014, the non-rated 2007B Subordinate
Bonds were refunded as investment grade 2014A Senior Bonds, resulting in debt service
savings of more than $2 million.

Proposed Refinancing

The 2007A Bonds have an outstanding balance of $82,270,000 and an average interest rate of
4.94% with a final maturity on September 2, 2034. The proposed 2017 Refunding Revenue
Bonds are projected to have an all-in cost of funds of approximately 3.50% (based on market
conditions as of April 6) and use a surety instead of a cash-funded reserve which, together,
would generate average debt service savings of approximately $1.16 million, year These
savings would enable the annual levy on each participating property within the districts to be
significantly lower in future years. Actual savings and the impact on the property owners will not
be known until the bonds are sold and interest rates are finalized. Supplement 2 will amend the
Fiscal Agent Agreement to reflect the fact that the refinancing has occurred and to effect the
mechanics of the restructuring of bonds and the GHAD parcel. The proposed financing includes
the direct transfer of special tax and assessment revenues to the bond trustee thus eliminating
the secondary layer of fund administration that previously resulted in mismanaged funds.

As part of the proposed refinancing, staff is recommending the termination of the lien against
one parcel (of 3,800 parcels) given its unique ownership and land use.

The GHAD Parcel

The original Assessment District established by ABAG in 1999 for Windemere Ranch
apportioned the Assessments among the parcels in the Assessment District based on projected
equivalent dwelling units (EDU’s) for each parcel. As development occurred, one of the parcels
included in the Assessment District, and subsequently included in the Reassessment District
(GHAD Parcel), was conveyed by the master developer of Windemere Ranch to a Geological
Hazard Abatement District (District) administered by the City of San Ramon. While the GHAD
Parcel was originally expected to be developed with apartments, once it was conveyed to the
District it was no longer subject to development, and so it will never have any dwelling units, and
the GHAD Parcel otherwise has no significant value.

Item 6.D.



Supplement to a Fiscal Agent Agreement to Facilitate Refinancing of the Windemere Ranch
Infrastructure Financing Bonds by FAN) and Discharge of Outstanding Reassessment Lien
May 8, 2017

Page 3

The Reassessments levied on the GHAD Parcel have been delinquent since fiscal year
2012/13, and penalties and interest have accrued on the delinquent Reassessments. Section
5.02 of the Fiscal Agent Agreement for the Reassessment Bonds requires foreclosure on
parcels with delinquent Reassessment in excess of $5,000, and the delinquent Reassessments
for the GHAD Parcel are in excess of that amount. However, due to the low value of the GHAD
Parcel (value below delinquent and future unpaid Reassessments), a foreclosure action would
not result in a sale of the parcel to provide funds to pay the delinquent Reassessments.

Concurrent with the issuance of the 2017 Bonds, amounts in a Reassessment Bonds
Subaccount of a Senior Reserve Account held as security for the FAN 2007-A Bonds will be
released from the lien of the Indenture of Trust for said bonds (Released Funds).

In light of (i) the lack of any possible future development of the GHAD Parcel, (ii) the ownership
of the GHAD Parcel by the District, a public agency with no significant funds, and (iii) the lack of
value of the GHAD Parcel making a foreclosure of such parcel to obtain funds to pay delinquent
Reassessments impractical, it is recommended that ABAG forgive the penalties and interest
that have accrued on the delinquent Reassessments levied on such parcel, and authorize the
use of Released Funds to pay the delinquent Reassessments and to prepay future
Reassessments on the GHAD Parcel, so that it will no longer be subject to the Reassessments
and restore compliance with the Fiscal Agent Agreement.

Staff Recommendation

Staff respectfully recommends approval of the Resolution No. 01-17.
Attachment

Resolution No. 01-17

Cc: Michael Hurtado, Financial Services Manager and FAN Secretary
Sheelagh Flanagan, Senior Advisor, FAN

Item 6.D.



Blank Page



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
EXECUTIVE BOARD

RESOLUTION NO. 01-17

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF A SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 2 TO FISCAL AGENT
AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF REFUNDING REVENUE
BONDS BY THE ABAG FINANCE AUTHORITY FOR NONPROFIT CORPORATIONS,
AND APPROVING USE OF FUNDS TO DISCHARGE A REASSESSMENT

RESOLVED, by the Executive Board (the “Board”) of the Association of Bay Area
Governments (the “Agency”) that:

WHEREAS, on June 26, 2007, the Agency issued its Limited Obligation
Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2007-A, Association of Bay Area Governments
Windemere Ranch Reassessment District (the “Reassessment Bonds”) in the initial
principal amount of $104,520,000 pursuant to a Fiscal Agent Agreement, dated as of
June 1, 2007 (the “Fiscal Agent Agreement”), between the Agency and Union Bank of
California, N.A. (now known as MUFG Union Bank, N.A.), as fiscal agent (the “Fiscal
Agent”); and

WHEREAS, on the date they were issued, the Reassessment Bonds were
purchased by the ABAG Finance Authority For Nonprofit Corporations (the “Authority”)
with proceeds of the Authority’s ABAG Finance Authority For Nonprofit Corporations
Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2007-A (Windemere Ranch Infrastructure Financing
Program) (the “Authority 2007-A Bonds”), and its ABAG Finance Authority For Nonprofit
Corporations Revenue Bonds, Subordinate Series 2007-B (Windemere Ranch
Infrastructure Finance Program) (the “Authority 2007-B Bonds”); and

WHEREAS, on August 28, 2014, the Authority issued its ABAG Finance
Authority For Nonprofit Corporations Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2014-A
(Windemere Ranch Infrastructure Financing Program) (the “Authority 2014-A Bonds”),
the net proceeds of which were used to refund, in whole, the outstanding Authority
2007-B Bonds”; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Authority 2014-A Bonds, the
Agency entered into a Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to Fiscal Agent Agreement,
dated as of August 1, 2014, between the Agency and the Fiscal Agent, amending the
Fiscal Agent Agreement in order to facilitate the refunding of the Authority 2007-B
Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Authority now expects to issue two additional series of bonds
(collectively, the “Authority 2017 Bonds”) to refund the outstanding Authority 2007-A
Bonds, and the Agency now desires to again amend the Fiscal Agent Agreement to
facilitate such refunding; and

Item 6.D., Resolution



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
RESOLUTION NO. 01-17

WHEREAS, there is on file with the Secretary a Supplemental Agreement No. 2
to Fiscal Agent Agreement (the “Supplement”) which sets forth the desired amendments
to the Fiscal Agent Agreement, and the Board now desires to approve the Supplement
so that the Authority 2007-A Bonds may be refunded in an efficient manner; and

WHEREAS, a parcel owned by a Geologic Hazard Abatement District
administered by the City of San Ramon (the “GHAD Parcel”) is delinquent in the
payment of its reassessments (the “Reassessments”), and the Agency now desires to
forgive the penalties and interest that have accrued on the delinquent Reassessments
levied on such parcel, and to authorize the use of certain funds pledged to the payment
of the Authority 2007-A Bonds and released as a consequence of the refunding of those
bonds (the “Released Funds”) to pay the delinquent Reassessments and to prepay
future Reassessments on the GHAD Parcel.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED as follows:

Section 1. The Supplement, in the form on file with the Secretary, is hereby
approved. The Finance Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute and
deliver the Supplement on behalf of the Agency in such form, together with such
changes thereto as may be approved by the Finance Director, upon consultation with
Counsel to the Agency and Bond Counsel to the Authority, the approval of such
changes to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of the Supplement
by the Agency. The Board hereby finds and determines that the modifications and
supplements to the Fiscal Agent Agreement set forth in the Supplement do not
adversely affect any of the outstanding Reassessment Bonds in any material respect.

Section 2. The Agency hereby finds and determines that the GHAD Parcel has
no realistic possibility of development with dwelling units, and that the GHAD Parcel has
no significant value so that a foreclosure of the lien on such parcel securing the
repayment of the delinquent Reassessments on the GHAD Parcel would not be
successful. In light of the foregoing, in order for the Agency to be in compliance with its
obligations under the Fiscal Agent Agreement and to save future administrative costs
related to the administration of the Reassessment District that would otherwise be
incurred should the Agency bring a foreclosure action in respect of the GHAD Parcel or
the County no longer include the Agency’s Windemere Ranch Reassessment District in
its Teeter program, the Agency hereby forgives all penalties and interest accruing in
respect of the delinquent Reassessments on the GHAD Parcel, and hereby authorizes
use of Released Funds to pay the delinquent Reassessments and to prepay all future
Reassessments on the GHAD Parcel.

Item 6.D., Resolution



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
RESOLUTION NO. 01-17

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

The foregoing was adopted by the Executive Board this 18" day of May, 2017.

Julie Pierce
President

Certification of Administrative Committee Approval

[, the undersigned, the appointed and qualified Secretary-Treasurer of the Association
of Bay Area Governments (Association), do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution
was adopted by the Executive Board of the Association at a duly called meeting held on

the 18™ day of May, 2017.

Brad Paul
Acting Secretary-Treasurer

Approved as To Legal Form

Kenneth K. Moy
Legal Counsel

Item 6.D., Resolution



Blank Page



Quint & Thimmig LLP 4/19/17
4/24/17

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 2 TO FISCAL AGENT AGREEMENT

by and between the

ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

and

MUEFG UNION BANK, N.A.,
as Fiscal Agent

dated as of June 1, 2017

relating to:
Limited Obligation Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2007-A
Association of Bay Area Governments
Windemere Ranch Reassessment District

01009.43:]14648
Item 6.D., Supplemental Agreement



SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 2 TO FISCAL AGENT AGREEMENT

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 2 TO FISCAL AGENT AGREEMENT (this
“Supplemental Agreement No. 2”), dated as of June 1, 2017, is by and between the
ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS, a joint exercise of powers authority
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the “Agency”),
and MUFG Union Bank, N.A. (formerly known as Union Bank of California, N.A.), as fiscal
agent (the “Fiscal Agent”) under a Fiscal Agent Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2007 (the
“Original Fiscal Agent Agreement”) by and between the Fiscal Agent and the Agency.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, on June 26, 2007, the Agency issued its $ initial principal amount
of Limited Obligation Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2007-A, Association of Bay Area
Governments Windemere Ranch Reassessment District (the “Bonds”) pursuant to the Original
Fiscal Agent Agreement to provide funds to refund three series of special assessment bonds of
the Agency, all as more fully set forth in the Original Fiscal Agent Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Bonds were purchased by the ABAG Finance Authority For Nonprofit
Corporations (the “Authority”) with proceeds of its ABAG Finance Authority For Nonprofit
Corporations Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2007-A (Windemere Ranch Infrastructure Financing
Program) (the “2007-A Authority Bonds”) and its ABAG Finance Authority For Nonprofit
Corporations Revenue Bonds, Subordinate Series 2007-B (Windemere Ranch Infrastructure
Financing Program) (the “2007-B Authority Bonds” and, together with the Series 2007-A
Authority Bonds, the “2007 Authority Bonds”), which 2007 Authority Bonds have been
assigned to and registered in the name of MUFG Union Bank, N.A. (formerly known as Union
Bank of California, N.A.), as trustee (the “Trustee”) under an Indenture of Trust, dated as of
June 1, 2007 (the “Original Indenture”), between the Authority and the Trustee; and

WHEREAS, on August 28, 2014, the Authority issued its ABAG Finance Authority For
Nonprofit Corporations Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2014-A (Windemere Ranch
Infrastructure Financing Program) (the “2014 Authority Bonds”), pursuant to the Original
Indenture as amended and supplemented by a First Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as
of August 1, 2014 (the “First Supplement”), between the Authority and the Trustee, and the net
proceeds of the 2014 Authority Bonds were used to refund, in whole, the outstanding 2007-B
Authority Bonds”; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2014 Authority Bonds, the Agency
entered into a Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to Fiscal Agent Agreement, dated as of August 1,
2014, between the Agency and the Fiscal Agent (“Supplemental Agreement No. 1”), amending
the Fiscal Agent Agreement in order to facilitate the refunding of the 2007-B Authority Bonds
(the Original Fiscal Agent Agreement, as amended and supplemented by Supplemental
Agreement No. 1, is referred to herein as the “Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority has now determined to issue its ABAG Finance Authority For
Nonprofit Corporations Refunding Revenue Bonds, Subordinate Series 2017-A (Windemere
Ranch Infrastructure Financing Program) and its ABAG Finance Authority For Nonprofit
Corporations Taxable Refunding Revenue Bonds, Subordinate Series 2017-B (Windemere Ranch
Infrastructure Financing Program) (collectively, the “2017 Authority Bonds”) pursuant to the
Original Indenture, as amended and supplemented by the First Supplement, and as further
amended and supplemented by a Second Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as of June 1,

Item 6.D., Supplemental Agreement



2017, between the Authority and the Trustee, with the net proceeds of the 2017 Authority Bonds
to be used to currently refund the outstanding 2007-A Authority Bonds; and

WHEREAS, in order to facilitate the refunding of the 2007-A Authority Bonds, the
Agency now desires to amend and supplement the Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement as set forth
in this Supplemental Agreement No. 2; and

WHEREAS, Section 8.01(B) of the Original Fiscal Agent Agreement authorizes the
modification or amendment of the Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement by means of a
Supplemental Agreement (as defined in the Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement), in order to make
modifications not adversely affecting any outstanding series of Bonds in any material respect;
and

WHEREAS, in its Resolution approving this Supplemental Agreement No. 2, the
Agency found and determined that the modifications and supplements to the Revised Fiscal
Agent Agreement set forth in this Supplemental Agreement No. 2 do not adversely affect any of
the outstanding Bonds in any material respect; and

WHEREAS, this Supplemental Agreement No. 2 is a “Supplemental Agreement” as
defined in Section 1.03 of the Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Agency and the Fiscal Agent are entering into this Supplemental
Agreement No. 2 pursuant to Sections 8.01(B) of the Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement.

AGREEMENT:
NOW, THEREFORE, the Agency and the Fiscal Agent agree as follows:

Section 1. Amendments. (a) The definition “Continuing Disclosure Agreement” in
Section 1.03 of the Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement is hereby amended and restated in whole to
read as follows:

“’Continuing Disclosure Agreement’ shall mean (i) the Issuer Continuing
Disclosure Certificate executed by the Authority and agreed to and accepted by NBS
Local Government Solutions, as Dissemination Agent thereunder, in connection with the
issuance of the ABAG Finance Authority For Nonprofit Corporations Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2014-A (Windemere Ranch Infrastructure Financing
Program), as originally executed and as it may be amended from time to time in
accordance with its terms; together with (ii) the Issuer Continuing Disclosure Certificate
executed by the Authority and agreed to and accepted by NBS Local Government
Solutions, as Dissemination Agent thereunder, in connection with the issuance of the
ABAG Finance Authority For Nonprofit Corporations Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Subordinate Series 2017-A (Windemere Ranch Infrastructure Financing Program) and
the ABAG Finance Authority For Nonprofit Corporations Taxable Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Subordinate Series 2017-B (Windemere Ranch Infrastructure Financing Program),
as originally executed and as it may be amended from time to time in accordance with
its terms.”

(b) Section 2.03(A) of the Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement is hereby amended by adding
thereto, as a new last paragraph thereof, the following:

“Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the funds transferred
to the Fiscal Agent by the Trustee on the 2017 Bonds Closing Date (as defined in Section

Item 6.D., Supplemental Agreement



4.02(E)) pursuant to Section 12.9(d) of the Authority Bonds Indenture in the amount of
shall be used to redeem a portion of the Bonds on the 2017 Bonds Closing
Date, being the portion of the Bonds attributable to Contra Costa County Assessor’s
Parcel No. 223-100-018, such that the lien for payment of the Reassessments on such
parcel may be fully released once such redemption has occurred. The redemption price
of the Bonds to be so redeemed shall be transferred to MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as
Escrow Bank (the “Escrow Bank”) under the Escrow Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2017
(the “Escrow Agreement”), between the Authority and the Escrow Bank, to be used
along with other funds identified in the Escrow Agreement to redeem Authority Bonds
on the 2017 Bonds Closing Date as provided for in the Escrow Agreement.”

(c) Section 4.02 of the Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement is hereby amended by adding
thereto, as a new subsection (E) thereto, the following:

“(E) Notwithstanding the foregoing, in connection with the September 2, 2017
Interest Payment Date, the Fiscal Agent shall withdraw from the Redemption Fund and
pay to the Owners of the Bonds on the date of issuance of the Authority’s Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Subordinate Series 2017-A (Windemere Ranch Infrastructure Financing
Program), and its Taxable Refunding Revenue Bonds, Subordinate Series 2017-B
(Windemere Ranch Infrastructure Financing Program) (the “2017 Bonds Closing Date”),
the Debt Service due on the Bonds on September 2, 2017.”

(d) Section 5.01 of the Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement is hereby amended by adding
thereto, as a new last paragraph thereof, the following:

“Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to the September 2, 2017 Interest
Payment Date, the Agency shall remit to the Fiscal Agent on or before the 2017 Bonds
Closing Date (as defined in Section 4.02(E)), an amount equal to the Debt Service due on
the Bonds on September 2, 2017, for deposit by the Fiscal Agent into the Redemption
Fund.”

Section 2. Execution in Several Counterparts. This Supplemental Agreement No. 2 may
be executed in any number of counterparts, each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be
deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the
same instrument.

Section 3. Governing Law. This Supplemental Agreement No. 2 shall be governed by
and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California applicable to contracts
made and performed in such State.

Section 4. Incorporation By Reference. The Agency and the Fiscal Agent agree that the
amendments contained in this Supplemental Agreement No. 2 shall be incorporated by this
reference thereto into the Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement, which Revised Fiscal Agent
Agreement as so amended shall serve as the sole operative Fiscal Agent Agreement in
connection with the Bonds.

Section 5. Ratification and Reaffirmation of Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement. Except as
hereby expressly amended, the Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect; and the Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement, as amended hereby, is ratified and confirmed.

Section 6. Interpretation. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of the
Revised Fiscal Agent Agreement and the provisions of this Supplemental Agreement No. 2, the
provisions of this Supplemental Agreement No. 2 shall control.

Item 6.D., Supplemental Agreement



Section 7. Effective Date. This Supplemental Agreement No. 2 shall become effective
upon the execution hereof by the Agency and the Fiscal Agent.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Agency and the Fiscal Agent have caused this
Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to Fiscal Agent Agreement to executed as of the respective
dates alongside their signatures below.

ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA
GOVERNMENTS

Executed by the Agency By:

on June __, 2017. Finance Director

MUFG UNION BANK, N.A,, as Fiscal Agent

Executed by the Fiscal Agent By:
on June __, 2017. Authorized Officer
01009.43:714648

4-

Item 6.D., Supplemental Agreement



Blank Page



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area

ABAG

Date: May 10, 2017
To: ABAG Executive Board
From: Courtney Ruby

Director, Finance and Administrative Services

Subject: Approval of Contract with The Civic Edge

Executive Summary

The contract with The Civic Edge is to provide a range of design and communications services
for presentations and for conferences from July 1, 2016, and June 30, 2017. This contract shall
not exceed a maximum of $Fifty thousand, six hundred and fifty five Dollars ($50,655.00)

Recommended Action

The Executive Board is requested to approve the attached Contract for Services with The Civic
Edge.

Attachments

Contract for Services
Attachment A to Contract for Services

Iltem 6.E.



Blank Page



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
CONTRACT FOR SERVICES

This contract is made and entered into effective July 1, 2016, by and between the Association of
Bay Area Governments (ABAG), a public entity formed under the California Joint Exercise of
Powers Act, Government Code Sections 6500, et seq. and The Civic Edge (Consultant), a
Limited Liability Partnership, State of California.

REcCITALS

A. ABAG wishes to retain Consultant to provide a range of design and communications services
for presentations and conferences.

B. Consultant has experience and expertise in providing the required services.
AGREEMENT
1. Retention of Consultant. ABAG agrees to engage Consultant and Consultant agrees to
undertake, carry out, and complete in a satisfactory and proper manner certain work and

services set forth in the attached Exhibit A, “Scope of Services,” which is incorporated herein
by this reference.

2. Time of Performance. Consultant shall begin performance of the services set forth in Exhibit
A, as soon as possible after written notice to commence from ABAG. Such services shall be
undertaken in such sequence as to assure their expeditious completion in the light of the
purposes of this contract, but in any event all such services shall be completed by June 30,
2017,

3. Independent Consultant. Consultant renders services under this contract as an independent
contractor. None of Consultant’s agents or employees shall be agents or employees of
ABAG, unless otherwise agreed to by ABAG.

4. Subcontractors. Consultant may not subcontract any of the services provided for under this
contract without the express written approval of ABAG, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld. Upon termination of any subcontract, ABAG shall be notified
immediately.

5. Compensation Method and Payment Procedures.

(a) Maximum Amount. Consultant shall be compensated for all services to be rendered
under this contract in a maximum sum not to exceed $Fifty thousand, six hundred and
fifty five Dollars ($50,655.00).

(b) Compensation Method. Consultant will be compensated based on time expended in
providing the services set forth in the scope of work. The amount of the compensation
will be based on the hourly rates for the individuals, or categories of individuals, as the

Page 1 of 9
Iltem 6.E., Contract



case may be, that is listed in Exhibit A. Consultant will not charge, and ABAG wil not
pay, any additional sums for work performed, except for allowed reimburseable costs.

(c) Reimburseable Costs. ABAG will pay Consultant for the types of necessary expenses
incurred by it in performing the services required under this contract and described as
‘reimburseable costs’ in Exhibit A, provided that Consultant must obtain ABAG’s
preapproval for any such cost that exceeds Two thousand Dollars ($2,000).

(d) Invoicing Procedures. Consultant will be paid in arrears, based upon invoices submitted
by Consultant to ABAG. Consultant will submit invoices for payment no more frequently
than once monthly. ABAG will promptly review Consultant's invoices, approve or
disapprove them for payment. ABAG will pay Consultant within ten (10) working days.
Each invoice shall specify in detail Consultant's services performed, the personnel
performing the work, the hours worked and billing rate. The invoice will separately
itemize reimbursable costs and other allowable charges with receipts attached.

Termination.

(a) Termination for Cause. If, through any cause, Consultant fails to fulfill in timely and
proper manner its obligations under this contract, or if Consultant shall violate any
covenants, conditions, or stipulations of this contract, and should such failure or violation
continue unremedied for a period of thirty (30) days after receipt of ABAG’s written
notice to Consultant specifying the details of such failure or violation, then ABAG may
terminate this contract by giving not less than five (5) days prior written notice of such
termination which specifies the effective date thereof. Upon termination under this
paragraph, all unfinished or finished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, models,
photographs, reports, and other materials prepared by Consultant this contract, shall, at
the option of ABAG, become ABAG’s property and Consultant shall be entitled to
receive just and equitable compensation for satisfactory work completed to the date of
termination. Notwithstanding the above, Consultant shall not be relieved of liability to
ABAG for damages sustained by ABAG by virtue of any breach of the contract by
Consultant, and ABAG may withhold any payment to Consultant for the purpose of set-
off until such time as the exact amount of damage due ABAG from Consultant is
determined.

(b) Termination for Convenience. ABAG may terminate this contract at any time by giving
not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice of termination to Consultant which shall
specify the effective date thereof. Upon termination under this paragraph, all finished or
unfinished documents and other materials described in paragraph (a) shall at the option of
ABAG become its property. If the contract is terminated by ABAG as provided in this
paragraph, Consultant shall be paid for services actually performed at the rate set forth in
Exhibit A; provided that, if this contract is terminated due to the fault of Consultant, only
the paragraph relative to termination for cause shall apply.

Hold Harmless. Consultant shall hold harmless, defend at its own expense and indemnify,
ABAG and its members, officers and employees (Indemnitees) against any and all liability,
claims, losses, damages, or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising from all
acts or omissions to act of Consultant or its officers, agents, or employees in rendering

Page 2 of 9
Iltem 6.E., Contract



10.

11.

12.

13.

services under this contract; excluding, however, such liability, claims, losses, damages or
expenses resulting from an intentional act or the gross negligence of an Indemnitee.

Waiver. The waiver by a party of a breach by the other party of any provision of this
contract shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach either
of the same or of a different provision of this contract.

Assignment. This contract shall not be assigned, transferred, hypothecated or pledged by
Consultant or ABAG without prior written consent of the other party which consent shall not
be unreasonably withheld; provided, however, that the foregoing provision will not apply to
assignments by a party to an affiliate or subsidiary of the party making the assignment.

Amendment. This contract may only be amended by a writing signed by both parties.

Entire Agreement. This contract and the attachments hereto, comprise the entire agreement
between the parties as to the services to be rendered under it. This contract supersedes any
and all other contracts either oral or in writing between ABAG and Consultant with respect
to the subject matter hereof and contains all of the covenants and contracts between the
parties with respect to such matters. ABAG and Consultant acknowledge that no
representations, inducements, promises or agreements, orally or otherwise, have been made
to any party, or anyone acting on behalf of any party, which are not embodied herein, and
that no other contract, statement, or promise not contained in this contract shall be valid or
binding.

Conflict of Interest. Consultant covenants that presently there is no interest, and none shall
be acquired, direct or indirect, which conflicts in any material manner or degree with its
performance of services as required under this contract. Consultant further covenants that in
the performance of this contract, no person having any interest shall be employed by it.

Notices. Any notices, demands, or elections required or permitted to be given or made
hereunder shall be in writing, and delivered, sent by facsimile, or sent by email as follows:

Association of Bay Area Governments

375 Beale Street, Suite 700

Attn: Courtney Ruby, Director of Administrative Services
Phone: 415-820-7923

Fax: 415-660-3595

Email: courtneyr@abag.ca.gov

Civic Edge Consulting

25 Taylor Street

San Francisco, CA 94102

Attn: Amber Shipley

Phone: 415-915-0511

Email: Shipley@thecivicedge.com

Page 3 of 9
Iltem 6.E., Contract



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Binding on Heirs. This contract shall be binding upon the heirs, successors, assigns, or
transferees of ABAG or Consultant, as the case may be. This provision shall not be
construed as an authorization to assign, transfer, hypothecate or pledge this contract other
than as provided above.

Prohibited Interest. Consultant’s officers, employees or agents shall neither solicit nor accept
gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from contractors, potential contractors, or
parties to subcontracts.

Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence in this contract.

Uncontrollable Forces. If an event occurs that is beyond the control of a party to this
contract, which prevents it from performing under this contract, neither party, as the case
may be, will be considered to be in default; except the preceding condition will not apply to
ABAG’s obligation to make all payments when due as called for under this contract.

In addition, neither party will be liable to each other for damages or costs resulting from its
failure to perform, when a failure of performance is due to an event which is beyond the
control of the party affected by it (hereafter referred to as “uncontrollable forces”). The party
affected by an uncontrollable force will promptly provide written notice to the other party
describing the nature of the event; the length of time it is expected to continue; and the
party’s efforts (planned or under way) to overcome the affects of the event.

The term “uncontrollable force” as used in this Section means natural, operational and
mechanical events that are not within the control of the party affected by the event, and
which that party is unable to prevent or overcome. For example, these include, but are not
limited to, occurrences such as acts of God, storms, floods, earthquakes, tornadoes; failure to
receive needed information in a timely manner that will enable the performance of this
contract; the necessity for making unscheduled, emergency repairs; labor disruptions;
shortages, disruptions or shortages in the supply or transportation of materials and supplies;
and acts of government authorities. Uncontrollable forces do not include economic events,
like changes in market conditions or prices.

Records/Audit. Consultant shall keep complete and accurate books and records of all
financial aspects of its relationship with ABAG in accordance with generally-accepted
accounting principles. Consultant shall permit authorized representatives of ABAG to
inspect, copy, and audit all data and records of Consultant relating to its performance of
services under this contract. Consultant shall maintain all such data and records intact for a
period of not less than three (3) years after the date that services are completed hereunder or
this contract is otherwise terminated.

Headings. The descriptive headings used in this contract are for convenience only and shall
not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of its provisions.

Governing Law. This contract will be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of
the State of California.

Page 4 of 9
Iltem 6.E., Contract



21. Resolution of Disputes. If a dispute arises between the parties regarding a provision
contained in this contract, or a party’s performance of its obligations as stated in the contract,
or any other matter governed by the terms of the contract, the parties agree that such dispute
will be resolved in the manner prescribed in this Section.

(a) Promptly upon the occurrence of the dispute, the aggrieved party will notify the other
party in writing (the “Claimant’s Statement”), setting forth in sufficient detail the basis for
the dispute, the aggrieved party’s position and its proposal for resolution of the dispute.
Within ten (10) days following receipt of the Claimant’s Statement, the other party will
respond in writing (the “Responsive Statement”) setting forth in sufficient detail the
respondent’s position and its proposal for resolution of the dispute.

(b) Within ten (10) business days after the aggrieved party’s receipt of the Responsive
Statement, the parties will meet and attempt in good faith to expeditiously negotiate a
resolution to the dispute. In attendance for each party at that opening session and throughout
the dispute resolution procedure described in this Section, will be a representative or
representatives of each party who is authorized to act for the party and resolve the dispute
without resort to higher authority. If the parties cannot reach a mutually acceptable solution
within thirty (30) days after discussions begin, either party may refer the matter to arbitration
in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association.

(c) Negotiations undertaken pursuant to this Section will be deemed confidential as
settlement discussions. Nothing said by a party, nor any position taken during the course of
the negotiations, will be introduced as evidence by the opposing party in any subsequent
litigation concerning the same or related transactions.

22. Insurance Requirements. See Exhibit B.

Page 5 of 9
Iltem 6.E., Contract



23. Severability. Should any part of this contract be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or beyond
the authority of either party to enter into or carry out, such decision shall not affect the
validity of the remainder of this contract, which shall continue in full force and effect;
provided that, the remainder of this contract can, absent the excised portion, be reasonably
interpreted to give effect to the intentions of the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this contract on the dates set forth below.

Dated:

Dated:

Approved as to Legal Form and Content:

The Civic Edge:

Signature

Print Name and Title

Association of Bay Area Governments:

Brad Paul, Acting Executive Director

Kenneth K. Moy, Legal Counsel
Association of Bay Area Governments

Page 6 of 9
Iltem 6.E., Contract



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND BUDGET
Consultant will provide communications and graphics support services to ABAG staff in
connection with ongoing programs, meetings and special events.

ABAG staff will assign specific tasks to Consultant on an as needed basis. The staff with
authority to assign tasks to Consultant is/are:

Leah Zippert, Senior Communications Officer
Marti Paschal, Assistant Director of Administative Services

All tasks must include a cost estimate agreed to by Consultant.

Consultants will be compensated on a time and materials basis. The hourly rates for Consultant
staff are as follows:

Lisbet Sunshine $230
Amber Shipley $200
Annie Dulka $135
Paisley Strellis $135
Bryan Nanista $100

Page 7 of 9
Iltem 6.E., Contract



EXHIBIT B
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Insurance Requirements. Consultant shall maintain insurance as required by this contract to the
fullest amount allowed by law and shall maintain insurance for a period of five (5) years
following the completion of this project. Consultant shall provide a copy of section 21 of this
contract and these insurance requirements to its insurance broker or insurer to confirm
compliance. In the event Consultant fails to obtain or maintain completed operations coverage as
required by this agreement, ABAG, at its sole discretion, may purchase the coverage required
and the cost will be paid by Consultant. The limits of insurance required in hereunder may be
satisfied by a combination of primary and umbrella or excess insurance. Any umbrella or excess
insurance shall contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that such coverage shall also apply
on a primary and non-contributory basis for the benefit of the Indemnitees (if agreed to in a
written contract or agreement) before the any Indemnitee’s own Insurance or self-insurance shall
be called upon to protect it as a named insured.

(@) Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as broad as:
Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 0001).

Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any
auto).

Workers” Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and Employer’s
Liability Insurance.

Errors and Omissions Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant’s profession. Architects’
and engineers’ coverage is to be endorsed to include contractual liability.

(b) Minimum Limits of Insurance. Consultant shall maintain limits no less than:

General Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property
damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit
is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.
Employer’s Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

Errors and Omissions Liability: $1,000,000 per claim/aggregate.

Page 8 of 9
Iltem 6.E., Contract



(c) Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be
declared to and approved by ABAG. The insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or
self-insured retentions as respects the Indemnitees; or the Consultant shall satisfy any such
deductibles or self-insured retentions. In addition, policies containing any self-insured retention
(SIR) provision shall provide or be endorsed to provide that the SIR may be satisfied by either
the named Insured or any of the Indemnitees.

(d) Other Insurance Provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability
policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

(i) The Indemnitees are to be covered as additional insureds as respects: liability arising
out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of Consultant; completed operations; or
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Consultant.

(i) For any claims related to this project, the Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be
primary insurance as respects the Indemnitees.

(iii) Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Indemnitees shall be excess of
Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

(iv) Except for General Liability and Automobile Liability, each insurance policy
required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be canceled by either
party, except after thirty(30) days’ prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested,
has been given to ABAG. For General Liability and Automobile Liability, Consultant shall
provide ABAG with thirty (30) day’s prior notice of cancellation by either the insurer or
Consultant.

(v) Coverage shall not extend to any defense or indemnity coverage for the active
negligence of the Indemnitees in any case where an agreement to defend and indemnify the
Indemnitees would be invalid under Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the Civil Code.

(e) Other Insurance Provisions — Workers Compensation. The Workers Compensation
insurance shall be endorsed to waive subrogation against the Indemnitees.

(F) Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s
rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to ABAG.

(9) Verification of Coverage. Consultant shall furnish the ABAG with original certificates and
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause. All certificates and
endorsements are to be received and approved by ABAG before work commences. ABAG
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies,
including endorsements effecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time.

Page 9 of 9
Iltem 6.E., Contract



Blank Page



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area

ABAG
AGENDA

LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION COMMITTEE

Thursday, May 18, 2017, 3:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.
Location:

Bay Area Metro Center
Board Room

375 Beale Street

San Francisco, California

Committee Members:

Scott Haggerty, Supervisor, County of Alameda—Chair
David Cortese, Supervisor, County of Santa Clara—EXx officio
Dave Hudson, Vice Mayor, City of San Ramon

Karen Mitchoff, Supervisor, County of Contra Costa

Julie Pierce, Councilmember, City of Clayton—EXx officio
Harry Price, Mayor, City of Fairfield

David Rabbitt, Supervisor, County of Sonoma—EXx officio
Greg Scharff, Mayor, City of Palo Alto

The ABAG Legislation and Governmental Organization Committee may act on any item on this

agenda.

Agenda and attachments available at http://abag.ca.gov/meetings/

This meeting is scheduled to be webcast live at http://abag.ca.gov/meetings/
For information, contact Fred Castro, Clerk of the Board, at (415) 820 7913.

CALL TO ORDER /ROLL CALL / CONFIRM QUORUM
2. PUBLIC COMMENT

INFORMATION
3. COMMITTEE ANNOUNCEMENTS

INFORMATION

ltem 7


http://abag.ca.gov/meetings/
http://abag.ca.gov/meetings/

ABAG Legislation and Governmental Organization Committee
May 18, 2017
Page 2

4.

APPROVAL OF ABAG LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION
COMMITTEE SUMMARY MINUTES OF MEETING ON APRIL 20, 2017

ACTION

Attachment: Summary Minutes of April 20, 2017

REPORT ON NEW BILLS

ACTION

Duane Bay, ABAG Assistant Planning and Research Director
AB 494 (Bloom) Land use: accessory dwelling units

SB 167 (Skinner) Housing Accountability Act

REPORT ON MTC AND ABAG JOINT HOUSING PRINCIPLES
ACTION

Rebecca Long, MTC Government Relations Manager, and Georgia Gann Dohrmann, MTC
Assistant Government Relations Manager

Attachment: Memo MTC and ABAG Draft Joint Housing Principles; Draft MTC and ABAG
Joint Housing Principles

AB 686 (Santiago) Housing discrimination: affirmatively further fair housing
Attachments: AB 686 MTC Letter of Opposition Unless Amended; AB 686 Bill Analysis

REPORT ON AB 1088 (EGGMAN) MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL HOUSING: ENERGY
PROGRAMS

ACTION

Jenny Berg, ABAG Principal BayREN Program Manager

AB 1088 (Eggman) Multifamily residential housing: energy programs
REPORT ON LEGISLATION—BILL STATUS UPDATE

ACTION

Brad Paul, ABAG Acting Executive Director

AB 18 (Garcia) California Clean Water, Climate, and Coastal Protection and Outdoor Access
for All Act of 2018

AB 30 (Caballero) Planning-and-zoning:specificplan—housing—Gut and Amend --

Environmental quality: judicial review: strip mall conversion housing projects
AB 59 (Thurmond) Local Housing Trust Fund Matching Grant Program

AB 71 (Chiu) Taxes: credits: Low-income housing: allocation increase

AB 73 (Chiu) Planning and zoning: housing sustainability districts

AB 74 (Chiu) Housing for a Healthy California Program

AB 184 (Berman) Sea level rise planning: databases

AB 358 (Grayson) Regional economic development areas

AB 890 (Medina) Local land use initiatives: environmental review

ltem 7


http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB494
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB167
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB686
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1088
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB18
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB30
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB59
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB71
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB73
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB74
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB184
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB358
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB890

ABAG Legislation and Governmental Organization Committee
May 18, 2017
Page 3

AB 915 (Ting) Planning and zoning: housing

AB 932 (Ting) Housing: affordable housing

AB 1086 (Daly) Local government: housing

AB 1397 (Low) Local planning: housing element: inventory for land for residential
development

AB 1404 (Berman) California Environmental Quality Act: categorical exemption: Infill
development

AB 1423 (Chiu) Housing data

AB 1433 (Wood) Climate Adaptation and Resilience Based on Nature Act
AB 1585 (Bloom) Planning and zoning: affordable housing: single application
SB 2 (Atkins) Building Homes and Jobs Act

SB 3 (Beall) Affordable Housing Bond Act of 2018

SB 5 (De Leon) California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, Coastal Protection, and Outdoor
Access for All Act of 2018

SB 35 (Wiener) Planning and Zoning: affordable housing: streamlined approval process
SB 435 (Dodd) Williamson Act: payments to local governments
SB 540 (Roth) Workforce Housing Opportunity Zone
SB 564 (McGuire) Joint powers authorities: Water Bill Savings Act
Attachment: Legislation Summary

9. REPORT ON LEGISLATIVE WORKSHOP AND RECEPTION—HIGHLIGHTS
INFORMATION

10. ADJOURNMENT

The next meeting of the ABAG Legislation and Governmental Organization Committee will
be on July 20, 2017.

Submitted:

/s/ Brad Paul, Acting Executive Director

Date Submitted: May 10, 2017
Date Posted: May 15, 2017

ltem 7


http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB915
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB932
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1086
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1397
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1404
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1423http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1423
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1433
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1585
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB5
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB35
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB435
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB540
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB564

Blank Page



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area

ABAG
AGENDA

FINANCE AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
Thursday, May 18, 2017, 5:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.
Location:

Bay Area Metro Center
Board Room

375 Beale Street

San Francisco, California

Committee Members:

Karen Mitchoff, Supervisor, County of Contra Costa—Chair
Greg Scharff, Mayor, City of Palo Alto—Vice Chair

Annie Campbell Washington, Councilmember, City of Oakland
Pradeep Gupta, Mayor, City of South San Francisco

Scott Haggerty, Supervisor, County of Alameda

Erin Hannigan, Supervisor, County of Solano

David Cortese, Supervisor, County of Santa Clara—EXx officio
Julie Pierce, Councilmember, City of Clayton—EXx officio
David Rabbitt, Supervisor, County of Sonoma—EXx officio

The ABAG Finance and Personnel Committee may act on any item on this agenda.
Agenda and attachments and webcast available at abag.ca.gov
For information, contact Fred Castro, Clerk of the Board, at (415) 820 7913.

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / CONFIRM QUORUM
2. PUBLIC COMMENT

INFORMATION
3. COMMITTEE ANNOUNCEMENTS

INFORMATION

4. APPROVAL OF ABAG FINANCE AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE SUMMARY MINUTES
OF MEETING ON APRIL 20, 2017

ACTION
Attachment: Summary Minutes of April 20, 2017

Iltem 8


http://abag.ca.gov/

ABAG Finance and Personnel Committee

May 18, 2017

Page 2

5. REPORT ON CONTRACTS BETWEEN $20,000 AND $50,000
INFORMATION
Attachment: Contracts between $20,000 and $50,000; Table

6. UPDATE ON PROPOSAL TO CREATE A NEW CONDUIT FINANCING JOINT POWERS
AUTHORITY—PROPOSED TIMETABLE

ACTION

Staff will present a status report on the proposal to create a new conduit financing Joint
Powers Authority, including proposed timetable.

Attachment: Memo Proposed Timetable

7. REPORT ON PROPOSED BUDGET AND WORK PROGRAM FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-
2018—PROPOSED REVISIONS AND AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR JUNE 2016

ACTION

Attachments: Memo Financial Considerations; Proposed Budget and Work Program for
Fiscal Year 2017-2018, including Planning and Communications Work Plans; Memo Audited
Financial Reports; Basic Financial Statement; Memorandum Internal Control Required
Communications; Single Audit Report; Memo Financial Reports March 2017; Indices
Financial Reports March 2017; Consultant Expenses by Program; FTEs by Program; Memo
Regional Planning Committee

8. ADJOURNMENT

The next regular meeting of the ABAG Finance and Personnel Committee is on
July 20, 2017.

Submitted:

/s/ Courtney Ruby, Finance and Administrative Services Director

Date Submitted: May 10, 2017
Date Posted: May 12, 2017

Iltem 8



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area

ABAG

Date: May 8, 2017
To: ABAG Executive Board
Fr: Kenneth Moy, Legal Counsel

Michael Hurtado, Financial Services Manager
Sheelagh Flanagan, Senior Advisor, ABAG Finance Authority

Subject: Proposed Timetable for New Financial Services JPA

Summary and Requested Action: This memorandum presents a proposed timetable for next
steps in establishing a new financial services joint powers authority. Staff requests feedback
from the committee and approval to release the timetable to the Executive Board at its May
meeting.

Background and Discussion: The committee has received briefing on the proposal to establish
a new financial services joint powers authority and the preliminary marketing and business plan.
A broader and more detailed marketing and business plan will be presented to the ABAG
Executive Board at its May meeting. Please recall that the marketing and business plan
includes a major launch of the new joint powers authority in September 2017 at several industry
conferences and conventions. One new development is a new name: Resilient California
Financing Authority (RCFA).

In order to launch in September, the RCFA must have adopted its Bylaws, fee schedule, debt
issuance policy and financing guidelines. To meet that objective, staff proposes the following
timetable:

» May 17: ABAG Finance Authority approves proposed joint powers agreement and forwards
the agreement and recommendation for ABAG’s portion of the budget for RCFA

» June 15: ABAG Executive Board approves joint powers authority, authorizes its portion of
the budget for RCFA and ratifies proposed appointments to the RCFA Board'

> July 20% RCFA Board meets to adopt Bylaws, set fee schedule and takes other set up
actions

' The RCFA joint powers agreements provides that the Chair of the ABAG Finance and
Personnel Committee (F&P) and the ABAG President be members of the RCFA Board. It also
provides that the other three (3) members of the Board be members of F&P appointed by the
Chair and the President. Per ABAG’s policy, such appointments are subject to ratification by
the Executive Board.

2 This is the date of the F&P meeting and the RCFA Board meeting would be tentatively set to
occur between the F&P and Executive Board meetings. If the time allotted (one hour) is too

ltem 9



Proposed Timetable for New Financial Services JPA
May 8, 2017
Page 2

» TBD® RCFA Executive Committee meets to set debt issuance policy and financing
guidelines

The staff is prepared to provide the RCFA Board members with an orientation session on public
financing if requested and a time and date can be set.

short, the Board members will need to agree to another date and time between June 15 and

July 20.
® This date will be set for a date after the initial RCFA Board meeting and before September 1.

ltem 9



Agenda Item Sa

Plan
BayArea

2040

TO: Joint MTC Planning Committee with the DATE: May 5, 2017
ABAG Administrative Committee

FR: Brad Paul, ABAG Acting Executive Director
Alix Bockelman, MTC Deputy Executive Director, Policy

RE: Public Hearing on the Draft Plan Bay Area 2040

MTC and ABAG will hold a public hearing at your May 12 meeting on Draft Plan Bay Area
2040, which was released on March 31st. Also on the agenda is a public hearing for the
companion Plan Bay Area 2040 Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR). The Plan
document, DEIR, and associated supplemental reports incorporate the last two years of planning
and outreach, including the forecasted development pattern, the transportation investment
strategy, and the regional context of economic and demographic change.

In the coming weeks, staff will seek feedback on the Draft Plan, Draft Action Plan, Draft EIR,
and other associated reports from policymakers and the public across the nine-county region. The
formal comment period ends at 4 p.m. on Thursday, June 1. Comments on the various documents
will be reviewed during the revision process this summer, and staff will provide a summary to
joint MTC Planning Committee/ABAG Administrative Committee in June.

Plan Document Release

The Draft Plan can be accessed at http://2040.planbayarea.org. Written comments may be
submitted by email to info@PlanBayArea.org, or via U.S. Postal Service to MTC-ABAG, Plan
Bay Area 2040 Public Comment, Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, Suite 800, San
Francisco, CA 94105.

Road to Adoption

Staff is moving forward with a range of outreach methods, including open houses, public hearings,
presentations to local elected officials and the Native American Tribal Summit, community
outreach, online survey and media briefing webinar. A general timeline is included below and a
more detailed outreach schedule is in Attachment A.

March 31: Draft Plan and associated supplemental reports released to the public
April — May: Local elected official presentations at CMA meetings in each county
April 17: Draft EIR released to the public

May: Open houses in each county, public hearings across the region, and outreach events
with community-based organizations

Item 10.A.



Joint MTC Planning Committee with the ABAG Administrative Committee Agenda Item 5a
May 5, 2017
Page 2

e May 31: end of Draft Plan and Draft EIR comment periods :

e June 9: presentation to joint MTC Planning/ABAG Administrative Committee on outreach
meetings and other public feedback

e July: final adoption of Plan Bay Area 2040 (Plan, Action Plan, and EIR) by MTC and

ABAG
Brad Paul © 11x A. IBockelman
Attachments:

e Attachment A: Detailed Outreach Schedule
e Presentation

MM :kv&dv

JACOMMITTE\Planning Committee\2017\05_PLNG_May 2017\5ai_pba40_release v2.docx

Item 10.A.



Joint MTC Planning Committee with the ABAG Administrative Committee

May 5, 2017

Plan Bay Area 2040 Outreach Schedule

Attachment B
Agenda Item Sa

After a multi-year planning effort, the Draft Plan Bay Area 2040 was released for public review
and comment on March 31, 2017. With this major milestone comes a round of public

engagement, including nine open houses and three public hearings.

Open Houses and Venue/ Date/ Time
Public Hearings Address
Alameda County Fremont City Hall (City Council Chambers) | Thursday, May 4
Open House 3300 Capitol Avenue 6:30 p.m. to 8:30 p.m.
Fremont
Contra Costa County Embassy Suites (Contra Costa Ballroom) Wednesday, May 10
Open House 1345 Treat Blvd. 6:30 p.m. to 8:30 p.m.
Walnut Creek
Marin County Mill Valley Community Center Saturday, May 20
Public Workshop and 180 Camino Alto 8:30 a.m. Registration/Open House
Open House Mill Valley 9 a.m. Presentation
Napa County Elks Lodge Monday, May 15
Open House 2840 Soscol Avenue 6 p.m. to 8 p.m.
Napa

San Francisco

Bay Area Metro Center

Wednesday, May 17

Redwood City

Open House 375 Beale Street 6:30 p.m. to 8:30 p.m.
San Francisco

San Mateo Sequoia High School (Multi-Purpose Room) | Thursday, May 4

County Open House 1201 Brewster Avenue 6:30 p.m. to 8:30 p.m.

Santa Clara County
Open House

Marriott Hotel (San Jose Ballroom IV-VI)
301 S. Market Street
San Jose

Monday, May 22
6:30 p.m. to 8:30 p.m.

Solano County Open
House

Solano County Events Center
601 Texas Street
Fairfield

Monday, May 15
6 p.m. to 8 p.m.

Sonoma County Open
House

Finley Community Center
2060 W. College Ave.
Santa Rosa

Monday, May 22
6 p.m. to 8 p.m.

Public Hearing in
San Francisco

Joint MTC Planning/ ABAG Administrative
Committees

Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street
San Francisco

Friday, May 12

9:40 a.m. or immediately following
Legislation Committee, whichever
occurs later

Public Hearing in
San Jose

MLK Library (Room 225)
150 E. San Fernando Street
San Jose

Tuesday, May 16
6 p.m. to 8 p.m.

Public Hearing in
Vallejo

Vallejo Naval and Historical Museum
734 Marin Street
Vallejo

Thursday May 18
6 p.m. to 8 p.m.

In addition to the open houses and public hearings, we will hold four meetings with community-
based organizations and nine briefings with elected officials (one in each county) during the
months of April and May.

The deadline for public comment is 4 p.m., June 1, 2017. Submit comments to info@PlanBayArea.org.

Item 10.A.




Ehcirrllﬁrea //\
2040 ...lii o li
— A

OVERVIEW ———

Joint MTC Planning

1111111111



Plan
BayArea

Item 10.A.



Plan

Our economy is booming - but we’re not building enough housing. 32“61296

Jobs added from 2011 through 2015: Housing units built from 2011 through 2015: ?'E 3 Cities: - buil f
ousing unit built for every
Bayside Cities and Towns:

1 housing unit built for every
15 jobs created

Inland, Coastal, Delta Cities
and Towns:
1 housing unit built for every

Regionally: 1 house was built for every 8 jobs created 3 jobs created

http://www.dof.ca.gov/research/demographic/reports/estimates/e-5/2011-20/view.php

Item 10.A.



This current boom is translating into new pressures on our e
transportation system — even worse than the “dot com” boom. 2040
-

% CHANGE SINCE 2000
100% Caltrain Ridership

per-capita

80%

60%
Congested Delay

per-worker

40%

BART Ridership

per-capita

20%

0%
Transit Ridership
per-capita, regional
-20%
2000 2005 2010 2015
Source: Vital Signs (MTC 2015; ACS 2014; NTD 2014)

Item 10.A.



Plan

BayArea
The Road So Far 2040

March 31
November 2016 — March 2017 Plan

Preparation of Draft Plan, Draft Action Plan and Draft EIR / ‘ Qi ment

o Release

November 2016 \ '
Adoption of Final Preferred Scenario
June — September 2016

é Preparation and presentations of Draft Preferred Scenario

Fall 2015

Adoption of Plan Targets September 2015 — May 2016

Project performance assessment and scenario evaluation
Second round of outreach

@
Spring 2015
Initial outreach for Plan Bay Area 2040 and performance framework

Item 10.A.



The Draft Plan accelerates housing growth in the “Big 3" cities, Bere

with the lowest growth forecasted for Inland cities and towns.

. .
=
. (Y1) o
o é .
o )

L

Where will the region
plan for the 820,000

i
|
o

Big 3 Cities

46%

new households?

Bayside

33%

Inland, Coastal,

21%

Delta
=
. . .
in PDA ; ; % .
m\\\\\\\\\\\
=

outside PDA 23% i
;/////

o

faan

G

G

G L
G G
G
B L /////;/;%f////

o
L
\\\\§\\\\\\\\\\\\\

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Item 10.A.



More than 80 percent of future regional job growth is expected in =

BayArea
“Big 3" and Bayside cities. 204
. \\Ei\i\\
Where will the region o
plan for the 1.3 million / , . .. 43%
new jobs?
Bayside 40%

Inland, Coastal,

17%

Delta
_—

o
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% | el ///////////////%
s

Item 10.A.



Transportation investments support land use through an emphasis {7

in operations, maintenance, and modernization. 2040

Plan Bay Area 2040 Funding Distribution
$5 billion in Year-Of-Expenditure $
2%

90% $31 billion

Operate, Maintain,
and Modernize

®m Operate and Maintain -

Transit
® Operate and Maintain -

Roads/Freeways/Bridges
Modernize

$49 billion "
16% $152 billion

50% ® Expand

10%

Expand Existing
System

Debt Service and Cost
Contingency

$66 billion
22%

Total = $303 Billion 8

Item 10.A.



TARGET ACHIEVED (5)

Climate Protection

Adequate Housing

Open Space and
Agricultural
Preservation

Middle-Wage Job
Creation

Goods Movement/
Congestion
Reduction

RO

solve the region’s affordability challenges.

RIGHT DIRECTION (4)

Healthy and Safe
Communities

Affordable Housing

Non-Auto Mode
Q& Shift

Q Transit
& Maintenance

The Draft Plan meets our environmental goals, but it does not

WRONG DIRECTION (4)

Housing +
Transportation
Affordability

Displacement Risk

Access to Jobs

Road Maintenance

DEEO

Item 10.A.

Plan
BayArea

2040



The Draft Plan meets our environmental goals, but it does not Plan

BayArea
solve the region’s affordability challenges. 2040
Goal Draft Plan Performance

Goods Movement/Congestion Reduction -20% -29% BEST

Middle-Wage Job Creation +38% +43%

Climate Protection -15% -16%

Open Space and Agricultural Preservation 100% 100%

Adequate Housing 100% 100%

Transit Maintenance -100% -75%

Non-Auto Mode Shift +10% +3%

Affordable Housing +15% | +3%

Healthy and Safe Communities -10% -1%

Access to Jobs +20% -0%

Road Maintenance -100% +6%

Displacement Risk +0% +5%

Housing + Transportation Affordability -10% +13% WORST

Item 10.A.



Plan
BayArea

2040

The Draft Plan,
including the Draft
Action Plan, was
released for public
comment on March
31.

The Draft EIR was
released for public

comment on April
17.

Comments on all of
these draft
documents will be
accepted through
June 1, 2017.

Plan

BayArea

2040

Section 1 — The Bay Area Today

Section 2 — What is Plan Bay Area 2040?
Section 3 — Forecasting the Future
Section 4 — Strategies and Performance

Section 5 — Action Plan

Item 10.A.



Plan

. BayArea
Overview of Plan Document 2040

Section 1: The Bay Area Today

* Provides context for the overall Plan

* Highlights existing regional
challenges - with a central focus on
the housing crisis

 Links the Plan to Vital Signs
performance monitoring work

oooooooooo
oooooooooo

mo@o. {0

Section 2: What is Plan Bay Area 2040?

» Explains what the Plan is — a regional
blueprint for growth and investment

» Highlights the goals and targets of
the Plan

12

Item 10.A.




Plan
BayArea

Overview of Plan Document 2040

Section 3: Forecasting the Future

» Discusses overall forecasts for
regional population, jobs, and
housing through 2040

« Catalogues expected transportation

revenue availability and flexibility

over the next two decades

* Delves into the specifics of the Final
Preferred Scenario - land use policy
assumptions, growth distributions,
and transport funding priorities
Indicates successes and
shortcomings based on targets

Item 10.A.



Plan The Draft Plan Document directly incorporates a draft i

:{ea/:V=lef Action Plan 5 — with its primary purpose being to tackle

issue areas like affordability where the Draft Plan
remains far off trajectory.

Housing: +12%

—_—— e _— = = e == - 670/
e ——— == —_— =
- l.".C'-::"- :*. _"_"h:- T — = o
E. — ":"-———..h__ - _—_---..__T' :
e — :"—-u.____ - - - Of

" Hou |+
Transportatic

Costs
(as a share of household — -~ — - :
income)* Income : . - Income

household

* =B

= for lower-income households

Item 10.A.



Plan

. BayArea
Overview of Plan Document 2040

Y * Summarizes progress on Plan Bay
_O Area implementation to date
/ * Proposes specific shorter-term
actions focused on areas where Plan
o _> falls short: affordability, displacement

risk, access to jobs, road maintenance

Section 5: Action Plan

Economic
Development

Housing Resilience

Item 10.A.



Plan Based on feedback received, staff will finalize the
BayAred praft Plan and Draft EIR, preparing for MTC/

2040 for adoption this summer.

Item 10.A.



Blank Page



Agenda Item Sb

Plan
BayArea

2040

TO: Joint MTC Planning Committee with the DATE: May 5, 2017
ABAG Administrative Committee

FR: Brad Paul, ABAG Acting Executive Director
Alix Bockelman, MTC Deputy Executive Director, Policy

RE: Public Hearing on the Draft Environmental Impact Report for Plan Bay Area 2040

MTC and ABAG will hold a public hearing on the Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for
Plan Bay Area 2040, which was released for public review and comment on April 17, 2017. The
purpose of this hearing is to receive oral comments on the Draft EIR. At this same meeting,
MTC and ABAG will also seek comments on the Draft Plan Bay Area 2040, released on March
31, 2017.

The Draft EIR has been prepared in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) and the CEQA Guidelines to (1) analyze the potential environmental effects of
implementation of proposed Plan’s regional pattern of household and employment growth and
transportation investments; (2) inform decision-makers, responsible and trustee agencies, and
members of the public as to the range of the environmental impacts of the proposed Plan; (3)
recommend a set of measures to mitigate significant adverse impacts; and (4) analyze a range of
reasonable alternatives to the proposed Plan.

The Draft EIR contains an executive summary, and is organized into three main sections: (1)
introduction and project description; (2) environmental analysis; and (3) alternatives to the
proposed Plan and conclusions. The document is supported by appendices documenting analysis
assumptions and results. An executive summary is attached, and the full document is available
online at http://2040.planbayarea.org/reports. Paper copies of the Draft EIR are available at The
Hub @ 375 Beale and select public libraries in all nine Bay Area counties. For a list of library
locations, visit http://www.planbayarea.org/2040-plan/access-plan.

The comment period for the Draft EIR is structured to gather input. Interested persons or
agencies can submit oral or written comments. Oral comments can be made at public hearings,
listed below, and written comments will be accepted at the public hearings; via mail to MTC
Public Information, 375 Beale Street, Suite 800, San Francisco, CA, 94105; via fax to
415.536.9800; or via email to eircomments@mtc.ca.gov. The comment period for the Draft EIR
will close at 4:00 p.m., on Thursday, June 1, 2017.

Item 10.B.



Joint MTC Planning Committee with the ABAG Administrative Committee Agenda Item 5b
May 5, 2017

The list of public hearings is as follows:

e Friday, May 12, 9:40 a.m.: Public Hearing at Joint MTC Planning and ABAG
Administrative Committees, Bay Area Metro Center, Board Room, 375 Beale Street, San
Francisco

e Tuesday, May 16, 6 p.m. to 8 p.m.: Public Hearing in San Jose, Martin Luther King
Library, Room 225, 150 E. San Fernando Street, San Jose

e Thursday, May 18, 6 p.m. to 8 p.m.: Public Hearing in Vallejo, Vallejo Naval and
Historical Museum, 734 Marin Street, Vallejo

A Final EIR will be prepared following public review and comment on the Draft EIR. The Final
EIR will consist of changes to the Draft EIR and written responses to comments submitted
during the comment period on the Draft EIR. MTC and ABAG will consider this information
during their deliberations on certification of the Final EIR and adoption of the proposed Plan Bay
Area 2040. The MTC Commission and ABAG Executive Board are scheduled to adopt the Final
EIR in July along with final adoption of Plan Bay Area 2040.

@ﬂ/ﬁmﬂ Ww/ [oL——

Brad Paul * 1x A. Bockelman

Attachments:
e Attachment: Executive Summary
e Presentation

MM:an

JACOMMITTE\Planning Committee\2017\05_PLNG_May 2017\5bi_pba40eir_release v2.docx

Item 10.B.



DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT

Plan
B aY Area =S N S S S S S NN @

2040 { ! L
DRAFT EIR g ——-
SCH# 2016052041 A\ AN ST NN N TN

\ A

APRIL 2017




Draft Environmental Impact Report
For the

Plan Bay Area 2040
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)/

Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS)

State Clearinghouse Number SCH# 2016052041

PREPARED FOR:

Metropolitan Transportation Commaission
375 Beale Street, Suite 800
San Francisco, CA 94105

AND

Association of Bay Area Governments
375 Beale Street, Suite 700
San Francisco, CA 94105

PREPARED BY:

Ascent Environmental, Inc.
455 Capitol Mall, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95814

916.444.7301

April 2017

Item 10.B.



Plan Bay Area 2040 Executive Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION

This summary is provided in accordance with the State California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines
(California Code of Regulations [CCR] Section 15123). As stated in the State CEQA Guidelines (CCR Section
15123J[a]), “an environmental impact report (EIR) shall contain a brief summary of the proposed actions and
its consequences. The language of the summary should be as clear and simple as reasonably practical.” As
required by the State CEQA Guidelines, this section includes: (1) a summary description of the proposed
project; (2) a synopsis of environmental impacts and recommended mitigation measures; (3) identification of
the alternatives evaluated and of the environmentally superior alternative; (4) a discussion of the areas of
controversy associated with the project; and (5) issues to be resolved, including the choice among alternatives.

SUMMARY DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT

Background

LOCATION

The San Francisco Bay Area region includes nine counties that are aggregated geographically into four
subareas: North Bay (Marin, Napa, Solano, and Sonoma Counties); East Bay (Alameda and Contra Costa
Counties); South Bay (Santa Clara County); and the West Bay (San Francisco and San Mateo Counties). There
are 101 cities spread throughout these nine counties. The total area of the region is approximately 4.4 million
acres (7,000 square miles). The region is bordered by Mendocino, Lake, and Yolo counties to the north;
Sacramento, San Joaquin, Stanislaus, and Merced counties to the east; San Benito, Monterey, and Santa Cruz
to the south; and the Pacific Ocean to the west. In 2015, the region had a population of 7.57 million, which is
approximately 20 percent of California’s population. Roughly 17 percent of the region’s approximately 4.4
million acres was developed in 2010 (California Department of Conservation 2015, Bay Area Open Space
Council 2014). The undeveloped area includes open space and agricultural lands as well as water bodies
(excluding the San Francisco Bay) and parks. Approximately 29 percent of the region is identified as protected
open space (Bay Area Open Space Council 2014).

MTC, ABAG, AND PLAN BAY AREA

MTC is the transportation planning, coordinating, and financing agency for the region. Created by the State
Legislature in 1970, MTC functions as both the regional transportation planning agency (RTPA)—a state
designation—and, for federal purposes, as the region’s metropolitan planning organization (MPO).

ABAG is a joint powers agency formed in 1961 pursuant to California Government Code §8§ 6500, et seq., and
the council of governments (COG) for the San Francisco Bay Area. ABAG conducts regional population and
employment projections and the regional housing needs allocation (RHNA) processes (Government Code
Section 65584 et seq.).

Plan Bay Area 2040 is a joint effort by MTC and ABAG, completed in partnership with the Bay Area’s other two
regional government agencies, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD), and the Bay
Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC). As required by State legislation (Government Code
Section 65080 et seq.) and by federal regulation (Title 23 USC Section 134), MTC is responsible for preparing
the RTP for the San Francisco Bay Area region. An RTP is a long-range plan that identifies the strategies and
investments to maintain, manage, and improve the region’s transportation network. The RTP must be updated

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Draft EIRv.4.17.17
ltem 10.B. =



Executive Summary Plan Bay Area 2040

every four years. The Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection Act of 2008, commonly known as
Senate Bill 375 (SB 375 Steinberg, 2008), requires California’s 18 metropolitan planning organizations
(including MTC) to develop an SCS as an element of the federally mandated RTP. The SCS demonstrates how
the region will meet its greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction targets established by the California Air Resources
Board (ARB) through integrated land use, housing and transportation planning. In the Bay Area, MTC and ABAG
are jointly responsible for this planning effort.

The 2013 Plan was the first Bay Area RTP that was subject to SB 375, which requires that the SCS be
integrated into the MPQO’s RTP, and projected out through 2040. The proposed Plan is an update to the 2013
Plan and also covers the period through 2040.

The proposed Plan is a long-range plan that specifies the strategies and investments to maintain, manage,
and improve the region’s transportation network, which includes improvements to bicycle and pedestrian
facilities, local streets and roads, public transit systems, and highways. The proposed Plan also calls for
focused housing and job growth around high-quality transit corridors, particularly within areas identified by
local jurisdictions as Priority Development Areas (PDAs). This land use strategy is anticipated to enhance
mobility and economic growth by linking the location of housing and jobs with transit, thus offering a more
efficient land use pattern around transit and a greater return on existing and planned transit investments.

Once adopted, Plan Bay Area 2040 will be reviewed by ARB to confirm whether it would, if implemented,
achieve the GHG emission reduction target for the region. If the combination of measures in the SCS is
determined to be insufficient to achieve the region’s target, an alternative planning strategy (APS) to achieve
the targets must be prepared.

INTRODUCTION TO THE EIR

PURPOSE OF THIS EIR

This EIR has been prepared in compliance with the CEQA Statutes and Guidelines. In general, the purpose of
an EIR is to:

4 analyze the potential environmental effects of the adoption and implementation of the Plan;

4 inform decision-makers, responsible and trustee agencies, and members of the public as to the range of
the environmental impacts of the Plan;

4 recommend a set of measures to mitigate significant adverse impacts; and
4 analyze a range of reasonable alternatives to the proposed Plan.

The final EIR will include a Mitigation, Monitoring, and Reporting Program that identifies who will be responsible
for implementing identified mitigation measures and the required timing for implementation. As the joint lead
agencies for preparing this EIR, MTC and ABAG will rely on the EIR analysis of potential environmental effects
in their review and consideration of the proposed Plan before approval.

As discussed in Section 1.1.8 “CEQA Streamlining Opportunities,” SB 375 provides streamlining benefits for
certain transit-oriented projects consistent with an adopted SCS. Pursuant to these provisions of SB 375, this
EIR has also been prepared to allow qualifying projects to streamline their environmental review.

Draft EIRv.4.17.17 Metropolitan Transportation Commission
B2 ltem 10.B.



Plan Bay Area 2040 Executive Summary

EIR SCOPE

This is a program EIR, which is defined in Section 15168 of the CEQA Guidelines as: “[An EIR addressing a]
series of actions that can be characterized as one large project and are related either:

(1) Geographically;
(2) As logical parts in the chain of contemplated actions;

(3) In connection with the issuance of rules, regulations, plans, or other general criteria to govern the
conduct of a continuing program; or

(4) As individual activities carried out under the same authorizing statutory or regulatory authority and
having generally similar environmental impacts which can be mitigated in similar ways.”

A program EIR can be used as the basic, general environmental assessment for an overall program of projects
developed over a multi-year planning horizon, and therefore is an appropriate review document for the
proposed Plan. A program EIR has several advantages. For example, it provides a basic reference document
to avoid unnecessary repetition of facts or analysis in subsequent project-specific assessments. It also allows
the lead agency to consider the broad, regional impacts of a program of actions before its adoption and
eliminates redundant or contradictory approaches to the consideration of regional and cumulative impacts.

LEVEL OF ANALYSIS

This EIR presents a programmatic assessment of the potential impacts of the proposed Plan, focusing on the
entire set of projects and programs contained in the proposed Plan. Individual transportation and
development project impacts are not addressed in detail; rather the focus of this EIR is on the entire program
of projects, in the aggregate.

A geographic information system (GIS) was used to digitally overlay the projected land use growth footprint (net
new acres of potential development) associated with forecasted development and the transportation projects
footprint assumed for the transportation projects over resource-related data. Results are presented, where
relevant, for the region, for each county, and for the portions of the growth footprint specifically within the TPAs.
Where impacts are quantified through modeling or GIS analysis, they are reported at the regjonal (total), county,
and/or transit priority area (TPA) levels in tables and in the text. Information provided by county includes both
incorporated and unincorporated areas in the county. To facilitate future CEQA streamlining opportunities for
individual projects that qualify as transit priority projects, (see section 1.1.8, CEQA Streamlining Opportunities in
Section 1.1, “Introduction”), quantified data in this EIR is reported by TPAs, as available. The portion of the
projected land use growth footprint located in PDAs that is outside of a TPA is captured in the County totals.
Where useful for the impact analysis, GIS-based results are also reported by PDAs.

The analysis in this EIR does not evaluate subcomponents of the proposed Plan nor does it assess project-
specific impacts of individual projects, although it provides environmental analysis and mitigation that is
intended to address the range of impacts and mitigation that may be associated with individual projects. This
approach does not relieve local jurisdictions of responsibility for determining whether project-specific impacts
require additional CEQA analysis; see Section 1.1.7, Future Environmental Review, for more details.

EIR Organization

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Executive Summary outlines the proposed Plan and alternatives and includes a summary of the potentially
significant adverse environmental impacts of the proposed Plan, the measures identified to mitigate those
impacts, and an overview of whether or not identified measures would mitigate the significant impacts and to

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Draft EIRv.4.17.17
ltem 10.B. =



Executive Summary Plan Bay Area 2040

what level. The executive summary also describes the alternatives and their merits as compared to the
proposed Plan, identifies the environmentally superior alternative, and describes “areas of known controversy”
and “issues to be resolved” as required by CEQA.

SECTION 1.1: INTRODUCTION

Section 1.1, Introduction describes the relationship between the proposed Plan and the EIR, the organization
of the EIR, and the basic legal requirements of a program level EIR. It discusses the level of analysis and the
alternatives considered as well as how this EIR is related to other environmental documents and the EIR’s
intended uses.

SECTION 1.2: PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Section 1.2, Project Description introduces the purpose and objectives of the proposed Plan and summarizes
other specific descriptive information. This includes a description of the regional location and general setting,
project background, an outline of the region’s projected population and employment growth rates, a summary
of forecasted development patterns through the 2040 planning horizon year, and an overview of proposed
transportation projects and programs.

SECTION 2.0 THROUGH 2.14: ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS

Section 2.0 provides an overview of the approach to the environmental analysis. Sections 2.1 through 2.14
describe the existing physical and regulatory settings for each of the environmental issue areas analyzed in
the EIR, the potential impacts of the proposed Plan on these environmental issue areas, and measures to
mitigate the potential impacts identified. Each issue area is analyzed in a separate section. Each section is
organized as follows:

Environmental Setting,

Regulatory Setting,

Significance Criteria,

Method of Analysis, and

Impacts and Mitigation Measures.

A AANAANNA

SECTION 3: ALTERNATIVES AND CEQA-REQUIRED CONCLUSIONS

Section 3.1 includes a description of the alternatives to the proposed Plan. It provides an assessment of the
potential of each alternative to achieve the objectives of the proposed Plan while reducing potentially
significant adverse environmental impacts. This discussion also includes a comparison summary table of
regional environmental impacts associated with the alternatives. As required by CEQA, an environmentally
superior alternative is identified.

Section 3.2 includes an assessment of the impacts of the proposed Plan in several subject areas required by
CEQA, including:

4 significant irreversible environmental changes,

4 significant unavoidable impacts,

4 growth-inducing impacts,

4 cumulative impacts, and

4 impacts found to be not significant.

Draft EIRv.4.17.17 Metropolitan Transportation Commission
ES-4

Item 10.B.



Plan Bay Area 2040 Executive Summary

SECTION 4: BIBLIOGRAPHY AND EIR PREPARERS

Section 4.1 includes a bibliography and Section 4.2 includes a list of report authors.

APPENDICES

Appendix A includes the Notice of Preparation (NOP) of this EIR and Appendix B includes the comments
received on the NOP and at the scoping meetings and the Scoping Summary Report. Appendices C through E
include detailed supporting data on impact analyses for transportation, energy, and climate change and
greenhouse gases. Appendix F includes potential adaptation strategies, referenced in Section 2.5, “Climate
Change and Greenhouse Gases.” Appendices G through M include detailed supporting data on impact
analyses for air quality, noise, geology and seismicity, water resources, biological resources, cultural
resources, and hazards, respectively.

Project Objectives

The proposed Plan reinforces land use and transportation integration to reduce greenhouse gas emissions
per SB 375 and presents a vision of the Bay Area’s land use patterns and transportation networks in 2040.
The proposed Plan’s core strategy is focused growth in existing communities along the existing transportation
network. Consistent with this core strategy, the seven goals of the proposed Plan are:

Climate Protection

Adequate Housing

Healthy and Safe Communities

Open Space and Agricultural Preservation
Equitable Access

Economic Vitality

Transportation System Effectiveness

A A AAMAMAMNA

MTC and ABAG developed 13 performance targets associated with the goals for the proposed Plan (Table ES-
1). Senate Bill 375 mandates two of these performance targets. These are the primary objectives of the Plan:

4 The proposed Plan must address climate change by reducing CO2 emissions: the regional plan must meet
or exceed a seven percent reduction in per-capita emissions from cars and light-duty trucks by 2020 and
a 15 percent reduction by 2035 relative to 2005 levels.

4 The proposed Plan must house 100 percent of the region’s projected growth by income level without
displacing low-income residents, and with no increase in in-commuters over the proposed Plan baseline
year. As calculated for the proposed Plan pursuant to a settlement agreement entered into with the
Building Industry Association (BIA) Bay Area, the Regional Housing Control Total is 820,400.

In addition to these two objectives, MTC and the ABAG Executive Board adopted 11 additional targets. Key
goals for Plan Bay Area 2040 included tackling the Bay Area’s inequities through improved affordability and
lessened displacement risk, ensuring a robust economy and protecting the environment for future
generations. These targets reflect MTC and ABAG’s commitment to take a more holistic view of the possibilities
of integrated regional planning by going beyond the plan’s legal requirements.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Draft EIRv.4.17.17
ltem 10.B. =°



Executive Summary Plan Bay Area 2040

Table ES-1 Year 2040 Goals and Performance Targets

Goal Performance Target
Climate Protection Reduce per-capita CO2 emissions from cars and light-duty trucks by 15%
Adequate Housing House 100% of the region’s projected growth by income level without displacing current low-income residents

and with no increase in incommuters over the Plan baseline year

Healthy and Safe Communities Reduce adverse health impacts associated with air quality, road safety, and physical inactivity by 10%

Open Space and Agricultural Preservation | Direct all non-agricultural development within the urban footprint (existing urban development and UGBs)

Equitable Access Decrease the share of lower income residents” household income consumed by housing and transportation
(H+T) costs by 10%

Increase the share of affordable housing in PDAs, TPAs or high-opportunity areas by 15%

Do not increase the share of low- and moderate-income renter households in PDAs, TPAs, or high-opportunity
areas that are at risk of displacement

Economic Vitality Increase by 20% the share of jobs accessible within 30 minutes by auto or within 45 minutes by transit in
congested conditions

Increase by 38% the number of jobs in predominantly middle-wage industries

Reduce per-capita delay on the Regional Freight Network by 20%

Transportation System Effectiveness Increase non-auto mode share by 10%

Reduce vehicle operations and maintenance costs because of pavement conditions by 100%

Reduce per-rider transit delay because of aged infrastructure by 100%

Note: The base year for the targets, unless specified under target methodology documentation, is 2005, Additional information is available in MTC Resolution 4204,
Revised and associated methodology memoranda.! The Adequate Housing target relates to the Regional Housing Control Total per the settlement agreement signed with
the Building Industry Association (BIA), which increases the housing forecast by the housing equivalent to in-commute growth.

Project Overview

The proposed Plan provides a strategy for accommodating projected household and employment growth in
the Bay Area by 2040 as well as a transportation investment strategy for the region. The proposed Plan details
how the Bay Area can achieve several outcomes essential to the success of the region’s long-range
transportation and land use goals. The proposed Plan:

4 Describes where and how the region can accommodate 666,000 new projected households and 668,000
new jobs between 2015 and 2040;

4 Details a regional transportation investment strategy given $303 billion in expected revenues from federal,
state, regional and local sources over the next 24 years; and

4 Complies with SB 375, the state’s SCS law, which integrates land use and transportation planning and
mandates both a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions from passenger vehicles and the provision of
adequate housing for the region’s 24-year projected population growth.

The proposed Plan encompasses the entire Bay Area, including the nine counties and the 101 cities that make
up the region. The proposed Plan is constrained by expected transportation revenues and expected household
and employment growth. The proposed Plan identifies what it would take to accommodate expected growth
and improve the quality of life for existing and future residents. The proposed Plan also facilitates subsequent
streamlined CEQA analysis pursuant to Senate Bill 375, Senate Bill 743, and other methods described in
Section 1.2. The proposed Plan does not change local land use policies; individual jurisdictions retain all local
land use authority. The proposed Plan creates a list of transportation projects that are eligible for future
funding but does not program funds to specific transportation projects.

Draft EIRv.4.17.17 Metropolitan Transportation Commission
B0 ltem 10.B.



Plan Bay Area 2040 Executive Summary

SUMMARY OF ALTERNATIVES

ALTERNATIVES

CEQA requires EIRs to evaluate a reasonable range of alternatives to the proposed project that could feasibly
attain most of the basic project objectives and that would avoid or substantially lessen any of the significant
environmental impacts. In addition, CEQA requires assessment of the likely foreseeable future condition if the
proposed project were not implemented; this scenario is called the No Project alternative.

This EIR evaluates the proposed Plan and four alternatives, assuming the same regional forecast control
totals, same 2040 horizon year, and full Plan implementation. These alternatives were confirmed by the MTC
Planning Committee and ABAG Administrative Committee on December 9, 2016. This EIR also identifies the
environmentally superior alternative and documents the relative environmental advantages and
disadvantages of the alternatives, as compared to the proposed Plan.

The proposed Plan and four alternatives are briefly described below. A full description of each alternative is
provided in Section 3.1.

Alternative 1: No Project Alternative

An EIR must analyze the “no project alternative.” (CEQA Guidelines, § 15126.6(e).) The purpose of the no
project alternative is to allow a comparison of the environmental impacts of approving the proposed project
with the effects of not approving it. The no project alternative must discuss the existing conditions, “as well as
what would be reasonably expected to occur in the foreseeable future if the project were not approved, based
on current plans and consistent with available infrastructure and community services.”

The No Project Alternative represents implementation of the general plans of all nine counties and 101 cities
in the Bay Area without influence of a regional plan that integrates transportation, growth, and GHG reduction.
No new regional land use plan would be developed and no new SCS policies would be implemented to
influence the locations of housing and employment centers in the region. Transportation projects that would
occur under the No Project Alternative would be substantially limited compared to the proposed Plan,
consisting of five major regional transit, three local transit, and two highway projects from the previous plan
that are fully committed with funding and completed environmental review.

Alternative 2: Main Streets Alternative

Alternative 2, the Main Streets Alternative, provides a plan that targets future population and employment
growth to the downtowns of every city in the Bay Area to foster a region of moderately-sized, integrated town
centers. This alternative comes closest to resembling a traditional suburban pattern, because it would result
in increased greenfield development relative to the proposed Plan. To support this alternative’s dispersed
growth pattern, transportation investment priorities would emphasize highway strategies, including the
expansion of high-occupancy toll lanes on all regional highways and highway widenings at key bottlenecks.

Alternative 3: Big Cities Alternative

Alternative 3 concentrates future population and employment growth in the locally-identified PDAs and TPAs
within the Bay Area’s three largest cities: San Jose, San Francisco, and Oakland. Neighboring cities that are
already well-connected to these three cities by transit would see moderate to substantial increases in
population and employment growth, particularly in their locally-identified PDAs and high opportunity areas. To
support this alternative’s big city-focused growth pattern, the transportation infrastructure within and directly
serving the region’s core would be maintained to a state of good repair, modernized to boost service and
improve commutes and capacity, and expanded to meet increased demand. Bicycle and pedestrian
infrastructure would be expanded in these cities, including a robust network of bike sharing

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Draft EIRv.4.17.17
ltem 10.B. &7



Executive Summary Plan Bay Area 2040

Alternative 4: Environment, Equity, and Jobs Alternative

The Environment, Equity, and Jobs (EEJ) Alternative includes strategies to focus more growth in suburban
communities than the proposed Plan, in part to reduce risk of displacement in urban areas. In addition, the
EEJ Alternative includes more funding for bus operations in suburban areas to serve lower-income residents
and reduces funding for highway expansion and efficiency projects with the objective of reducing adverse
environmental impacts. This alternative would encourage intensification of land use beyond PDAs to include
jobs-rich, high-opportunity TPAs not currently identified as PDAs. This alternative seeks to strengthen public
transit by boosting service frequencies in most suburban and urban areas, other than on Muni, BART or
Caltrain, and providing free transit passes to youth throughout the region.

SUMMARY OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

The analysis emphasizes the impacts of the proposed Plan as a complete program, rather than as detailed
analysis of the individual transportation projects and land use strategies included in the proposed Plan.
Individual transportation projects and development projects must still independently comply with the
requirements of CEQA.

The EIR addresses impacts associated with projected growth and impacts associated with the projected land
use and assumed transportation projects. Where a significant or potentially significant impact may occur,
mitigation measures are provided. Table ES-2 summarizes the impact conclusions and recommended
mitigation measures identified in this EIR. The impacts are organized by environmental impact issue area in
the order in which they appear in Sections 2.1 through 2.14.

Significant unavoidable impacts are those that cannot be mitigated to a less-than-significant level. Sections
2.1 through 2.14 of this EIR identify the following significant unavoidable impacts of the proposed Plan. As
stated in Chapter 2, to the extent that an individual project adopts and implements all feasible mitigation
measures described for each significant impact, many of the impacts listed below would be reduced to a less-
than-significant level. However, MTC/ABAG cannot require local implementing agencies to adopt most of the
mitigation measures, and it is ultimately the responsibility of a lead agency to determine and adopt mitigation.
Therefore, several impacts have been identified as significant and unavoidable for purposes of this program-
level review. Projects taking advantage of CEQA Streamlining provisions of SB 375 (Public Resources Code
Sections 21155.1, 21155.2, and 21159.28) must apply the mitigation measures described in this EIR, as
necessary and feasible to address site-specific conditions.

ENVIRONMENTALLY SUPERIOR ALTERNATIVE

CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.6 requires that an EIR identify the environmentally superior alternative among
the alternatives analyzed. CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.6(d)(2) states that if the environmentally superior
alternative is the no project alternative, the EIR shall also identify an environmentally superior alternative from
among the other alternatives analyzed. The proposed Plan is included in the consideration of environmentally
superior alternatives in EIRs.

The primary objectives of the Plan revolve around accommodating household and job growth forecasts and
providing a transportation investment strategy for the region. A substantial level of development is required to
accommodate the growth forecasts. Consequently, the majority of impacts of the proposed Plan and
alternatives are similar in type and magnitude. Differences in impacts revolve around the location and size of
land use growth and transportation footprints, and the ability of feasible policies to influence how development
forecasted in the Plan and its alternatives would proceed.

Further, CEQA provides little guidance regarding selection of environmentally superior alternatives. In an
instance such as the proposed Plan, where alternatives result in many similar impacts but also would result
in tradeoffs (some greater impacts, some lesser impacts than the Plan), judgement is required in determining

Draft EIRv.4.17.17 Metropolitan Transportation Commission
B8 ltem 10.B.



Plan Bay Area 2040 Executive Summary

how these tradeoffs factor in selection of the environmentally superior alternative. Policy makers who review
this EIR and must decide on which alternative to select may differ in their judgement, and this may also be
affected by their consideration of the feasibility of alternatives.

Some of the alternatives are relatively similar in terms of type and extent of environmental impact, although
there are gradations of differences. In fact, three alternatives, the proposed Plan, the Big Cities, and the EEJ
Alternatives result in a similar level of environmental impact, in the aggregate. Each of these alternatives has
environmental advantages and disadvantages, when compared to each other. This assessment is based on
the relative number of less-than-significant and significant and unavoidable impacts that are reduced or
increased under each alternative, as described below.

The Big Cities Alternative would result in the lowest overall level of environmental impacts, although only
marginally lower, as compared to all alternatives, and therefore is identified as the environmentally superior
alternative. However, this conclusion is based on prioritizing certain types of impacts over others.

In summary, the proposed Plan would result in 40 impacts that would be less than significant or less than
significant after mitigation and 38 impacts that would be significant and unavoidable following implementation
of mitigation measures or due to uncertainty because MTC/ABAG cannot require local implementing agencies
to adopt mitigation measures identified in this EIR. The Big Cities Alternative would have similar less-than-
significant impacts for 15 impacts identified under the proposed Plan. The Big Cities Alternative would reduce
21 less-than-significant impacts and increase two less-than-significant impacts compared to the proposed
Plan. The Big Cities Alternative would have similar significant and unavoidable impacts for 19 impacts
identified under the proposed Plan. The Big Cities Alternative would reduce 18 significant and unavoidable
impact and increase three significant and unavoidable impacts compared to the proposed Plan. As discussed
in Section 3.1 of this Draft EIR in more detail, the Big Cities Alternative would have the same impacts as the
proposed Plan and other alternatives but to a lesser degree overall related to air quality, land use, energy,
water resources, visual resources, biological resources, geology and seismicity, and cultural resources. The
Big Cities Alternative would result in two new significant and unavoidable impacts compared to the proposed
Plan. One new impact would occur because the Big Cities Alternative would result in a significant impact
(greater than five percent increase) associated with per-trip non-commute travel time for drive alone and
carpool trips, relative to existing conditions. The other new impact would occur because the Big Cities
Alternative would result in a significant impact associated with per-capita VMT by causing an 8 percent
increase in per-capita congested VMT in Solano County, relative to existing conditions. However, ABAG/MTC,
in considering these two impacts, views them in light of shifting views of traffic congestion under CEQA. The
Transportation section of this Draft EIR explains that SB 743 (2013) changes the way that public agencies
evaluate the transportation impacts of projects under CEQA, recognizing that roadway congestion, while an
inconvenience to drivers, is not itself an environmental impact. (See Pub. Resource Code, § 21099, subd.
(b)(2) [“automobile delay, as described solely by level of service or similar measures of vehicular capacity or
traffic congestion shall not be considered a significant impact on the environment pursuant to [CEQA]"].) This
change to CEQA is intended to occur once new guidelines are implemented consistent with this directive;
nevertheless, ABAG/MTC, in considering the environmentally superior alternative, believes this legislative
directive de-emphasizes the importance of traffic congestion. Therefore, compared comprehensively against
the number of impacts that the Big Cities Alternative decreases, the Big Cities Alternative would be the
environmentally superior alternative.

The No Project and Main Streets Alternatives would result in a greater number of significant and unavoidable
impacts compared to the proposed Plan. The EEJ Alternative would result in the same number of less-than-
significant and significant and unavoidable impacts as the proposed Plan. However, examining the EEJ
Alternative further, of the 40 less-than-significant impacts, 17 would be similar, 9 would be less, and 14 would
be greater than the proposed Plan. Of the 38 significant and unavoidable impacts in the EEJ Alternative, 16
would be similar, six would be less, and 16 would be greater than the proposed Plan. Therefore, overall, the
EEJ Alternative would have greater impacts that the proposed Plan, and it would not reduce any of the
proposed Plan’s significant and unavoidable impacts to a less-than-significant level. Similarly, the Main Streets
and No Project Alternatives would have greater impacts than the proposed Plan and would not reduce the

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Draft EIRv.4.17.17
ltem 10.B. =



Executive Summary Plan Bay Area 2040

proposed Plan’s significant and unavoidable impacts to a less-than-significant level. The Main Streets
Alternative would result in two new significant and unavoidable impacts compared to the proposed Plan and
would increase five less-than-significant impacts and seven significant and unavoidable impacts compared to
the proposed Plan. The No Project Alternative would have greater environmental impacts than the proposed
Plan resulting in six additional significant and unavoidable impacts and increasing the largest numbers of less-
than-significant (19) and significant and unavoidable impacts (25) compared to the proposed Plan. See the
discussion under Environmentally Superior Alternative and Table 3.1-38 in Section 3.1, “Alternatives to the
proposed Plan,” for additional details regarding the comparison of alternatives.

AREAS OF CONTROVERSY

Section 15123 of the CEQA Guidelines requires that an EIR identify areas of controversy which are known to
the Lead Agency, including issues raised by other agencies and the public. Areas of controversy associated
with the proposed Plan are made known through comments received during the Notice of Preparation (NOP)
process, as well as input solicited during public scoping meetings and an understanding of the community
issues in the study area. Some areas of known controversy, including issues raised by some members of the
community, related to the proposed Plan and EIR include:

4 displacement of low-income populations and implications for VMT;
4 affordability, supply, and location of housing near employment centers - i.e., jobs/housing balance;
4 relationship between local general plans and regional projections; and

4 compliance with the Settlement Agreement with Communities for a Better Environment (CBE) and the
Sierra Club and the Settlement Agreement with BIA.

ISSUES TO BE RESOLVED

CEQA Guidelines Section 15123(b)(3) requires that an EIR contain a discussion of issues to be resolved and
whether or how to mitigate significant effects. Issues to be resolved include:

4 How to address potential impacts from the projected land development pattern that must be mitigated by
the local land use authority, given that MTC and ABAG do not have jurisdiction over land use regulations.

4 The degree to which MTC and ABAG can provide adequate incentives for implementation of changes to
land use policy.

4 How best to require mitigation measures that can be enacted by project sponsors and/or implementing
agencies in a manner to ensure CEQA streamlining for qualifying projects, per SB 375, can occur.

When adopting the proposed Plan, the MTC Commission and ABAG Board must decide whether specific
overriding economic, legal, social, technological or other benefits of the project outweigh the significant
environmental impacts that cannot be feasibly avoided or substantially reduced through implementation of
feasible mitigation or alternatives. A Statement of Overriding Considerations is required to support such a
determination.

Draft EIRv.4.17.17 Metropolitan Transportation Commission
F10 ltem 10.B.



Plan
BayArea

Draft
Environmental Impact Report
for

Plan Bay Area 2040

Regional Transportation Plan /
Sustainable Communities Strategy
(GUYE[S))

State Clearinghouse Number:
SCH# 2016052041

Prepared for:
MTC and ABAG

Prepared by:
Ascent Environmental, Inc.

Released: April 2017

Item 10.B.




Plan

Purpose of the Hearing 2040

* The purpose of the Hearing:
* Present an overview of the Draft EIR
* Receive public comment on the adequacy of the Draft EIR

* The focus of this meeting is only on the adequacy of the EIR,
not the content of the Plan Bay Area 2040 (“proposed Plan”)

* Responses to comments and questions will be provided in the
Final EIR

* Draft EIR was released April 17, 2017 (45-day comment period)

 Full draft available online at www.2040.planbayarea.org/reports
e Comments due at MTC by 4:00 p.m., June 1, 2017

Item 10.B.



Plan
BayArea

2040

* Analyze and disclose potential

environmental effects of the proposed
Plan

* Inform decision-makers, agencies, and
Sl 2 the public of the range of the
the CEQA environmental impacts of the proposed
Plan

* Recommend measures to mitigate any
significant adverse impacts

* Analyze reasonable alternatives to the
proposed Plan

Process

Item 10.B.



Plan

Organization of the Draft EIR BayArea

2040

N\
‘ Section 1.1: Introduction

\

Section 1.2: Project Description

|
‘ Section 2: Environmental Analysis

/
‘ Section 3: Alternatives and CEQA-Required Conclusions
/

4

Item 10.B.



Plan

Proposed Plan 5040

== e |

Regional Transportation Plan Sustainable Communities Strategy
GUYE (SCS) -

Details a regional transportation Describes where and how the region can

investment strategy aligned with accommodate projected growth (new

projected growth in the region, based on forecasted households and new jobs
forecasted federal, state, regional and between 2015 and 2040) in a way that
local revenues achieves regional GHG reduction targets

Item 10.B.




Plan
BayArea

2040

Level of Analysis

* Programmatic assessment
of the potential impacts of the
proposed Plan’s regional pattern of
household and employment growth
and transportation investments "

* Reports potential impacts
regionally, by county, and within
Transit Priority Areas (TPAs), where
applicable

Item 10.B.



Environmental Issue Areas

2.1 Transportation
2.2 Air Quality

2.3 Land Use and
Physical Development

@ 2.4 Energy

2.5 Climate Change and
Greenhouse Gases

@ 2.6 Noise

@ 2.7 Geology and Seismicity

OOOIGSION

2.8 Water Resources
2.9 Biological Resources

2.10 Visual Resources

2.11 Cultural Resources

2.12 Public Utilities and
Facilities

2.13 Hazards

2.14 Public Services and
Recreation

Item 10.B.

Plan
BayArea

2040



Environmental

Impact
Analysis

Plan
BayArea

2040

* Environmental and Regulatory Settings

* Significance Criteria are specific to
Environmental Issue Area and generally
follow the criteria in the 2013 EIR or the
CEQA Guidelines

 Method of Analysis
* Impacts and Mitigation Measures

* Significance Conclusions
 Less than Significant (LS)
 Significant and Mitigatable (LS-M)
 Significant and Unavoidable (SU)

Item 10.B.



Plan
BayArea

2040
e Streamlining benefits may become

available to projects consistent with
the Plan

* For a project to take advantage of
CEQA streamlining benefits, it must comply
with all feasible and applicable

mitigation measures included in this
EIR

Streamlining

Item 10.B.



Plan

Alternatives Analysis 5040

* Analyzes the relative environmental advantages and

disadvantages of the Alternatives, as compared to the proposed
Plan

* Draft EIR analyzes four Alternatives to the proposed Plan

Alternative 1 Alternative 2 Alternative 3 Alternative 4

* No Project * Main * Big Cities e Environment,
Streets Equity and
Jobs

 Same regional forecasts of households, jobs, and transportation
revenues for each alternative

10

Item 10.B.



Plan

Summary of Alternatives Comparison Bzafﬁeﬁ

Compared to the Proposed Plan

* Results in additional significant unavoidable R
Alternative 1: impacts related to Transportation, Air * !—eSS than significa n?[ B
No Project Quality, Energy, Climate Change and includes less than significant

Greenhouse Gases . )
after mitigation

; . * Results in additional significant unavoidable s .
Alternative 2: impacts related to Transportation, Climate * Significant and unavoidable

Main Streets Change and Greenhouse Gases following implementation of
mitigation measures or

L A significant and unavoidable
Alternative 3: * Results in additional significant unavoidable &
Big Cities impacts related Transportation because MTC/ABAG cannot

require local implementing
agencies to impose
mitigation measures
identified in this EIR

Alternative 4:
S0 Aldelglapl=gie |« Same significant unavoidable impacts

Equity, and Jobs

11

Item 10.B.



Plan
BayArea

2040

* A Final EIR will be prepared following
public review and comment on the
Draft EIR

* Will consist of changes to the Draft EIR

and written responses to comments
Next Steps submitted during the comment period
on the Draft EIR

* MTC and ABAG will consider this
iInformation during their deliberations
on certification of the Final EIR and
adoption of Plan Bay Area 2040

12

Item 10.B.



Plan

Commenting on the Draft EIR 2040

* Orally at today’s meeting or upcoming Hearings
e San Jose, Tuesday, May 16, 6 p.m. to 8 p.m.
* Vallejo, Thursday May 18, 6 p.m.to 8 p.m.

* In writing (mail, fax, or email) by 4 p.m. on June 1, 2017
MTC Public Information,
375 Beale Street, Suite 800,
San Francisco, CA, 94105
fax to 415.536.9800
email to email to eircomments@mtc.ca.gov

* Note that comments on the Draft Plan Bay Area 2040
should be made separately

13

Item 10.B.



Blank Page



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area

Date: May 12, 2017

To: ABAG Executive Board
Finance & Personnel Committee

From:

Courtney Ruby

Director of Finance and Administrative Services

Subject:

ABAG

Budget and Work Plan and Financial considerations regarding the Staff
Consolidation

This memo provides a brief budget overview and addresses questions raised at the April 20™
Executive Board meeting related to the draft 2017-18 ABAG Budget and Work Plan (B&WP).

The proposed budget includes an increase in both revenues and expenses of 22% over the
2016-17 Adopted Budget of $58.2 million to $71.1 million in the 2017-18 Proposed Budget.

The overall percentage by funding source has remained relatively constant as the following

table illustrates:

Percentage of Total Budget

ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED PROPOSED

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 16-17 FY 17-18
Federal 6,387,059 8,732,955 10.97% 12.28%
State 42,729,572 53,446,623 73.39% 75.14%
Other Contracts 2,600,317 2,846,651 4.47% 4.00%
Service Programs 4,545,000 4,033,648 7.81% 5.67%
Membership Dues 1,957,767 2,065,639 3.36% 2.90%
Total Revenues 58,219,715 71,125,516

Item 11



Budget and Work Plan and Financial considerations regarding the Staff Consolidation

May 12, 2017
Page 2

Revenues

The $12.9 million budget increase from FY 2016-17 to FY 2017-18 is mainly attributed to the
success of the SFEP and BayREN programs. In this years’ budget these programs are
expected to receive approximately $12.6 million in increased funding from the EPA, CalTrans,
CA Department of Water Resources and the CA Public Utilities Commission. The budget
includes a corresponding increase in consultant services expenses, as illustrated in the table
below, representing additional dollars that will flow directly through SFEP and BayREN to
consultants who will perform various program and project tasks. In response to questions raised

at the April 20" Executive Board meeting regarding consultant expenses, a list of

consultant/contractor expenses by program are provided as an attachment to this memao.

The budget includes funding from MTC of $4.8 million and is highlighted on page 42 of the
B&WP. $3.3 million represents funding that MTC has historically provided to fund planning
activities and $1.5 million represents costs directly attributed to the staff consolidation. Of the
$1.5 million, $727,000 are additional costs related to the staff consolidation and $791,000 is a
subsidy from MTC to cover SFEP’s overhead cost. In order for SFEP to be both competitive and
comprehensive in its work, it must maintain a low administrative cost burden. Under ABAG’s
model, SFEP was not charged an indirect overhead rate because the State Water Board
provided SFEP with office space, equipment and IT support. Historically these costs were
absorbed in the Agency’s indirect rate and charged to the remaining programs. With the
consolidation, SFEP will be moving to San Francisco and charged overhead accordingly,
however these overhead charges will then be subsidized by MTC as part of the consolidation.
ABAG’s EPA approved indirect overhead rate is 46.15, for budget purposes MTC calculated a

consolidated indirect rate of 45.8%.

ADOPTED PROPOSED S %
FY 16-17 FY 17-18 Variance Variance
Salaries & Benefits 11,828,400 11,840,899 12,499 0%
Consultant Services 28,249,460 41,950,448 13,700,988 48%
Passthrough 15,761,546 15,208,973 (552,573) -4%
Total other Direct/Indirect Costs| 2,330,309 2,125,196 (205,113) -9%
Total Expenses 58,169,715 71,125,516

Expenses

Salary and benefits expenses as illustrated in the table above is almost equal to the previous
year although this budget was developed with assumptions different than the prior year. This
proposed budget assumes 60 current ABAG positions will transition to the consolidated staff (57

Item 11



Budget and Work Plan and Financial considerations regarding the Staff Consolidation
May 12, 2017
Page 3

filled, 3 vacant). The previous budget had approximately 71 positions (67 filled, 4 vacant). It
assumes all represented staff transition and receive at least a 7% salary increase to
compensate for benefit differences between ABAG and MTC (65% of the proposed offers
exceed 7%). A salary reserve of $700,000 has been included to address the difference in
budget methods between ABAG and MTC. ABAG budgets actual salaries and MTC budgets
top of range salaries. The increased personnel cost were offset through reductions in executive
and management staff and attrition (11 filled or vacant positions eliminated from prior budget).
The budget assumes consolidated staff has the capacity and skills to meet the shared
operational needs of ABAG and MTC.

Unfunded Pension Liabilities

ABAG employees will become MTC employees on July 1st and as such, MTC will become
responsible for their pension costs going forward. ABAG, however, remains liable for ABAG’s
current unfunded pension liabilities. This budget includes our required CalPERS payment of
$1.3 million for unfunded liabilities. It should be noted that CalPERS discount rate will be
dropped from 7.5% to 7% and this will increase ABAG’s unfunded pension above the 2018-19
projected payment of $1.4 million.

Summary

The 2017-18 budget represents the current level of service provided to our members and
federal, state and local funding partners and stakeholders. Going forward | would anticipate
ABAG to maintain this current budget level with the addition of one important revenue source —
revenue from the proposed new conduit financing JPA. These funds will help to ensure security
to our retirees and provide opportunities to expand the programs and services ABAG offers in
the future.

Balance Sheet

Your board packet includes both the audited financial statements as of June 30, 2016 and the
current financial statements as of March 31, 2017 as requested and the accompanying staff
reports. The one item that you will not see in these reports is the current status of our
condominium exchange. On May 10, 2017 we closed on the exchange transaction and
successfully transferred ABAG’s condominium interest in 101 Eighth Street, Oakland for a
condominium interest in 375 Beale Street, San Francisco. This exchange will be recorded on
ABAG’s book at the exchange value of $5.8 million for accounting purposes. Other than the
building, it is important to note that ABAG has approximately $1.5 million in unrestricted
operating reserves and $1.6 million in restricted operating reserves.

Item 11



Budget and Work Plan and Financial considerations regarding the Staff Consolidation

May 12, 2017
Page 4

Additional information and attachments in response to EB’s April 20" Request

The Executive Board asked for additional information on the amount budgeted to support

committee activities in addition to staff time.

2017-18 Budgeted Committee Expenses Description
SFEP 12,500 | Perdiem
SF Bay Restoration 5,000 | Advisory Committee expenses
Financial Services 2,732 | Perdiem
PLAN 7,500 | Board and Committee expenses
Agency Management 80,000 | Perdiem
Total 107,732

Attachments

abrwN=

ABAG’s audited financial statements and staff report;

ABAG'’s current financial report as of March 2017 and staff report;
A list of consultant expenses by program;
A list of FTE’s by program;

A memo describing RPC’s concerns/comments and staff responses.

Item 11



BUDGET & WORK
PROGRAM

PROPOSED
FISCAL YEAR 2017-18



L

EXECUTIVE
BOARD

OFFICERS

PRESIDENT
Julie Pierce
Councilmember
City of Clayton

VICE PRESIDENT
David Rabbitt
Supervisor
County of Sonoma

IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT
David D. Cortese

Supervisor

County of Santa Clara

TREASURER
Brad Paul
Acting Executive Director

SECRETARY/LEGAL COUNSEL

Kenneth Moy
Legal Counsel

2 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM




%
Cas’

LETTER FROM
THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

BRAD PAUL
Acting Executive Director

The Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) fosters collaborative partnerships among
local governments in planning for our shared future. Now, there is an opportunity for ABAG to
provide a stronger commitment, additional staff, and an expanded financial position to carry
out this important work, supporting local governments and our region.

During 2016-2017, we were and are engaged in a significant transition for ABAG. Out of the
2016 General Assembly and the 2016 Special General Assembly, a direction was charted for
ABAG and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) to conduct a staff consolidation
and then to look at changes to the governing bodies for both organizations. The end result

of this effort will be two separate and independent organizations with their own statutory
requirements, policy positions, programs and services, assets, and debts, with a consolidated
staff at MTC serving both organizations.

The staff consolidation process and continuing work activities are well underway with the
February 2017 release of a draft Contract for Services between the ABAG Executive Board
and MTC. The process has also included fiscal analysis of both organizations and Human
Resources and organizational development consultants are providing services toward the
transition. Members have been closely involved in the process with additional meetings at

the ABAG Executive Board, additional outreach and a Special General Assembly in January
2017. Opportunities for members and stakeholders to get involved will continue through the
rest of the fiscal year. More information about the process and activities is available on ABAG’s
website and is discussed in the ABAG President’s message in this document.

ABAG, along with MTC and the Bay Area Air Quality Management District, moved into the new
Bay Area Metro Center in May 2016. Plans to bring the San Francisco Estuary Partnership staff
and the San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission to the building are in
the works.

Fiscal Year 2016-2017 saw work to update Plan Bay Area in conjunction with MTC and with
the cities, towns, and counties, their local elected officials and residents, and stakeholders that
make up the Bay Area. Work on Plan Bay Area 2040 is on-going with adoption of the Plan
and EIR estimated in 2017. The plan and the EIR are informed by the relationships developed
by ABAG'’s land-use planners with local jurisdictions and on-going extensive dialogue with
stakeholders.

We have been talking about our programs in a new way, as local collaboration programs.
ABAG land-use planners are directly assigned on a county-wide basis, and these planning and
other program staff have developed collaborative partnerships with policymakers and staff in
the Bay Area’s cities, towns, and counties.

The local collaboration programs all thrive because of an interconnectedness with ABAG
planning staff and connections among the programs themselves. Some of our programs:
ABAG PLAN, ABAG Finance Authority, ABAG POWER, Resilience Program, BayREN,

San Francisco Bay Trail, and San Francisco Bay Area Water Trail, San Francisco Estuary
Partnership, and the San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority were not often discussed at the
ABAG Executive Board, as they may be governed through a separate board or committee.
They might not be as well-known as ABAG’s planning work, which is the foundation for

the organization and the path that all these programs follow, developing and maintaining

a connection with policymakers and staff in the Bay Area’s cities, towns, and counties.

Key to the future of ABAG, regional planning, and the local collaboration programs is the great
work that the staff do, working with the communities of the Bay Area. The details of all of
ABAG'’s programs and activities are contained in this Budget and Work Program and on our
website. Please contact me or staff if you have any questions. bradp@abag.ca.gov

/ol Sl

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 3



%
Cas®

LETTER FROM
THE PRESIDENT

el
-

JULIE PIERCE
ABAG President
Councilmember, City of Clayton

DAVID RABBITT
ABAG Vice President
Supervisor, County of Sonoma

‘| want to thank our
ABAG staff at all levels
for their continued
tireless support.”

4 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM

During this time of transition with staff consolidation, our responsibility is to assure that ABAG
continues to provide services that support the Bay Area’s local governments, now and in the
future. As work on the staff merger continues, we are committed to creating a better regional
agency, one that is more efficient, stronger, and has a greater potential to provide more
effective programs and services to the members that we serve and the nearly seven million
people that live in the Bay Area.

During 2016-2017, the Executive Board was focused on preparing for the staff consolidation
and developing the structure and the documents that govern the implementation: the contract
to consolidate staff functions under one executive director (CS) and the memorandum of
understanding regarding potential future new governance options (MOU). These contracts are
between the ABAG Executive Board and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission and will
codify how the combined staff will continue to provide services that support the Bay Area’s
local governments.

Additionally, the agencies adopted an Implementation Action Plan to guide the staff
consolidation. Senior staffs have been working diligently to develop the draft CS with extensive
input from ABAG and MTC policy bodies. To strengthen the process, an Ad Hoc Committee
of the Admistrative Committee of the Executive Board was formed to provide feedback

on staff consolidation tasks. Members include both myself and Vice President Supervisor
David Rabbitt, South San Francisco Mayor Pradeep Gupta (Chair of ABAG’s Regional
Planning Committee), Novato Mayor Pat Eklund, Palo Alto Mayor Greg Scharff and San Jose
Councilmember Raul Peralez.

Since regional land use planning and local governments are directly represented in the ABAG
governance structure, we held a Special General Assembly on January 30, 2017 to provide
a forum for local jurisdictions and other stakeholders to directly participate in this discussion.
The upcoming General Assembly as well as the Administrative Committee and Executive
Board meetings are other opportunities to work together with all of you as we study this new
framework for regional governance. These meetings are identified on the ABAG website.

Much was also accomplished last year on Plan Bay Area 2040. On-going, extensive
dialogue with local elected officials, local staff, and stakeholders has begun and will continue
this spring as we move towards passing the update in summer 2017. There will be many
opportunities for stakeholder and local government participation. We look forward to this
continuing conversation as we plan together for the Bay Area of the future that our children
and grandchildren will enjoy.

| want to thank our ABAG staff at all levels for their continued tireless support. During the staff
consolidatation process, the Executive Board and | have committed and re-committed to
protecting both current employees and ABAG retirees. Making sure that employees are made
whole and maintaining retirees’ earned benefits is the right thing to do.

Staff continues to provide the exceptional high level of expertise and service that we members
have come to expect, even during this transitional time. | am sure that this dedication to
excellent work will continue once the staff merger is complete. This is an opportunity to
enhance what the regional agencies provide for all member jurisdictions and the staff are

an integral part of those services.

Working together as a region, we can do great things for the future of our Bay Area.

it e



L

TABLE OF
CONTENTS




HIGHLIGHTS

ABOUT
ABAG

* Founded in 1961 as the State’s first Council of Governments
to provide a forum for local elected officials to discuss topical
issues that transcend town, city, and county borders.

o Fifty-five+ years later, ABAG provides a range of regional
planning activities and services from the Local Collaboration
Programs to towns, cities, and counties of the San Francisco
Bay Area.

e Established as a Joint Powers Authority, each member
jurisdiction is directly represented in the General Assembly,
the governing body.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



INTRODUCTION

As the San Francisco Bay Area’s regional Council of Governments, the Association of Bay Area
Governments (ABAG) provides a range of services to its member cities, towns, and counties.

ABAG was created in 1961, to provide a forum for local elected officials to discuss topical issues,
specifically around regional planning and in later years, services. ABAG was the first Council of
Governments established in California.

Recognizing that community issues transcend local boundaries, ABAG now examines issues of regional
and local concern addressing planning and research needs related to land use, environmental, and water
resource protection; disaster resilience and energy efficiency; provides risk and claims management; and
financial services to local counties, cities, and towns.

ABAG is a joint powers authority and membership is comprised of the 101 cities and towns and the
nine counties of the San Francisco Bay Area. Elected officials from each serve as governance for the
organization. Organizational and governance charts are included in this document on the following pages.

As described in the President’s and Executive Director’s messages, ABAG and MTC are entering into
(1) a contract to consolidate staff functions under one executive director (CS) and (2) a memorandum
of understanding regarding new governance options (MOU).

As of July 1, 2017, the ABAG staff is expected to merge with MTC. ABAG and MTC will remain separate
governance entities with their own statutory authorities and responsibilities, policy positions, assets,
liabilities, revenues, and debts; as will the Local Collaboration Programs. The consolidated staff will serve
both organizations.

This document, the Budget and Work Program, contains the details of the programs and services provided
in 2016-2017 and the planned activities and budget for 2017-2018. Additional information is provided

at www.abag.ca.gov. If you do not find the information you need in this 2017-2018 Budget and Work
Program, please contact ABAG President Julie Pierce (julie_pierce@comcast.net) or Acting Executive
Director Brad Paul (bradp@abag.ca.gov).

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 7



L

GOVERNANCE
CHART

Inter Agency
Committees

Regional Airport Planning
Committee

Bay Area Regional
Collaborative

Appointments

Bay Conservation and
Development Commission
(4)

Metropolitan Transportation
Commission

(1)

Bay Area Council
Economic Institute
(19)

San Francisco Estuary
Partnership
(©)

Regional Seaport Advisory
Committee
@

San Francisco Bay
Restoration Authority

(")

Members

101 Towns and Clties
and Nine Counties

General Assembly

ABAG Executive Board

President Julie Pierce

Standing Committees

Administrative
Committee

8 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM

Financial and Personnel

Regional Planning
Committee

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

Legislation and

Governmental
Organization Committee




%
Cas’

CONSOLIDATED ORGANIZATIONAL
CHART

Metropolitan
Transportation
Commission

Chair Jake Mackenzie

Office of General Counsel

Steve Heminger :
- - Executive Staff
Executive Director

Local Government Services
Brad Paul
Deputy Executive Director

San Francisco

Policy
Alix Bockelman
Deputy Executive Director

Integrated Land Use

Operations
Andrew Fremier

Deputy Executive Director

Administration and

Finance
Brian Mayhew
Chief Financial Officer

Budget and Revenue

Estuary Partnership

Staffing for San
Francisco Bay
Restoration Authority

Energy Programs
— POWER
BayREN

— ABAG PLAN

— SHARP

ABAG Finance
Authority

and Transportation Facilities
Planning Department

Account Fiscal

Management
Housing Technology Services
Jobs & Workforce — —_—
— Resilience IT — Treasury
Trails & Open Space
Complete
Communities Capital
- [ Development

Local Engagement &
Research Teams

—  Electronic Payments

Programming and
Allocations

Legislation and
Public Affairs

Communications
Legislative Activity
Website

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM



PLANNING
AND RESEARCH*

HIGHLIGHTS e Supports Bay Area’s diverse communities with regional
planning services

¢ | ong term relationships created at the regional and at the local
level with elected officials and staff of towns, cities, and counties

PROGRAM Five interconnected programs supported by local engagement
OVERVIEW and research teams

THE Housing, Jobs and Workforce, Complete Communities, Resilience,
PROGRAMS and Open Space and Trails offer much for local governments

THE ® Research and Local Engagement provides substantial knowledge
TEAMS and innovation

e | ocal collaboration is an essential dimension of the planning and
research programs

e Research Team provides the analytic tools and data to support
Bay Area regional and local planning

* After integration, Planning and Research Department will be the Integrated Regional
Planning Program (Integrated Planning Program). In discussion of activities in fiscal year

2016-2017, the Planning Program will be referred to as ABAG Planning and Research.
Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



INTRODUCTION

. Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA)* . Best practies, & funding strategies
. Plan Bay Area land use pattern* . Housing needs and production analysis

. Regional growth forecast* . Priority Production Areas

Jobs & Workf
obs orkiorce . Regional Economic Development District

. Natural disaster preparation and recovery . Resilient regional infrastructure and water

Resilience . "
. Safe housing & communities

M=
[T}
=
©
Q
(7]
[}

o

Trails & Open Space . Bay Trail & Water Trail* . Priority Conservation Areas (PCASs)
P P . Plan Bay Area open space* . SF Bay Restoration Authority*
1. Priority Development Areas (PDAS) . Planning grants & local technical support

C lete C iti
omplete Lommunities . Placemaking . Corridors & Centers
Local Engagement

* ABAG legal mandate
Other planning services created through Executive Board Action

As the San Francisco Bay Area’s Council of Governments, ABAG has focused on creating a
collaborative regional land use planning process that supports our valuable assets: local and cultural
diversity, technological innovation, and natural resources. Building upon this collaborative platform,
the 2017-18 work program integrates MTC'’s staff and resources to serve the needs of the Bay
Area’s diverse communities. Transportation expertise and funding can strengthen the work of ABAG’s
Council of Governments on housing, infrastructure and land use. Planning and Research programs
will continue to support the preservation of our open space and the vitality of our diverse economy.
Recognizing these resources, today, concerted efforts will be essential to address our substantial
housing challenges and help carry out the Plan Bay Area 2040 Implementation Action Plan. While
the Bay Area has experienced substantial and successful job growth for more than seven years, the
majority of our workers have experienced lower wages along with limited and unaffordable housing,
which in turn is triggering substantial congestion and longer commutes. These challenges are
compounded by the aging of infrastructure, climate change, and the probability of a major earthquake.
Housing our population requires a comprehensive local and regional approach on complete
communities, where new residential buildings provide adequate affordability and are supported by
access to transit, food, schools, services, and open space.

Based on an understanding of these assets and challenges, the work program for the ABAG Planning
and Research Department has been organized into five comprehensive and interconnected programs
and two teams that provide an institutional platform of knowledge and innovation to serve the Bay
Area’s towns, cities, and counties. After July 1, 2017, this work will continue via the Integrated
Regional Planning Program (Integrated Planning Program). Today, our five programs include: Housing,
Jobs and Workforce, Complete Communities, Resilience, and Open Space and Trails. In order for
staff to be responsive to the needs of cities and provide substantial knowledge and innovation,

these five programs have been shaped by two major cross-cutting teams: Local Engagement and
Research. Local Engagement provides specific input on local priorities such as housing investment
needs, support for middle-wage jobs, technical assistance on soft-story buildings, completion of trails,
design of public space, or earthquake resilience. The programs are also well informed with a solid data
foundation on economic, demographic, and land use trends as well as state of the art analytical tools.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 11



INTRODUCTION

L

SECTION

PLANNING AND
RESEARCH

Conducted across the work program and essential to Plan Bay Area, the planning work mainstay is
the locally designated Priority Development Areas (PDAs) and Priority Conservation Areas (PCAS).
These areas solidify local input into regional planning. The PDAs are places of focused growth

that make good use of existing public infrastructure, offer more mobility choices, and strengthen
local history and culture. The PCAs recognize jurisdictions’ high priority for preserving the natural
environment and creating healthy communities. These two area types will soon be complemented by
Priority Production Areas, a third program being developed in response to local requests. The current
Plan Bay Area update will be completed by Summer 2017. The next Plan Bay Area will be developed
in conjunction with the Regional Housing Need Allocation by 2021.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

12 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM



L

SECTION

PLANNING AND
RESEARCH

LOCAL ENGAGEMENT TEAM

P\ | 3
Bayhea & |
20340 s

Planning program staff works closely with staff and elected officials in towns, cities, counties, and
partner agencies, and with colleagues in ABAG's local collaboration programs—ABAG Finance
Authority, ABAG POWER, BayREN, San Francisco Bay Trail, San Francisco Bay Area Water Tralil,
and the San Francisco Estuary Partnership.

Local collaboration is also an essential dimension of the planning and research programs. The
Regional Planning Committee (RPC) is a platform of dialogue among elected officials and stakeholders
to advise the Executive Board on key decisions such as PDAs, PCAs, land use growth allocation or
Regional Housing Need Alocation (RHNA). The RPC hosts three sub-committees with specific tasks:
Housing, Economic and Workforce Development, and Resilient Infrastructure. In addition, the planning
and research department is an integral part of the ABAG General Assembly (GA) and the Delegate
Meetings as well as Plan Bay Area and the ABAG Administration Committee retreat. The GA is an
opportunity to discuss key regional concerns and projects with our Bay Area elected officials, once or
twice a year. This is complemented by the Delegate Meetings, which discuss more specific issues by
county at least once a year.

At the staff level, meetings with city managers and planning directors by county have been essential
to understand core issues on the ground and target our efforts. To address issues by jurisdiction,
planners are assigned to engage with each city and county of the Bay Area. Planners are responsible
for participating in planning directors’ meetings, coordinating with elected officials, addressing key
issues, and ensuring that local concerns are addressed in regional plans and strategies.

ABAG’s Research Team provides the analytic tools and data to support Bay Area regional and

local planning. The research team presents a unique understanding of conditions and trends. The
team puts local conditions in a regional context, addresses a comprehensive set of economic and
demographic factors at a regional level, and is sensitive to factors interacting with land use, housing,
transportation, environmental, and economic policy.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 13



RESEARCH

SECTION

PLANNING AND
RESEARCH

ABAG'’s research program provides information services to the planning 2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS
team, partner regional agencies (e.g., MTC, BCDC), local jurisdictions,
and outside parties. Our motivating analytical challenge is to

* Forecasting growth

provide understanding of a large and diverse region which has * Understanding economic
an economy that is the envy of the world yet is saddled with a number development
of endemic challenges, chiefly the timely and geographically sensible * Improving housing data

provision of housing, providing a trained workforce to meet the needs
of expanding employers, and a transportation network able to serve the
region. While there are many prominent research groups in the region,
ABAG's research program has a unique focus that puts local conditions
in a regional context, addresses a comprehensive set of economic

and demographic conditions at a regional level, and is sensitive to the
interactions of these factors with land use, housing, transportation,
environmental, and economic policy.

Major tasks in 2016-2017 included:

* Applying economic analysis to
resilience research

Forecasting growth: the ABAG Research Program develops and
maintains approaches for projecting employment, output, income,
population, households, and housing demand for the 9-county Bay
Area, including adding version 2.0 of the REMI model to the agency’s
forecasting tools, maintaining background information on jurisdiction
general plans and zoning ordinances; communicating with jurisdictions
on the local implications of the projected distribution of the regional
forecast; and working with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission
(MTC) staff to refine the UrbanSim model of the region.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

14 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM



How the Bay Area Commutes: Orgins and Destinations by County
ABAG from US Census Bureau, CTP 2006-10 release




L

SECTION

PLANNING AND
RESEARCH

HOUSING

During 2016-2017, ABAG continued its long-standing,
proactive support of housing action by its member
jurisdictions and implementation partners.

Impact Information — ABAG developed and presented
compelling information to promote an understanding of
regional housing development patterns (2015 housing
permit location data), housing policy consensus (city-by-city
housing policy database, Maintaining Housing Affordability
and Neighborhood Stability in the Bay Area — a distillation
of 13 housing solution implementation toolkits), and housing
implementation tools (housing policy toolkit, seismic safety
assessment manual).

Technical Assistance — Supported local and subregional
efforts (Grand Boulevard Initiative’s housing toolkit, East Bay
Corridors Initiative’s softstory safety model ordinance) to adopt
and implement best-practices.

Consensus & Constituency Development — ABAG
convened a Housing Subcommittee of its Regional Planning
Committee to identify and advance a broadly endorsed
regional housing action initiative, and partnered with MTC to
produce an illuminating Housing Forum.

2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS

* Developed and presented 2015 housing
permit location data, city-by-city housing
policy database, housing policy toolkit,
and seismic safety assessment manual

* Supported Grand Boulevard
Initiative’s housing toolkit, East Bay
Corridors Initiative’s softstory safety
model ordinance

* Convened Housing Subcommittee
of the Regional Planning Committee
to identify and advance a broadly
endorsed regional housing action
initiative, and partnered with MTC
to produce Housing Forum.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

16 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM



-
I,

In 2017-2018, the Integrated Planning Program will continue to
facilitate the creation of an adequate housing supply to house future
and current generations of Bay Area residents from all backgrounds:
plentiful (so overcrowding and long commutes become unnecessary),
affordable (to Bay Area residents at all incomes), resilient (safe during
and habitable after natural disasters), sustainable (energy and water
efficient) and secure (against involuntary displacement).

Local development that creates great places in complete
communities and regional co-benefits — the Integrated Planning
Program will work with local jurisdictions and stakeholders to support
timely housing development and preservation that conforms to local,
regional, and state requirements, especially in high-opportunity /
low-Green House Gas areas; job and transit proximate areas; and
especially for permanently affordable housing.

Safer Smarter Homes — the Integrated Planning Program will
provide leadership and technical assistance to accelerate “integrated
retrofits” so existing homes become more hazard resilient, more
energy/water efficient, and more accommodating of a wider range of
life-cycle and life-style choices (such as adding accessory units).

Regional Housing Trust Fund to dramatically increase
funding — the Integrated Planning Program will support state,
regional, and local efforts to develop dedicated revenue sources
for housing infrastructure, affordable housing development gap
financing, and affordable housing operating subsidies by incubating
innovative regional institutional structures that can amplify and unify
state and local efforts, public and private.

2017-18 GOALS

» Continue to support timely housing
development and preservation (e.g.,
encouraging accessory units, supporting
acquisition/rehabilitation)

* Provide leadership and technical
assistance to accelerate “integrated
retrofits” — safer, smarter homes

* Support efforts to create a Regional
Housing trust fund to increase funding
for affordable housing needs.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 17



L

SECTION

PLANNING AND
RESEARCH

JOBS AND WORKFORCE

e e e il

The ABAG economic and workforce development program is a response to the call for regional economic and
workforce development coordination after Plan Bay Area 2013. Built on existing efforts and partnerships at the
regional and local level, the ABAG program works to move across silos, and provide a sound understanding
of the relationship between the region’s policy and regulatory environment and economic opportunity, increase
opportunities for collaboration and cooperation among economic and workforce organizations in the region,
and maintain the competitiveness of the region’s industries while expanding access to opportunities for all

Bay Area residents.

2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS

* Launched an effort to establish a Bay Area Regional Economic Development District. \Working
with US Economic Development Administration (USEDA), ABAG established an Economic Strategy
Committee to act as a Technical Advisory Committee, and organized a team to create a Comprehensive
Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) report, beginning a broad based engagement strategy with regional
stakeholders to achieve regional consensus around economic and workforce development strategies.

* Developed a draft regional CEDS report. ABAG drafted an economic profile of the region, an analysis of
strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats (SWOT analysis), and a framework for a Strategic Action
Plan that includes a vision statement, goals, objectives and supporting strategies.

* Developed a Priority Production Area program. Responding to the need of goods movement and firms
located on industrial land that constitute a critical component of the regional economy, ABAG partnered with
Professor Karen Chapple and UC Berkeley on a study of supply, demand, and absorption of industrial land
and space and outlined a Priority Production Area program to address the needs of production, distribution,
and repair functions in the region.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

18 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM



10 =
e

oI N | s

‘ilif!l.-'.&-- .

2017-18 GOALS

The program’s goals for the 2017-2018 fiscal year are to establish the platform for regional collaboration on
economic and workforce development and to develop implementation tools to address issues such as retention
of critical industrial land supply. Specific efforts will include:

* Continue with the process of establishing a Regional Economic Development District by finalizing
the CEDS report, adoption of the Strategic Action Plan by county Boards of Supervisors, ABAG,
and working with regional representatives, business, workforce equity, and other stakeholders to create
a governance structure.

* Support economic and workforce development implementation actions through providing technical
assistance, leveraging federal, state, public, and private grants for local jurisdictions, and developing
a clearing house of economic development actions and best practices in the region.

* Expand the Priority Production Area concept into a regional program to be implemented at the local level by
providing a set of criteria for identifying critical areas for survival of industrial, middle wage jobs, and model
program descriptions and ordinances.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 19



L

SECTION

PLANNING AND
RESEARCH

RESILIENCE

The ABAG Resilience Program is a unique effort to continually
improve the Bay Area’s capacity to recover from natural

disasters. Resilience Program staff work closely with Bay Area
cities, counties, and other agencies to reduce the impacts of
climate change and natural hazards. Hazards include: drought,
earthquake, extreme heat, flooding, landslides, sea level rise, and
wildfires. The program supports local decision makers, serving as
a regional convener for life-saving resilience planning, and providing
technical assistance for local action to improve resilience.

In 2016-2017, ABAG — provided hands-on assistance to 80+ city
and county administrators in plan-writing workshops for Best-
practice Hazard Mitigation Plans. Approved plans allow access

to FEMA funds post-disaster.

To strengthen At-Risk Apartment Buildings — tens of thousands of
apartments in hundreds of buildings are earthquake vulnerable —
ABAG is helping 15 cities conduct assessments, adopt ordinances
and establish programs to save lives and prevent displacement, as
part of ABAG’s East Bay Corridors Initiative.

Developed a Water Resilience Initiative in response to multi-

year drought and heightened risk of El Nino flooding, ABAG
convened an Infrastructure Subcommittee of the Regional Planning
Committee to explore solutions and opportunities common to
cities, counties, and water districts. ABAG developed new tools

to support this process, including a comprehensive inventory of

all agencies’ respective water responsibilities.

2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS

* Provided hands-on assistance to
80+ city and county administrators
in Best-practice Hazard Mitigation
Plan writing

* Assisted 15 cities in Strengthening
At-Risk Apartment Buildings

* Convened an Infrastructure
Subcommittee of the Regional
Planning Committee to explore
a Water Resilience Initiative

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

20 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM



A magnitude 7.0 earthquake releases Bay Area Population Growth!
33 times more energy than a magnitude
6.0 and 1000 times more than a
magnitude 5.0 earthquake. The M7.8
1906 earthquake released 500 times
more energy than the M6.0 2014 South
Napa Earthquake. (Sphere volume is
representative of quake energy.)

1 million

1830 1850 1870 1890 1910 1930 1950 1970 1990 2010 >>

| — =y ~ . r Bay Area Earthquakes (>M6.0)2
i
. s Over this 58 year period the 2014 M6.0

Bay Area region did not South Napa
0 o MM’ B | | experience a M6.0 or greater o
earthquake while the region

19O6IM7.8 added four million people. 1989 M6.9
The “Big One Loma Prieta

Data Sources:
1. bayareacensus.ca.gov
2. Ellsworth (1990)



REGIONAL TRAILS & OPEN SPACE

L

SECTION

PLANNING AND
RESEARCH

r":.'.{. i.__ _.' e il !

y ool T [
-2 X0, ¥ A
VORI . N - .

The San Francisco Bay Trail, the San Francisco Bay 2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS
Area Water Trail, and the Priority Conservation Area
program are regional projects coordinated by ABAG
and implemented by local agencies and organizations

¢ Seven miles constructed, reaching the
milestone of 350 miles and 70% complete

to advance the protection and stewardship of natural * Bay Trail Design Guidelines & Toolkit released
resources and expand the system of urban trails, parks, to shoreline partners outlining the principles
bikeways and bay access to increase the quality of life, for designing and developing the remaining
health, and economic prosperity of the region. sections of Bay Trall

» Six new Bay Trail smart audio phone tours
were created and a $15,000 grant was
secured from Google to complete a tour at
the Google campus in Mountain View

In 2016, the San Francisco Bay Trail reached 350

out of 500 miles — that’'s 70% complete — with the
construction of seven miles of trail, including 4 miles in
Hayward at Eden Landing Ecological Preserve, 2.5 miles
at Sears Point Restoration Area in Sonoma County and 2017-18 GOALS
the last stretch of the pathway on the East Span of the
San Francisco-Oakland Bay Bridge linking to Yerba Buena
Island. Six new Bay Trail smart phone audio tours were
created around the region and the San Francisco Bay Tralil

* Seek and provide funding to implementing
agencies to significantly advance the
development of the Bay Tralil

Design Guidelines & Toolkit was released to local partners * Expand awareness of the Bay Tralil
outlining recommended principles for designing and through new smart phone audio tours,
developing the remaining trail gaps. Migrations regional art program, and other

outreach tools

* Develop a strategy to analyze the condition of
existing segments of Bay Trail in coordination
with shoreline partners

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

22 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM



The San Francisco Bay Area Water Trail has hit its stride with 30
officially-designated sites to date. The Water Trail is a growing network

of launching and landing sites, or “trailheads,” around San Francisco

Bay. Each trailhead enables non-motorized small boat users to enjoy the
historic, scenic, cultural, and environmental richness of the San Francisco
Bay and its nearby tributary waters. Potentially, more than 100 existing
marinas, waterfront parks, and other publicly accessible sites will become
part of the Water Trail through regional collaboration. In 2016, the Water
Trail grant program, made possible by the State Coastal Conservancy,
awarded nearly $500,000 to local jurisdictions for site enhancements. Also,
Water Trail staff worked with the East Bay Regional Park District to create
a comprehensive, two-county Water Trail Implementation Plan that serves
as a model for other areas of the region.

2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS
¢ Designated the 30th Water Trail site

* Allocated over $490,000 for water access
improvements

* Completed East Bay Regional Park District Water
Trail Implementation Plan

2017-18 GOALS
* Designate up to 50 Water Trail sites

¢ Complete a set of Water Trail maps and update
the Water Trail website

* Develop a detailed list of projects and assist
partners with applying for available funds

The Priority Conservation Area (PCA) program is a component of Plan Bay
Area that emphasizes the importance of open spaces providing agricultural,
natural resource, scenic, recreational, urban greening and/or ecological value
in the nine-county area. These areas are identified through consensus by local
jurisdictions and park/open space districts as lands in need of protection or
enhancement due to pressure from urban development or other factors. In
2016, the program reached a total of 165 designated PCAs representing a
variety of landscapes within which projects will be eligible for One Bay Area
Grant (OBAG) funds.

2017-18 GOALS

» Solicit applications and manage a competitive
grant program under the One Bay Area Grant
(OBAG) program in partnership with MTC and
the State Coastal Conservancy to fund eligible
projects within PCA boundaries

* Update and maintain a comprehensive and
informative PCA website with county-specific PCA
maps as a public and local agency resource

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 23



COMPLETE COMMUNITIES

L

_./ﬁﬁm ] i gans

PLANNING AND
RESEARCH

B

Together with Priority Conservation Areas (PCAs), Priority Development 2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS
Areas are the foundation for sustainable regional growth and Plan Bay

Area. A partnership between MTC and ABAG, the Priority Development
Area program supports community-based PDA plans across the region * Worked with a cross-section of
and provides focused implementation initiatives. cities about community assets

and aspirations for PDAs
Work in 2016-2017 focused on:

* Managed 15 planning grants

* Brought together cities
connected by transit corridors,
and the region’s three largest
cities, to identify common

challenges and pursue shared
Complete Communities — Staff worked with a cross-section of local opportunities.

staff, design professionals, developers, schools, and community
organizations to advance placemaking strategies, including urban
greening, profiles of successful places, and forums for regional dialogue
about community assets and aspirations for PDAs.

Regional Planning Grants — ABAG managed 15 planning grants that
allow Bay Area cities and counties to deliver locally adopted plans

for PDAs that address a full range of issues and set the stage for a
transparent development process consistent with the community’s vision.

Corridors and Centers — ABAG brought together cities connected

by transit corridors, and the region’s three largest cities, to identify
common challenges and pursue shared opportunities. 2016-17 saw the
implementation of priorities identified by Corridor jurisdictions including
a model ordinance for safe housing; corridor-wide green infrastructure
priorities; an EPA Brownfields grant; and $50 million for catalyst
affordable housing and transportation projects.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

24 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM



Efforts in 2017-18 are:

Tailored PDA Planning Grants — In partnership with MTC, the Integrated Planning
Program will expand successful elements of the PDA program and add new focus

areas responsive to emerging challenges identified through consultation with local staff.

New guidelines and a Call for Projects will be released in mid-2017.

Corridors and Centers Collaboration — Continue to implement the East Bay Corridor
Initiative’s priorities, convene the region’s three largest cities to identify shared
objectives; and utilize housing expertise to support the Grand Boulevard Initiative.

Regional placemaking and PDA dialogue — Through direct engagement with local
officials and the Places of the Bay Area website, the Integrated Planning Program
will provide forums for people with diverse perspectives to discuss local issues and
aspirations related to PDAs.

Entitlement efficiency — the Integrated Planning Program will create web-based
tools to assist local planners and developers in identifying locations that have existing
incentives for housing and commercial development, particularly affordable housing.

2017-18 GOALS

|dentify and expand successful
elements of the PDA program
and add new focus areas

Continue to implement Corridors
and Centers Collaboration

Facilititate, engage, and provide
forums to discuss PDA local issues
and aspirations

Create web-based tools to assist
in identifying locations that currently
have incentives for housing in place.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 25



LOCAL
COLLABORATION
PROGRAMS

HIGHLIGHTS ¢ Millions of dollars saved by counties, cities, and towns in staff
time and administrative costs.

e All 101 Bay Area cities and nine counties rely on Local
Collaboration Programs to serve their communities.

¢ |ife-saving best practices and quality of life improvements are
offered for all Bay Area residents.

PROGRAM e | ocal Collaboration Programs are administered by ABAG staff.

O RVIEV e Many Local Collaboration Programs have an independent

governing board comprised of city and county representatives.

THE ¢ |n the last five years, grant income has increased 225%,
BOTTOM from $16 million to almost $52 million.
LINE

® The combined reserve amounts exceed $35 million.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY
o3 PARTNERSHIP

SECTION

LOCAL
COLLABORATION
PROGRAMS

The San Francisco Estuary Partnership (Partnership) and its cooperating agencies and organizations both
initiated, and continued work on a wide array of projects and activities in support of the Partnership’s
mandate: To protect, enhance, and restore the San Francisco Bay-Delta Estuary. The Partnership currently
manages $100 million in funding for local and regional restoration, water quality, and climate resiliency
projects and programs.

2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS

* Released the 2016 Estuary Blueprint, a regional comprehensive vision for the future of the San
Francisco Estuary. More than 100 scientists, regulators, businesses, municipalities, non-governmental
organizations, and citizens collaborated with the Partnership to develop four long-term goals and 32
actions to be taken over the next five years to protect, restore, and sustain the San Francisco Estuary.

* Completed GreenPlan Bay Area, a collaborative effort between San Francisco Estuary Partnership,
San Francisco Estuary Institute, and Bay Area municipalities to develop and pilot the use of a
watershed-based green infrastructure planning tool.

» Continued public outreach efforts such as the planning and execution of the 2016 Bay Delta
Science Conference in partnership with the Delta Science Program, the release of brochures for
local governments on natural infrastructure and green streets, and the 25th year of publication of
our award-winning ESTUARY News magazine.

2017-18 GOALS
* Working with partners to implement and track successes of the Estuary Blueprint.

* Planning and execution of the highly successful 2017 State of the Estuary Conference, with
800 attendees expected.

* Expanding the Clean Vessel Act Program with new funding and new initiatives. The Program focuses
on reducing water quality impacts by undertaking outreach and education efforts with boaters to
prevent sewage discharge.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 27



%
Cas?

SECTION

LOCAL
COLLABORATION
PROGRAMS

POWER

Since its formation in 1998, ABAG POWER has played a critical
role in serving the energy needs of many local governments and
public agencies in the Bay Area. Since its inception in a time of
rapidly evolving energy markets, the objective of the program has
been to provide leadership for local governments in the areas

of energy procurement and energy management by creating
voluntary, region-wide energy purchasing pools administered by
ABAG POWER. Pooled purchasing allows the program to negotiate
preferential pricing of energy supply for use in public facilities like
hospitals, police and fire stations, zoos, and community centers.
Today, the program strives to fulfill measurable and often competing
goals of cost savings and price stability. These goals differ from that
of Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E) which is incentivized to
provide low-cost gas on a near term (monthly) basis.

ABAG POWER'’s natural gas purchasing pool recently completed
its nineteenth year of operation and currently serves nearly 40
member agencies throughout PG&E’s service territory. Each
member is guaranteed a voice in program operations and decisions
through its representative to the ABAG POWER Board of Directors
and Executive Committee. The pool’s annual usage footprint is
roughly equivalent to gas usage from 12,000 homes in California.
For much of the past year, market rates for natural gas declined
significantly and remained relatively low, however, price volatility
remains a significant risk and can be caused by many factors
including abnormal weather patterns, political instability, the price
of alternative products (e.g., oil), and regulatory actions. ABAG
POWER closely monitors these price volatility factors as part of
their service and continues to follow regulatory actions that may
affect the natural gas and electrical energy markets.

2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS

* ABAG POWER'’s commodity rates
remained more stable than PG&E’s
during the past fiscal year

* The recent addition of a promising
natural gas supplier and continued
refinements to the program’s gas
purchasing strategy provide increased
potential for savings.

* Recently, the program has seen three
consecutive year-on-year decreases in
ABAG'’s administrative operating fees.

2017-18 GOALS

* The Executive Committee will continue
to discuss and analyze refinements
to the gas purchasing strategy and
customer service and billing/reporting
aspects of the program.

* In coming years, continue efforts to
fulfill environmental responsibility and
sustainability by promoting use of
renewable gas where appropriate.

* Continue to examine opportunities to
expand the program’s membership
while successfully adapting to
California’s aggressive environmental
policy goals.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

28 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM



SECTION

LOCAL
COLLABORATION
PROGRAMS

BayREN

Formed in 2012 as a collaboration between ABAG and the

nine Bay Area counties, the Bay Area Regional Energy Network
(BayREN) helps Bay Area residents and communities become
more energy efficient. BayREN draws on the expertise, experience,
and proven track record of local Bay Area governments to build
the internal capacity of local cities and counties to administer
successful climate, resource, and sustainability programs. BayREN
has a portfolio of energy efficiency programs that include: single
family and multifamily energy retrofit programs that offer monetary
incentives; Codes and Standards that works with local building
officials to better understand and comply with the State Energy
Code; and several financing programs including an on bill water
efficiency program and a zero interest loan funds for eligible
multifamily energy retrofit projects. BayREN is primarily funded

by Public Goods Charges approved by the California Public
Utilities Commission, and currently has an annual budget of

over $16 million.

2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS

* Paid rebates of over $10 million to
Bay Area single family and multifamily
homeowners for making energy retrofits
to their properties, resulting in energy
savings, healthier living environments,
and progress toward state and local
Greenhouse Gas reductions.

* Awarded two new grants from a state
and federal agency, meeting the goal
of diversifying our funding sources.
Also successfully obtained a three year
— rather than one year — contract
totaling $50,611,000.

* Multiple recognitions of
accomplishments and successful
regional structure in reports by state
agencies, nonprofit organizations, and
other stakeholders.

2017-18 GOALS

» Continue with successful programs, but
also obtain approval for new programs.
Expansion includes commercial and
public sector program offerings.

* Greater diversification of funding.

* Increased and continued collaboration
with BAAQMD and BARC (and MTC).

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 29



SECTION

LOCAL
COLLABORATION
PROGRAMS

ABAG PLAN

ABAG PLAN was formed in 1986 to meet the needs of small

and medium-sized cities and towns across the Bay Area who
were otherwise unable to obtain affordable insurance. ABAG
PLAN provides general liability, property and crime insurance

by establishing stable, cost-effective self-insurance and risk
management programs to help protect Bay Area cities from the
damages and costs accrued from accidents or other incidents.
Members are 28 towns and cities from six Bay Area counties.
Serving as an essential resource for members, ABAG PLAN
helps to insulate cities and towns from losses and manage fiscal
resources by working to mitigate risks. Since many members may
not have an in-house risk management department, ABAG PLAN
staff serve as an extension of city staff with services, training, and
strategic support, and thus setting us apart from other risk pools.

ABAG PLAN provides members with:

Insurance Program — Self-insured, risk sharing pool with broad
coverage, interest on reserves, and a return of assets

Claims Management — Dedicated claims examiners who provide
investigative services, advice, and strategy

Risk Management — Strategic advice and support around best
practices for risk management and mitigation; member surplus
funding reallocated as risk management grants to long term risk
mitigating activities and trainings.

ABAG PLAN offers workshops both via online training and in
person, e.g. Defensive Driving or Sidewalk Liability Prevention.
Larger educational programs include the annual “Be Sewer Smart
Summit, which provides valuable tips to prevent sewer challenges,
and the Urban Forest Forum, sponsored in collaboration with the
Urban Forest Council, which provides tools for mitigating and
managing potential risks associated with trees and landscaping.

Iltem 11, Proposed

30 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM

2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS

* Maintained a balanced budget
and offered stable rates for premium
contributions to the members.
This greatly helps the jurisdictions’
budget planning.

* Successfully managed investments
and claim outcomes to grow budget
surplus (equity).

* Continued customized assistance to
members in assessing and maintaining
best practices in order to reduce losses
and preserve fiscal resources for the
individual members as well as the pool
at large.

2017-18 GOALS

* Maintain cost stabilization and affordable
protection options for the members
going forward.

* Continue assistance to members with
strategic risk management planning
and increase risk management training
offerings while remaining responsive
to requested and relevant topics.
Continue the positive correlation
between knowledge/implementation
and outcomes/lower claim activity.

* Ongoing performance improvement of
contracted partners to assure program

Budgise? %er;%}iwgﬁt(ir&’arl%’g ram



L

SECTION

LOCAL
COLLABORATION
PROGRAMS

ABAG FINANCE AUTHORITY

The ABAG Finance Authority has been providing conduit financing
to various public and private organizations throughout the state of
California since 1990.

As a conduit issuer, the Finance Authority provides a convenient,
cost saving, and secure method of accessing the market to aid in
the financing needs of public agencies and their non-profit and for-
profit partners. To date, we have provided over $8 billion in low cost
investment capital for projects in more than 240 local jurisdictions.
We have helped our members fund construction of affordable
housing and retirement facilities, new hospitals and medical clinics,
private schools and cultural institutions, transit systems, water and
wastewater systems, and other essential public infrastructure. We
take special focus on assisting in the construction and preservation
of affordable housing, providing financing to date for nearly twelve-
thousand units in one hundred affordable apartment communities.

Recent financing activities include: the Morgan Autism Center

in San Jose, $9.7 million in tax-exempt bonds; the Independent
Order of the Odd Fellows, an organization committed to helping
others, $71.4 million in tax-exempt bonds for the construction of
its Meadows of Napa Valley continuing care retirement community;
the Crean Lutheran High School of Irvine, $33 million in tax-exempt
financing to refund outstanding debt and raise new money to
continue construction of existing facilities; and the Presidio Knolls
School in San Francisco with a $4.9 million tax-exempt financing to
refund an existing loan and to renovate existing facilities.

2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS

* Hired experienced public finance
professionals to rebuild and relaunch
the conduit issuance program; revised
and rebuilt website, including new online
application and fee structure

* Implemented marketing strategy to
generate new business; attended
and presented at California Society
of Municipal Analysts (CSMA) annual
conference; met with industry
professionals

* Assisted three non-profit educational
institutions and a retirement community
with issuing tax-exempt financings

2017-18 GOALS

* Create a new JPA for conduit financing
to member agencies

* Be an industry leader in meeting and
exceeding State reporting requirements
for conduit issuers

* Investigate and pursue new financing
opportunities to assist ABAG members
with financing needs

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 31



HIGHLIGHTS &
PROGRAM OVERVIEW

EXTERNAL
AFFAIRS

Informing and engaging ABAG’s membership, as well as local elected
officials, local government staff, and the general public about ABAG’s
programs and services related to land use, the environment, resilience,
risk management, and energy efficiency.

Providing outreach activities, media relations, and regional and local
events; delivered via the website, electronic communication, printed
reports, and in person.

Work collaboratively to influence legislation related to land use,
housing, and energy and water efficiency.

Provide fiscal management services to Local Collaboration Programs.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITY

SECTION

EXTERNAL
AFFAIRS

The ABAG Legislative and Governmental Organization
(L&GO) Committee is a platform for elected officials

from the Bay Area’s cities, towns, and counties to work
collaboratively to influence legislation that impacts local
governments. In 2016, Alameda County Supervisor Scott
Haggerty served as L&GO Chair. Approximately 30 state
bills were reviewed by the Committee during the 2016
legislative session. Key areas of emphasis for the L&GO
Committee included local governments, land use and
housing, energy efficiency, environment, hazardous waste,
and resiliency.

ABAG's L&GO Committee actively supported legislation
related to land use, housing, and energy and water
efficiency. The L&GO supported AB 2406 (Thurmond)
Housing: Junior Accessory Dwelling Units that was
chaptered into law, as well as SB 1030 (McGuire) Sonoma
County Regional Climate Protection Authority that became
law. The L&GO also pursued ABAG POWER authored
Water Efficiency Financing Legislation in 2016.

Activities included a Legislative Workshop and

Reception co-hosted by ABAG, MTC and the California
State Association of Counties. The program featured
legislative committee chairs along with several other
leading state legislators and staff from State Department
of Housing and Community Development. These
legislators and agency leaders discussed bills and
initiatives related to local governments, land use, housing,
transportation, and environmental challenges. More than
70 attendees participated in this important forum for local
elected officials.

2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS

Conducted policy briefings and
pursued legislation addressing the
committee priorities.

Produced Legislative Workshop and
Reception co-hosted by ABAG, MTC and
the California State Association of Counties.

Facilitated discussions with legislators
about Bay Area needs and challenges.

2017-18 GOALS

Continue to pursue legislation that provides
resources and incentives for planning,
infrastructure, and services to assist local
governments, as well as State and Federal
legislation establishing innovative financing
and project delivery mechanisms.

Continue to focus on SB 375 and Plan Bay
Area Implementation through legislative
objectives such as affordable housing funding
and housing element reform.

ABAG will continue to monitor
implementation of the Cap and Trade
Program. Continue to seek voter threshold
reduction for infrastructure taxes and
bonds statewide and locally.

Increase focus on physical and
economic resilience.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 33



L

SECTION

EXTERNAL
AFFAIRS

COMMUNICATIONS

The Communications Department worked with all departments

to promote ABAG’s mission and to inform and engage members.

The group led a strategic campaign to expand the awareness
and understanding of ABAG’s programs and services and raise
awareness of the benefits to local governments. The strategy
was rolled out with streamlined program fact sheets and
presentations before the ABAG Executive Board throughout
Fall and Winter of 2016-2017. Major efforts included production
and management of regional conferences and workshops,
publications, media relations, and web outreach centered

on ABAG programs and services.

Events included the Spring General Assembly in 2016, as well
as a 2016 Special General Assembly on May 19th to discuss
merger options and vote on a recommendation to the ABAG
Executive Board, and a Special General Assembly in January
2017. The Communications group also worked with ABAG’s
Acting Executive Director and Planning staff to facilitate
Delegate meetings in the region. Delegate meetings served as
an important tool for information exchange and collaboration
amongst cities within the counties. Communications also
assisted with production of the Bay Area Confluence forum in
November. Each of these events brought together more than
100 local elected officials.

In addition to facilitating these regional forums and other
activities, monthly electronic newsletters with organizational
updates, planning information, and program/service highlights
were distributed. The revamped ABAG website was used to
feature news announcements and twitter feeds. Updates on
ABAG initiatives, programs, and services were consistently
provided on the website. Overall outreach was expanded to
facilitate better use of ABAG programs and services.

2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS

* Planned and coordinated General
Assemblies (GA), including Special
GAs in 2016 and 2017. Outreach and
engagement for regional Plan Bay Area
open houses in 2016 Spring/Summer.

* Produced regular news updates and
twitter feeds on the ABAG website.
Disseminated timely communications
through extensive news blasts linking
to conference proceedings and
presentations.

* Also helped relaunch the ABAG Finance
Authority with an all new website and
collateral material.

2017-18 GOALS

* Plan and coordinate General Assemblies,
other regional forums, and county-wide
Delegate meetings.

* Continue to expand the use of the website
and social media to communicate with
member cities, towns, and counties; key
stakeholders; and the public. Facilitate
access to ABAG programs, projects,
initiatives, and resources using the website
and social media.

* Continue to distribute a monthly electronic
newsletter with updates and planning
information. Secure media interviews
with media outlets with high visibility.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

34 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM



FISCAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES

L

SECTION

EXTERNAL
AFFAIRS

ABAG continues to offer fiscal management services to 2016-17 HIGHLIGHTS
Bay Area public purpose entities and region-wide grant
programs. Financial services are provided to ABAG
PLAN Corporation, ABAG Workers Compensation

Provided fiscal management services for the
following entities:

Shared Risk Pool, ABAG Finance Authority for Nonprofit * ABAG-related: ABAG PLAN Corporation,
Corporations, ABAG Publicly Owned Energy Resources, ABAG Comp Shared Risk Pool, ABAG Finance
and the San Francisco Bay Area Water Emergency Authority, ABAG Publicly Owned Energy

Transit Authority. These services include accounting, Resources, San Francisco Estuary Partnership
financial reports, cash management, investments, debt » QOther: San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority,
issuance, grants management, and other related financial San Francisco Bay Area Water Emergency
support services. Transit Authority.

Major grants for which ABAG exercised fiscal oversight 2017-18 GOALS

in year 2016-2017 totaled $51 million. These include .

Fiscal management services for the San Francisco
Bay Restoration Authority will significantly increase
due to the passage of Measure AA in June 2016.

grants for the promotion and incentivizing the evaluation
of energy efficiency of homes and the installation of

enhancements such as insulation, double-paned Management of the ABAG PLAN Corporation
windows and solar panels, as well as grants to enhance ABAG Comp Shared Risk Pool, ABAG Finance
water quality of the Delta and San Francisco Bay Authority, and ABAG Publicly Owned Energy

including water recycling, cleaning up creeks emptying
into the Bay, and capturing water in natural medians
instead into storm drains.

Resources will continue.

* Continue oversight of major grants with error-free
fiscal management services.
Our accounting procedures and controls for these grants .
are examined by our independent auditors as part of
the ABAG annual audit and larger federal grants are
examined in a “Single Audit” performed in accordance
with Federal auditing standards. Our independent
auditors continue to provide unmodified (positive)
opinions as to our fiscal accountability, and have reported
no fiscal deficiencies or substantial weaknesses in
internal accounting and administrative controls. Starting
on July 1, 2017, these services will be carried out by the

consolidated ABAG/MTC staff. Item 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program
ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 35

Conduct regularly scheduled meetings with
our significant entities to review service levels,
discuss service enhancements, and to facilitate
increased involvement of the managers in the
budget process.

* Provide timely and accurate comprehensive
financial information to the Boards and the public.




BUDGET

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program









L
OPERATING
BUDGET




L

PROPOSED
REVENUES
BY FUNDING
SOURCES

40 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM




L

PROPOSED
REVENUES
BY FUNDING
SOURCES




L

PROPOSED
REVENUES
AND
EXPENSES
BY PROGRAM

Note: The proposed FY 17-18
budget assumes that the local
collaboration programs will
continue to receive the same
level of management and
administrative support services
as provided in the past.

42 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM




REVENUE SOURCES

ABAG TOTAL
FUNDED FEDERAL STATE OTHER SERVICES MEMBERSHIP REVENUES
Program
Expenses

$1,900,077 $418,848 $1,468,929 $12,300 $1,900,077
1,118,708 566,319 547,389 1,118,708
608,876 608,876 608,876
3,622,661 1,175,195 418,848 2,016,318 12,300 3,622,661
38,464,225 2,818,133 35,405,074 241,018 38,464,225
1,025,926 641,970 32,803 33,615 317,638 1,025,926
16,862,131 16,862,131 16,862,131
995,004 995,004 995,004
2,159,835 2,159,835 2,159,835
158,971 168,971 158,971
555,700 555,700 555,700
60,221,792 3,460,103 52,300,008 830,333 3,631,348 60,221,792
588,056 588,056 588,056
97,027 97,027 97,027
685,083 685,083 685,083
1,770,557 390,000 1,380,556 1,770,556
$66,300,093 $4,635,298 $52,718,857 $2,846,651 $4,033,648 $2,065,639 $66,300,093
$66,300,093 $4,635,298 $52,718,857 $2,846,651 $4,033,648 $2,065,639 $66,300,093

! This funding has historically flowed to ABAG from MTC to fund planning activities.

2 This funding is the additional cost to fund the staff consolidation activities.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM



L

PROPOSED
ABAG
MEMBERSHIP
DUES

Base member dues increased
from $737 for fiscal year 2016-
17 to $759.33 as a result of
the prescribed CPI adjustment
of 3.03% for the 12 months
ended October 31, 2016.

The dues rates for each
50,000 population tier

were also increased 3.03%.

Total dues for fiscal year
2017-18 have increased
5.51% as aresult of a
3.03% consumer price index
adjustment and a 1.85%
increase in population for
the nine counties served by
the Association.

44 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM




L

PROPOSED
ABAG
MEMBERSHIP
DUES

Base member dues increased
from $737 for fiscal year 2016-
17 to $759.33 as a result of
the prescribed CPI adjustment
of 3.03% for the 12 months
ended October 31, 2016.

The dues rates for each
50,000 population tier

were also increased 3.03%.

Total dues for fiscal year
2017-18 have increased
5.51% as aresult of a
3.03% consumer price index
adjustment and a 1.85%
increase in population for
the nine counties served by
the Association.




L

PROPOSED
ABAG
MEMBERSHIP
DUES

Base member dues increased
from $737 for fiscal year 2016-
17 to $759.33 as a result of
the prescribed CPI adjustment
of 3.03% for the 12 months
ended October 31, 2016.

The dues rates for each
50,000 population tier

were also increased 3.03%.

Total dues for fiscal year
2017-18 have increased
5.51% as a result of a
3.03% consumer price index
adjustment and a 1.85%
increase in population for
the nine counties served by
the Association.

46 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM




%
Cas’

CONTACT Brad Paul Julie Pierce

Acting Executive Director ABAG President
INFO

bradp@abag.ca.gov julie_pierce@comcast.net
— 415.820.7955

RESEARCH AND PLANNING

SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP

POWER

BayREN

ABAG PLAN

ABAG FINANCE AUTHORITY

LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITY

COMMUNICATIONS

FISCAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES

BUDGET AND DUES

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 47




f::,' Association of Bay Area Governments

375 Beale Street, Suite 700
San Francisco, CA 94105

415.820.7900 PHONE
415.820.7970 FAX
info@abag.ca.gov E-MAIL
www.abag.ca.gov WEB




%
Cus’

DRAFT INTEGRATED REGIONAL PLANNING PROGRAM: 2017-18

This list of anticipated planning program tasks under the 2017-2018 Budget & Work Plan was compiled by ABAG senior planning staff in
consultation with their counterparts at MTC. The work, however, will be carried out by the new Integrated Regional Planning Program staff
that will result from the consolidation of MTC’s and ABAG’s separate planning and research teams on July 1, 2017.

The items listed below represent the best thinking of staff today as we look ahead to the coming fiscal year. As was the case with past
Budget & Work Plans, individual tasks listed here could be delayed or altered, and new tasks may be added based on new information and
opportunities that present themselves in 2017-2018.

KEY TASK

1. Compilation of Housing
Permit Data

2. Improve Permit Data
Accuracy, Scope, and
Ease of Collection

3. Online Policy Directory

4. Housing Policy Toolkit

1a.

1b.

1c.

1d.

2a.

2b.

2cC.

2d.

3a.

3b.

3c.

4a.

4b.

HOUSING

TASK DETAILS

Survey all Bay Area jurisdictions to collect data about location and affordability for all permits
issued. Vet data and work with jurisdictions to gather missing data and resolve
data inconsistencies.

Compile permit data into a uniform region-wide database.

Geocode all permits and analyze data to understand trends about permit location (relative to
PDAs, TPAs, Housing Element sites, etc.), affordability, and unit types. Identify engaging ways to
share analysis results.

Publish RHNA Progress Report and GIS files based on compiled data.

Refine ABAG/MTC internal building data collection processes to improve data timeliness,
consistency, and accuracy.

Continue to work with HCD to improve data required from jurisdictions and/or transfer of data
collected through APRs.

Continue partnership with OpenSMC and jurisdictions to develop technical tools to improve the
quality of housing data collected from local governments and the ease of reporting that data.

Pursue legislative changes as needed to improve data collection processes, accuracy and
Scope.

Compile results of local jurisdiction survey about adopted policies and programs into region-
wide database. Gather missing data, such as links to ordinances.

Expand the display/search functionality of online directory and make information more visual.
Create infographics depicting the Bay Area policy landscape.

Develop online database of existing affordable housing of all types.

Compile examples of best policies, programs, practices, model ordinances, etc. for all policies
in the toolkit; display online.

Develop FAQ related to Bay Area housing issues and oft-requested metrics. Identify existing
policy papers and, if needed, conduct research to answer questions. Develop format for
presenting information online.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



%
Cus’

DRAFT INTEGRATED REGIONAL PLANNING PROGRAM: 2017-18

KEY TASK

5. Technical Assistance

6. Collaboration and
Engagement

7. Legislation

Plan for Major Future Tasks

5a.

5b.
5c.

5d.

5e.

6a.

6b.

6C.

7a.

HOUSING

TASK DETAILS

Help jurisdictions implement State-mandated plans: SCS, Housing elements, Climate Action
Plan, Local Hazard Mitigation Plan etc.

Support ABAG/MTC housing initiatives, such as CASA, TOAH, NOAH, OBAG, JumpStart, etc.

Continue to support sub-regional initiatives, including East Bay Corridors Initiative, Grand
Boulevard Initiative, and existing and potential RHNA subregions.

Work with East Bay Corridors Initiative to provide technical assistance to promote and facilitate
soft-story assessments, soft-story ordinance adoption, and soft-story retrofit financing as well
as the creation of local programs for permitting and financing integrated retrofits that address
seismic, water, and energy upgrades and promote housing affordability.

Expand consultative services to planning/housing staff and policy leaders in cities, counties and
institutions who are working to advance specific ABAG-endorsed land use policies
and practices.

Pro-actively engage jurisdictions’ elected officials and staff, practitioners and advocates to
advance conversations that promote housing production, preservation, affordability and
neighborhood stabilization.

Support the efforts of the Housing Subcommittee of the Regional Planning Committee to
strengthen the linkage between staff-level and policy-level actions, and between ABAG and
key implementation partners, to advance regional housing goals and related legislation.

With the guidance of the Regional Planning Committee Housing Subcommittee, explore
incubation of a Regional Housing Trust Fund to increase resources available for housing
production and preservation.

Support legislation and regulatory reforms that enable cities and counties to advance specific
ABAG-endorsed local land-use policies and practices.

Convene a Housing Methodology Committee (HMC) to assist ABAG in fulfilling its mandate to
conduct the RHNA process.

Work with the HMC to implement the requirements of the RHNA process, per State statutes.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



%
Cus’

DRAFT INTEGRATED REGIONAL PLANNING PROGRAM: 2017-18

KEY TASK

1. Regional Economic
Development District

2. Industrial Lands Policy and
Information

3. Regional Coordination,
Partnerships for Economic
and Workforce Development

Plan for Major Future Tasks

JOBS AND WORKFORCE

TASK DETAILS

1a. Complete Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS)

1a(i). Continue presentations to development organizations and boards of supervisors, work
with supervisors to adopt goals and objectives

1a(ii). Incorporate comments from general public, elected officials and agency staff into draft
CEDS (to be released in 2017).

1a(iii). In conjunction with RPC Economic Strategy Committee, public partners, business
partners, MTC, and other stakeholders, establish governance structure, action plan,
and metrics.

1a(iv). Submit application to US Economic Development Administration for designation as
the Regional Economic Development District of the Bay Area

1b. Maintain Regional Economic Development District Functions

1b(). Technical assistance, coordinating functions, and collaborative activity towards
maintaining the region’s economic strength and broadening access to opportunity;
ongoing meetings with local economic and workforce development representatives
to stay abreast of current economic conditions and their impacts on business and
households.

2a. Define a Priority Production Area (PPA) program that will enhance the strength of sectors
dependent on this space without threatening the critical path for housing production in
the region

2b. Meet with key stakeholders and elected officials in the region to explain the results of
the UC Berkeley industrial lands study, answer questions and obtain feedback.

3a. As needed, attend meetings, provide data and technical assistance to help strengthen planning
for PDAs, PCAs and PPAs and to provide assistance to communities in economic transition.

3b. Develop and maintain website tools to share regional best practices in economic and workforce
development

Develop draft criteria for designating an area a PPA

With input from jurisdictions with representative types of industrial land, develop sample language for
PPA programs in different types of communities

Explore incentive programs that could be applied in PPAs to encourage development that preserves
critical industrial sectors and networks and is consistent with other goals of Plan Bay Area

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



%
Cus’

DRAFT INTEGRATED REGIONAL PLANNING PROGRAM: 2017-18

KEY TASK

1. Safe, Smart Growth
Framework and Pilot

2. Resilient Housing

3. Resilient Infrastructure

4. Mitigation and Adaptation
Plan Assistance

5. Regional Resilience
Assessment

6. Rockefeller 100 Resilient

Cities (100RC) Partnership

7. Statewide policy partnerships

8. USGS Partnership

9. Wildland Fire Study

1a.
1b.

1c.

2a.

2b.
2cC.
2d.

3a.

3b.

4a.

4b.

5a.
5b.

6a.

7a.

7b.

8a.

9a.

9b.

RESILIENCE

TASK DETAILS

Develop short white papers describing the five phases of the Safe, Smart Growth Framework

Develop revised, more detailed guidebooks for cities and regions to guide them through
a resilience-building process

Partner with EPA and FEMA to fund pilot to test a process and tools that could be used
throughout the western US

Update housing loss and temporary shelter numbers from 2003 for 16 new earthquake and
flood scenarios

Update 2003 housing quiz to help users easily identify if their housing is fragile

Develop easy-to-use online and print tools to help users easily identify fragile housing types
Develop policy tools such as model ordinances, guidance, and other policy tools to implement
soft story and other safer housing policies

Identify and propose for joint adoption policies by cities and water and energy utilities to
overcome infrastructure-related obstacles to PDA implementation

Through RPC Infrastructure Subcommittee, develop partnerships with utilities and cities to
pilot projects that develop, test, and expand the capacity of utilities to serve cities after major
disasters

Conduct workshops focused on implementation of resilience-building strategies developed
in previous years

Assist jurisdictions one-on-one or in cohorts (like EBCI) to develop tailored policy and
planning tools

Identify/research resilience actions in 5-10 additional cities

Develop online dashboard to display assessment outcomes, coordinated with other existing
databases and dashboards created by ABAG, MTC and other partners

Develop workshops that leverage the 100RC model as well as local investments to catalyze
resilience implementation in all Bay Area jurisdictions

Develop statewide resilience policy platform white paper, aligned with key partners, to advocate
policy at a state level

Strengthen statewide partnerships with existing partners, and build new partnerships, to
support and advance state policy adoption

Conduct regional briefings and/or workshops to tell the story of a major Hayward earthquake
and its impacts on several sectors, plus how cities can respond

Develop report that identifies the region’s vulnerability to wildland fire and its capacity to reduce
this vulnerability

Develop targeted strategies for reducing wildland fire risk

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



%
Cus’

DRAFT INTEGRATED REGIONAL PLANNING PROGRAM: 2017-18

REGIONAL TRAILS AND OPEN SPACE

KEY TASK TASK DETAILS

1a. Manage Coastal Conservancy block grants as pass-through funds through individual
contracts to local agencies for planning, design, engineering and construction of Bay Trail

. segments
1. Manage Bay Trail Coastal

Conservancy Block Grants 1b. Comp|e’[e Block Grants totaling $7 million
1c. Enter into new Conservancy grant contracts as available

1d. Recommend new grant awards from Bay Trail Steering Committee

2a. Coordinate completion of Bay Trail through 9 counties, 47 cities and across 7 toll bridges
2b. Raise awareness of trail gaps with elected officials and shoreline agency staff

2. Engage Local Agencies to 2c. Ensure consistency with Bay Trail Plan and Design Guidelines & Toolkit

Close Bay Trail Gaps 2d. Review local shoreline development proposals and participate in local planning, climate

resiliency, BCDC, CEQA/NEPA processes

2e. Partner with stakeholders and advocates on gap closures

3a. Secure funding sources beyond Coastal Conservancy grants to close gaps

3. Secure Outside Funding 3b. Serve on San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority Advisory Committee

Sources for Bay Trail 3c. Engage in process to develop Regional Measure 3

Construction 3d. Track statewide park bond progress

3e. Seek corporate foundations and grants

4a. Meet regularly with local and state elected officials and share custom packets for districts,
expand coordination with CMAs, natural resource agencies, tourism boards, health providers
4. Strengthen Bay Trail and youth organizations

Partnershi . : . .
artnerships 4b. Strengthen relationships with corporate shoreline land owners

4c. Participate in Bay Area Trails Collaborative and work with other trail organizations

5a. Promote awareness of the Bay Trail to increase use and build support for its completion
with a comprehensive marketing plan, updated Bay Trail maps, website, social media sites,

5. Promote Awareness of Bay brochures and merchandise

Trail 5b. Participate in public events and conferences

5¢. Promote, expand and secure funding for Migrations public art program and Smart Phone
Audio Tours

6a. Increase the organizational capacity of the Bay Trail Project by enhancing the effectiveness of

6. Maintain and Manage Bay Trail its staff and board of directors

Organizational Capacity
6d. Develop advocacy and stewardship teams focused on local area projects

7a. Manage Coastal Conservancy block grants as pass-through funds through individual contracts
to local agencies for planning, design, engineering and construction of Water Trail sites
7. Manage Water Trail Coastal 7b

. Spend down block grant totaling $1.75 million
Conservancy Block Grants

7c. Enter into new Conservancy grant contract in September 2017

7d. Seek other sources of funding to match Conservancy grants

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



%
Cus’

DRAFT INTEGRATED REGIONAL PLANNING PROGRAM: 2017-18

REGIONAL TRAILS AND OPEN SPACE

KEY TASK TASK DETAILS

8. Facilitate Water Trail 8a. Obtain formal support from local jurisdictions and assist shoreline managers of potential
Site Designation & Local Water Tralil sites in preparation for official site designation, review local shoreline development
Engagement proposals and participate in local planning processes

9a. Advance the goals by updating, maintaining and distributing existing outreach toals,
developing new outreach strategies and promoting the Water Trail at events and conferences
9. Advance Goals of Water 9
Trail Education, Outreach &
Stewardship Program

. Collaborate with partners to complete implementation plans and identify priority Water
Trail sites

9c. Increase social media presence as primary outlets for public information
9d. Participate in public events and conferences

10a. Provide oversight of the mitigation, monitoring and reporting program developed as part of
. . the Water Trail Final EIR
10. Oversight of Water Trail EIR
Mitigation, Monitoring & 10b. Ensure mitigation requirements of EIR are integrated into Water Trail advancement
Reporting Program 10c. Develop and fabricate signs with required language and custom messages

10d. Maintain Water Trail GIS database and create maps to illustrate site details

11a. Manage the Priority Conservation Area designation process and the PCA OBAG grant
program in partnership with MTC and the Coastal Conservancy

11. Manage PCA Program 11b. Inform regional trail and urban greening partners of OBAG 2 funding opportunities

11c. Work with cities and regional agencies to identify, prioritize, and seek funding for a network
urban greening and natural infrastructure projects

Release call for applications for new and modified PCAs

Process new PCA designation approvals through Regional Planning Committee and
Executive Board

Develop OBAGS Grant Guidelines

Plan for Major Future Tasks

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



%
Cus’

DRAFT INTEGRATED

KEY TASK

1. PDA Planning Grants and
Technical Assistance

2. Complete Communities
Guidance & PDA Designations

3. Convening & Coordination

4. Implementation and Innovation

Plan for Major Future Tasks

REGIONAL PLANNING PROGRAM: 2017-18

1a.
1b.
1c.
1d.

2a.

COMPLETE COMMUNITIES

TASK DETAILS

Release Call for Projects: PDA Planning Grants, Technical Assistance and Staffing Assistance
Issue Grant Awards (number subject to funding availability and amount requested)
Manage and complete ongoing PDA planning grants (humber subject to project timeline)

Monitor grant progress and report out on adopted plans and environmental reports

Release draft Complete Communities/PDA Planning Manual (update to 2007 Station Area
Planning Manual including PDA guidelines)

b. Perform outreach to cities in advance of 2018-19 PDA application period.

3a.

3b.

3c.

3d.

3e.

4a.
4p.

4c.

4d.

4e.

Convene cities along new or expanding transit corridors and the region’s three largest cities to
discuss challenges to achieving PDA Plans and identify shared priorities

Convene regional agencies, infrastructure providers, and special districts to identify
collaborative actions to support development in PDAs

Coordinate East Bay Corridors Initiative: convene steering committee and subcommittees;
complete ongoing projects (safe housing model code, EPA Brownfields and Urban Greening
Grants, priority project pipeline); identify actions to support housing-related priorities identified
by steering committee

Participate in established forums, including county and congestion management
agency planning director meetings, Grand Boulevard Initiative and Bay Area TOD
Implementation Table

Pursue joint funding to implement priorities of transit corridor cities and regional centers;
identify actions to increase pool of available funding for infrastructure and housing in PDAs

Host three Planning Innovations forums on topic prioritized by local planning staff

Transform Planning Innovations website into a repository of best practices, research,
successful plans, and a forum for regional discussion

Partner with a city, community organizations, and design professionals to host two
Placemaking events in PDAs

Expand Places of the Bay Area, a web and social media platform to gather input from
PDA residents on community assets and aspirations

Launch interactive online guide to streamlining infill development that supports adopted
PDA plans

Release Complete Communities/PDA Planning Manual

Issue request for PDA applications

Process new PDA designation approvals through Regional Planning Committee and
Executive Board

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



%
Cus’

DRAFT INTEGRATED REGIONAL PLANNING PROGRAM: 2017-18

KEY TASK

la

2.

3.

Regional Forecasts and
Projections

Regional Analysis

Data Services

REGIONAL RESEARCH AND ANALYSIS

1a.

1b.

2a.

2b.

3a.

3b.

TASK DETAILS

Regional Forecast

1a(i). Regional Economic Forecast: Maintain and update the REMI modeling system or the
equivalent to forecast output, employment, income and population and for use for
impact analysis.

1a(i). Household and Income Distribution Forecasts: Continue development of the household
and income distribution models. Explore alternative model approaches.
Local Area Forecast Allocation

1b(). Urban Sim Modifications: Convene a team of Integrated Planning and Research
Department (IPRD) staff to prioritize relationships to recalibrate in the Urban Sim model.

1b(ii). Land Use Zoning Policy and Pipeline Updating Process: With IPRD staff from the
research and modeling teams, identify information needed to keep Urban Sim
assumptions and baseline up to date, design process (questionnaire, information
gathering protocol) to obtain information, set priorities on data types

1b(jii). Projections 2017: Compile data developed in UrbanSim and used in the Plan Bay
Area preferred scenario by jurisdiction and census tract. Prepare a published report
explaining methodology and describing general projected trends, with tables at the
jurisdiction and PDA levels. Prepare an electronic data base with data broken out to the
census tract or TAZ level.

Analysis of Bay Area Conditions and Trends

2a(). State of the Region Analysis. Updated report of key trends and conditions in the region
between Plan Bay Area years.

2a(ii). Special topic analyses and updates. Short term research on timely topics as data is
released. (eg. Senior Housing Choices; housing vacancy components; cost of living
trends; migration trends)

Analytic expertise for other planning programs and agency products

2b(i). Expertise shared with regional partners (eg. retail sales tax revenue forecasts)

2b(ii). Analytic portions of planning program initiatives (eg. metrics for the CEDS and for
Resilience measures)

Maintain data sources

3a(i). Quarterly update of Cost of Living Series on Website

3a(i). Demographic and Economic Data through update of Vital Signs with more detailed
series maintained as related to ongoing department reports.

3a(iii). Real Estate Data—rent series as available, permit data from CHF-CIRB, price series
from FHFA
Develop new strategic and locally relevant data sources

3b(). State of California Employment Data by Jurisdiction—maintain proprietary data base
of California Employment Development Department records for analysis growth and
location patterns within the region.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



%
Cus’

DRAFT INTEGRATED REGIONAL PLANNING PROGRAM: 2017-18

KEY TASK

4.

5.

Mapping Services

Note: These services are

critical to continuing ABAG staff
support of the COG. It is likely
they will be provided ultimately
by a broader data services
program in the IPRD. The critical
functions are listed here

Contract, Collaborative and
pro bono Services

Rockefeller 100 Resilient
Cities (100RC) Partnership

Statewide policy partnerships

USGS Partnership

4a.
4b.
4c.

5a.

5b.

5c.

5d.

6a.

7a.

7b.

8a.

REGIONAL RESEARCH AND ANALYSIS

TASK DETAILS

Maintain mapping software for the use of consolidated ABAG/MTC staff.
Maintain related GIS databases of regional data for staff use.

Maintain map apps that provide information to staff and outside users.
Specific apps include:

4¢(). PDA Showcase

4cfii). Natural Hazards mapping

USGS Haywired Consulting

5a(). Work with client and consultants to expand economic analysis of the scenario

(.

5ali).

5alii).
(

REMI methodology for analyzing scenario
REMI analysis and report

Ba(iv). With client, draft report of consultant work (tentative)

Tracking business impacts following an earthquake (Napa Survey project)

5b(i). Complete conference or journal article on survey development and implementation in

Napa and Oklahoma

5b(ii). Work with EERI team to modify and apply instrument as events occur
Peer reviews of projects, articles and analysis

Partnerships with Local Jurisdictions and Stakeholder Organizations as requested by outside
groups (BACEI, State of California, journals, TBD)

5d(i). Technical and convening support to BAPDA (Bay Area Planning Director’s Association).

5d(ii). Technical assistance to local jurisdictions (access to data, explaining economic and
demographic trends)

5d(iii). Engagement, presentations and discussion with local elected officials, professionals,

and the general public.

Develop three workshops that leverage the 100RC model as well as local investments to
catalyze resilience implementation in all Bay Area jurisdictions

Develop statewide resilience policy platform white paper, aligned with key partners, to advocate
policy at a state level

Strengthen statewide partnerships with existing partners, and build new partnerships, to
support and advance state policy adoption

Conduct regional briefings and/or workshops to tell the story of a major Hayward earthquake
and its impacts on several sectors, plus how cities can respond

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



%
Cus’

DRAFT INTEGRATED REGIONAL PLANNING PROGRAM: 2017-18

REGIONAL RESEARCH AND ANALYSIS

KEY TASK TASK DETAILS

9a. Develop report that identifies the region’s vulnerability to wildland fire and its capacity to reduce
9. Wildland Fire Study this vulnerability
9b. Develop targeted strategies for reducing wildland fire risk

Population Forecast: Update and apply the 2014 Pitkin Myers population model to validate or
modify the REMI population output.

Analysis of travel survey data to better understand role of TOD in reducing GHG.

Impact analysis—application of the REMI model: Impact of unexpected events (eg. an earthquake,
a sharp change in national economic trends, changing migration); Impact of major proposals
(eg. a regional housing trust fund, a PPA program); Impact of ongoing programs (eg. regional
Plan for Major Future Tasks trails, PDAs)
Affordable Housing Database —update existing inventory
Update Community and Housing Vulnerability data from Safe Housing, Safe Communities

Building pipeline data. As system for data collection is established, build a system for recording
pipeline data annually for the region

Local Policy Survey. Reestablish the local policy survey and systematically store the information
in a geocoded data base.

- Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



%
Cus’

DRAFT INTEGRATED REGIONAL PLANNING PROGRAM: 2017-18

KEY TASK

1. ABAG Delegates and
Committees

2. Subregional Agency Staff

3. Subregional Cohorts

4. Information & Referral

5. Staff Consolidation
Opportunity

1a.
1b.

1c.

1d.

2a.
2b.
2c.
2d.

3a.

3b.
3c.

4a.

4b.

5a.

LOCAL ENGAGEMENT

TASK DETAILS

Support development of General Assembly to adopt ABAG Workplan and Budget (annually)
Participate in ABAG Delegate Meetings in each county (semi-annually)

Staff the Regional Planning Committee and its subcommittees, currently Housing, Infrastructure
Resilience, and Economic Development

Prepare and present decision support briefings and recommendations to ABAG Executive
Board, Administrative Committee, and Legislative & Governmental Organizations Committee.
Participate in Planning Director meetings in each county (monthly)

Participate in Congestion Management Agency Planning Director meetings (monthly)
Participate in city managers’ association meetings in each county (monthly)

Staff the steering committee of the Bay Area Planning Directors Association (BAPDA), and
produce symposiums semi-annually

Participate in and support Grand Boulevard Initiative, East Bay Corridors Initiative and other
multi-jurisdiction initiatives focused on land-use policy development and implementation
Participate in regional and sub-regional business and economic development organizations

Convene forums on topics of interest to local government officials related to land-use, such as
hazard resilience, Green Infrastructure (in partnership with BASMAA), housing, placemaking and
economic development

Respond to incoming requests from local elected officials and staff for information and referral
(daily)

Maintain web-based resources as requested by local government officials: FAQs, maps,
data sets, articles, links to resources; and database of local government officials (elected),
executives, Planning Directors, Public Works Directors, Community Development Directors)
for all cities, counties and ABAG committees

Engage local agencies and stakeholder organizations in ways that maximize opportunities
arising from the ABAG/MTC staff consolidation, assuring transparency and local government
collaboration in work processes.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



%
Cus’

DRAFT COMMUNICATIONS AND MEMBER SERVICES: 2017-18

In recent years, ABAG’s communications and member services work has been done by Leah Zippert, Halimah Anderson, and Edna Yeh.
Together they have informed and engaged ABAG’s membership, local elected officials, local government staff and the general public
regarding ABAG’s programs and services related to land use, the environment, resilience, risk management, energy efficiency etc.

As we transition to a single consolidated staff, they will be under MTC’s Deputy Executive Director, Alix Bockelman, working within the
Legislation and Public Affairs department directed by Randy Rentschler. They’ll continue doing the work necessary to keep the Bay Area’s
cities, towns and counties engaged in ABAG’s work. Staff consolidation also gives ABAG access to MTC’s excellent graphics and legislative
advocacy staff. Leah, Halimah, and Edna will continue to play a role in carrying out the following tasks:

WORK PLAN

KEY TASK TASK DETAILS

1.1. Plan/write/produce and manage development and distribution of print and electronic
communications, (e.g. monthly newsletters, ABAG website content management, major
reports). Major reports include annual ABAG Budget and Work Program and reports authored
by LCPs. Edit a range of agency documents for grammar, consistency, and layout.

1.2.  As needed, manage and conduct ABAG annual awards program. Primary contact person

1. Outreach for entrants, judges, videographer, and award winners.

1.3. Provide selected event planning and management services for variety of ABAG
conferences/events.

1.4. Manage other outreach campaigns and events such as Bay Trail’'s 25th Anniversary activities
and the Local Government Health and Wellness Forum.

1.5. Work with ABAG president, senior consolidated staff, and other internal clients as needed.

2.1. Write and distribute ABAG press releases on variety of subjects. Contact reporters to follow-up.
2.2. Develop op-eds on a variety of key ABAG initiatives.

2.3. Serve as primary contact for various media, providing background info on various

2. Media Relations ABAG activities.
2.4. Coordinate between media and subject matter experts to arrange in-depth interviews.

2.5. Monitor media coverage and develop ABAG News Report.

3.1. Take lead in managing all aspects of ABAG General Assembly(ies) for Bay Area elected officials.
3.2. Write scripts for ABAG President.

3.3. Provide day-of event management.

3.4. Develop conference agenda.

3. General Assembly 3.5. Identify, confirm, and coordinate presentations from speakers — both elected officials and
subject matter experts.

3.6. Create and manage attendee outreach effort, both on-line and hard copy.
3.7. Manage registration process

3.8. Provide venue research, AV, and catering selection

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



%
Cus’

DRAFT COMMUNICATIONS AND MEMBER SERVICES: 2017-18

KEY TASK

4.1.

4.2,
4.3.
4.4.
4.5.

4. County Delegate Meetings

5.1.

5.2.
5.3.
5. Legislative Activities 5.4.
5.5.
5.6.
5.7.
5.8.

WORK PLAN

TASK DETAILS
Set up series of meetings in each county for delegates and alternates to ABAG'’s General
Assembly. These smaller scale meetings create increase participation in ABAG activities.
Work with ABAG Board members/delegates by county to set logistics and issue invitations.
Develop agenda in coordination with participating ABAG Board members and planning staff.
Develop powerpoints targeted for each county.

Conduct meetings and follow up with answers to questions following delegate meetings.

Develop legislative priorities for committee review and examine ways to more effectively
coordinate the ABAG and MTC legislative advocacy and legislative committee work

Research background information and analysis on bills of interest to ABAG committees
Develop and maintain legislation summary and status of bills tracked by ABAG

Produce Legislative Committee Meeting packet materials and agenda for ABAG

Develop letters of support or opposition following action by ABAG

Working with consolidated staff, present legislation to ABAG committee members

Develop meeting summary and maintain committee legislative information on ABAG website

Manage annual legislative workshop and reception in Sacramento

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



%
Cus’

DRAFT COMMUNICATIONS AND MEMBER SERVICES: 2017-18

KEY TASK

6. Website

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

Design,

WORK PLAN

TASK DETAILS

program, and maintain a variety of websites for ABAG and affiliated organizations

(see list below), using the skKills listed below.

Front end development: User interface design, Responsive design, HTML, CSS, Javascript,
jQuery, search engine optimization, WordPress, Photoshop

Back end development (LAMP stack plus others): Linux, Apache, Perl, CGl scripting, PHP,
MySQL, Postgres

Update website content provided by various departments, LCPs and outside agencies
including:

6.4.1.

abag.ca.gov (daily to weekly maintenance/updates for: PLAN, FAN, Planning,
POWER, web store)

6.4.2. bapda.net (designed and coded new site in 2016; periodic maintenance)

6.4.3. bayareaenergyupgrade.org (from previous version hosted by consultants; monthly
maintenance)

6.4.4. bayarearegionalcollaborative.org (periodic maintenance)

6.4.5. bayren.org (from previous version hosted by outside consultants; monthly
maintenance)

6.4.6. baytrail.org (periodic maintenance, provide support to WordPress users)

6.4.7. ecowisecertified.org (periodic maintenance)

6.4.8. sfbayrestore.org (weekly maintenance; 2018 budgeted for complete redesign)

6.4.9. sfbaywatertrail.org (2017 in process of migrating to our servers)

6.4.10. sewersmart.org (periodic maintenance).

Website Tasks

6.5.1. Design new web pages for various departments, making decisions on how to organize
and display the provided content to maximize the user experience.

6.5.2. Design and maintain databases to provide content for web pages.

6.5.3. Create secure online registration forms for conferences and workshops, connecting
the forms to both our database server and our secure online payment system.

6.5.4. Maintain and provide Google Analytics data to users as requested.

6.5.5. Troubleshoot server for outside clients and internal users, assist with server
upgrades/ maintenance.

6.5.6. Maintain our online hosting account, keeping track of when domains and other
services are in need of renewal, then communicate with the relevant departments to
ensure that the services are renewed as needed, with the charges billed to the correct
accounts.

6.5.7. Maintain certificates for our secure servers, ensure they’re renewed regularly and
correctly installed.

6.5.8. Maintain ABAG’s online calendar.

6.5.9. Assist with troubleshooting software issues, including ABAG’s proprietary minutes &

agendas posting program.

Iltem 11, Proposed Budget and Work Program



AS

SOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area

ABAG

Date: May 11, 2017
To: ABAG Executive Board

ABAG Finance and Personnel Committee
From: Courtney Ruby

Finance and Administrative Services Director
Subject: Audited Financial Reports—June 2016

Audited Financial Reports — June 2016

Our independent auditors, Maze & Associates issued an unqualified opinion on the ABAG
financial statements. ABAG'’s financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of ABAG at June 30, 2016 and the financial transactions for the fiscal year July
1, 2015 through June 30, 2016.

Financial highlights of the year include the following:

The Association’s Total Assets were $38.75 million at June 30, 2016. At June 30, 2015,
Total Assets were $18.25 million. Total Assets include Cash and Cash Equivalents of
$7.67 million (down $822 thousand from the prior year), Federal, State and Local Grants
Receivables of $29.69 million (up $21.26 million), Interest Receivables of $3 thousand (up
$1 thousand), Prepaid Expenses and Other of $331 thousand (up $207 thousand) and
Capital Assets net of Accumulated Depreciation of $1.06 million (down $145 thousand).
Capital Assets include $800 thousand in tenant improvements to ABAG’s condominium at
375 Beale Street, funded by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) as part of
the exchange agreement between ABAG and Bay Area Headquarters Authority (BAHA).
The increase of $20.50 million in Total Assets is due primarily to the increase in pass-
through grants receivable for the BayREN energy conservation rebate program and the
San Francisco Estuary Partnership’s integrated regional water management program.

The Association’s Total Liabilities were $47.1 million at June 30, 2016. At June 30, 2015,
Total Liabilities were $25.1 million. Total Liabilities include Accounts Payable of $26.5
million (up $20.4 million from the prior year), Unearned Revenue of $6.2 million (up $.2
million) and Net Pension Liability of $13 million (up $1.6 million). The increase of $22
million in Total Liabilities is due primarily to the increase in the pension liability and the
pass-through grants for the BayREN energy conservation rebate program and the San
Francisco Estuary Partnership’s integrated regional water management program.

Item 11, Attachment 1A



Audited Financial Reports—June 2016
May 11, 2017
Page 2

e The Association’s total program revenues were $56.61 million in FY 2016, while total
program expenses were $58.47 million. This imbalance ($1.86 million) is offset by $1.90
million in Membership Dues, $158 thousand in unrestricted donations, and $16 thousand
in interest income, all recorded as General Revenues totaling to $2.07 million. This yielded
an improvement in net position of $207 thousand. The Association’s total net position at
June 30, 2016 was a deficit of $7.51 million. The Association’s total net position in the
previous fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was a deficit of $7.71 million.

e In compliance with GASB 68, beginning with the June 30, 2015 audited financial
statements, we have recorded the ABAG accumulated unfunded pension obligation as a
liability and reduction of fund equity. This Collective Net Pension Liability is $12,998,297
as of June 30, 2016. For internal financial statement purposes, we elect to separately
track the fund equity for the pension obligation and operations. Thus, the fund equity for
pension obligations is a negative $12.3 million ($11.36 million in 2015), and the
accumulated fund equity from operations is a positive $2.8 million ($2.9 million in 2015)
and restricted fund equity of $1.6 million consists of capital, self-insurance, building
maintenance resulting in a net position of negative $7.86 million identified in the
Association only column in the attached audited statement of net position.

e ABAG program operating revenues for FY 2016 were $56.59 million, including $10.12
million pass-through funds for vendors and rebate recipients. There were no operating
revenues for ABAG Finance Corporation, and BALANCE Foundation operating revenues
were $17 thousand.

e ABAG program operating expenses for FY 2016 were $58.36 million, including pass-
through expenditures of $10.12 million and consultant services of $35.54 million. ABAG
Finance Corporation operating expenses were $4 thousand and BALANCE Foundation
operating expenses were $105 thousand.

e The San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority received a $38 thousand grant and spent

$46 thousand for consultant services. The Authority ended the year with a net position of
$2 thousand.

Single Audit

The auditors reported no findings of questioned costs or failures of ABAG to comply with federal
regulations that might result in a disallowance of significant costs claimed on federal grants.

Memorandum on Internal Controls

The auditors did not identify any deficiencies in internal controls that they considered to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses could exist that have not been identified.
A financial statement audit includes consideration of internal controls over financial reporting for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements but is not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of an entity’s internal controls.

I may be reached directly at (415) 820-7923 should you have any questions regarding the
audited financial reports.

Item 11, Attachment 1A



ASSOCIATION OF
BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Item 11, Attachment 1B



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Table of Contents
INTRODUCTORY SECTION:
TaDIE Of COMEEILS ....ueeiceteeeecteeeee et e ettt e st sttt e e e e s e st s e s st s e e et e et st s eeesse sttt et seneens i
FINANCIAL SECTION:
Independent Auditor’s REPOIt ..........cccoomiiiiiiinirc ettt e 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis.............coccvnniiiiinincsces 3
Basic Financial Statements
Statement Of Net POSITION ........co.cociiruerinciecrnrtrrnr ettt ettt e 21
Statement Of ACHVILIES .......coceeeererireeteeeeee ettt sttt s e e e ee st e 22
Statement of Cash FIOWS........ccciueiiiinneee ettt e 23
Notes to Basic Financial Statements..........ccoecceeeercrnentneeineente ettt 25

Required Supplemental Information

Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan — Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension

Liability and Related RAtioS.......ccoceurueeerereeueerirecerereseeeseseseeee et eeees

Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan — Schedule of Contributions

Other Post Employment Benefits — Schedule of Funding Contributions ..

Item 11, Attachment 1B



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Item 11, Attachment 1B



MAZE

& ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Executive Board
Association of Bay Area Governments
San Francisco, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component unit and each major fund, of the Association of Bay Area
Governments (Association), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016 and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Association’s basic financial statements as
listed in the Table of Contents.

Management’s Res ponsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
.of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Association’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

T 925.930.0902

Accountancy Corporation 1 F 925.930.0135
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215 E Maze@mazeassociates.com
. Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 w mazeassociates.com

Item 11, Attachment 1B



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component unit and each major fund of the Association as of June 30, 2016 and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and other required supplementary information as listed in
the Table of Contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 10, 2017, on our consideration of the Association’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Association’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

oz k frarsen

Pleasant Hill, California
February 10, 2017

Item 11, Attachment 1B



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Association of Bay Area Governments (Association) has issued the financial reports for
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 based on the provisions of the Govemment Accounting
Standards Board Statement 34, “Basic Financial Statement and Management’s Discussion &
Analysis—for State and Local Governments,” (GASB 34).

The Association adopted Government Accounting Standards Board Statement 68 “Accounting
and Reporting for Pensions” (GASB 68) beginning with the financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2015. GASB 68 requires recognition on the Statement of Net Position of the
cumulative unfunded pension liability and recognition of related expense in the Statement of
Activities. As a result, the Association carries deficit net position at June 30, 2016.

This discussion and analysis provides an overview of financial activities in the fiscal year and it
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Basic Financial Statements include:

1. Statement of Net Position—provides information about the financial position of the
Association, including assets, liabilities and net position. The difference between this
statement and the traditional Balance Sheet is that net position (fund equity) is shown as
the difference between total assets and total liabilities. An addition to this statement in
2015 is the presentation of deferred outflows and deferred inflows — “deferrals.”
Deferrals from the adoption of GASB 65 (“Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities”) are defined as outflows and inflows of resources that have already taken
place but are not recognized as revenues and expenditures because they relate to a future
period.

2. Statement of Activities—presents revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the
fiscal year. It differs with the traditional Statement of Revenues and Expenses in that
revenues and expenses directly attributable to operating programs are presented
separately from investment income and financing costs.

3. Statement of Cash Flows—provides itemized categories of cash flows. This statement
differs from the traditional Statement of Cash Flows in that it presents itemized
categories of cash inflows and outflows instead of computing the net cash flows from
operation by backing out non-cash revenues and expenses from net operating
surplus/deficit. In addition, cash flows related to investments and financing activities are
presented separately.

Item 11, Attachment 1B



The Basic Financial Statements above provide information about the financial activities of the
Association’s three programs—ABAG, ABAG Finance Corporation and BALANCE
Foundation, each in a separate column. Also presented is the San Francisco Bay Restoration
Authority as a “discretely presented component unit.”

FISCAL YEAR 2016 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Financial highlights of the year include the following:

The Association’s Total Assets were $38.75 million at June 30, 2016. At June 30, 2015,
Total Assets were $18.25 million. Total Assets include Cash and Cash Equivalents of $7.67
million (down $822 thousand from the prior year), Federal, State and Local Grants
Receivables of $29.69 million (up $21.26 million), Interest Receivables of $3 thousand (up
$1 thousand), Prepaid Expenses and Other of $331 thousand (up $207 thousand) and
Capital Assets net of Accumulated Depreciation of $1.06 million (down $145 thousand).
Capital Assets include $800 thousand in tenant improvements to ABAG’s condominium at
375 Beale Street, funded by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) as part of
the exchange agreement between ABAG and Bay Area Headquarters Authority (BAHA).
The increase of $20.50 million in Total Assets is due primarily to the increase in pass-
through grants receivable for the BayREN energy conservation rebate program and the San
Francisco Estuary Partnership’s integrated regional water management program.

The Association’s total program revenues were $56.61 million in FY 2016, while total
program expenses were $58.47 million. This imbalance ($1.86 million) is offset by $1.90
million in Membership Dues, $158 thousand in unrestricted donations, and $16 thousand in
interest income, all recorded as General Revenues totaling to $2.07 million. This yielded an
improvement in net position of $207 thousand. The Association’s total net position at June
30, 2016 was a deficit of $7.51 million.

ABAG program operating revenues for FY 2016 were $56.59 million, including $10.12
million pass-through funds for vendors and rebate recipients. There were no operating
revenues for ABAG Finance Corporation, and BALANCE Foundation operating revenues
were $17 thousand.

ABAG program operating expenses for FY 2016 were $58.36 million, including pass-
through expenditures of $10.12 million and consultant services of $35.54 million. ABAG
Finance Corporation operating expenses were $4 thousand and BALANCE Foundation
operating expenses were $105 thousand.

The San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority received a $38 thousand grant and spent $46
thousand for consultant services. The Authority ended the year with a net position of $2
thousand.

Item 11, Attachment 1B



NONCURRENT ASSETS

At June 30, 2016, the Association had noncurrent asset of $1.06 million. Depreciable Capital
Assets, net of accumulated depreciation were $262 thousand, a decrease of $145 thousand from
the prior year. Additions to depreciable capital assets were $21 thousand and depreciation for
the year was $166 thousand. Further details of the Association’s capital assets are presented in
Note 3 to the financial statements.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The Association’s long term obligation was decreased by a payment of $73 thousand toward the
$367 thousand owed for the office improvement project at the beginning of the year. This left a
balance of $294 thousand for the office improvement project, of which $78 thousand is classified
as the current portion, payable within the next fiscal year. There was no new debt incurred.
Further detail of the Association’s long term obligation is presented in Note 4 to the financial
statements.

ORGANIZATIONAL CHANGES

On May 25, 2016, the governing bodies of ABAG and MTC voted to support a full functional
staff consolidation and the pursuit of new governance options. This resolution retains the
independence and statutory responsibilities of both boards and calls for new governance options
to be considered by ABAG and MTC over the longer term. In the near term, both ABAG and
MTC are developing a Contract for Services to officially consolidate the two staffs under the
MTC executive director and to continue funding ABAG’s projects and activities. Under the
Contract of Services the organization and the financial structure of ABAG will not significantly
change and ABAG will continue to exist as a separate entity.

MAJOR PROGRAM INITIATIVES IN FY 2016 AND OUTLOOK FOR FY 2017

We are happy to report the following accomplishments in fiscal year 2016 and goals for fiscal
year 2017:

PLANNING AND RESEARCH PROGRAMS

Over the last five decades, ABAG has steadily strengthened its practices as a leader of
collaborative regional land use planning, by expanding our range of partners and extending the
breadth and depth of topics that influence local and regional land use decisions, the Planning and
Research Department continues to address sustainability, equity and resilience in the region. In
2016 we continued the update of Plan Bay Area 2017, including the development of land use
scenarios and an implementation action plan.

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ABAG continued to champion inclusion of two additional priorities for Plan Bay Area, resilience
and economic development. On the resilience front, federal and foundation funding helped us to
assist local jurisdictions develop local hazard mitigation plans. On the economic development
front, we continued to consolidate a consensus about regional priorities in collaboration with
economic development organizations.

Working closely with local jurisdictions, Congestion Management Agencies (CMAs), and MTC,
ABAG provided planning assistance, research support, and institutional coordination for the
implementation of Priority Development Area (PDAs), enhancement of open space and regional
trails, housing production, and economic development.

ABAG continued to support efforts to retain and enhance the qualities of our natural
environment and agricultural lands through the Priority Conservation Areas (PCAs), the San
Francisco Bay Trail, the San Francisco Bay Area Water Trail, and the successful passage of
Measure AA.

ABAG produced People, Places, Prosperity to provide context for the regional dialogue that is
part of the development of Plan Bay Area 2040. This report highlights the activities ABAG has
undertaken in partnership with local govemments, regional agencies, business groups,
community organizations and other stakeholders to advance implementation of a land use pattern
in the Bay Area that will promote regional economic vitality, increase housing choices and
affordability, build healthy and resilient communities, and protect and enhance the regional
natural assets. People, Places, Prosperity provides a comprehensive look at the ways in which
economic, housing and environmental issues relate to one another and how they are currently
affecting local communities and the region as a whole.

Priority Development Area Implementation

- ABAG staff will continue to work with Bay Area jurisdictions to develop and implement PDA
plans, develop and distribute tools to increase feasibility of growth consistent with local visions,
and integrate housing, resilience, economic development, and urban greening into the PDA
program. PDAs are the organizing framework for Plan Bay Area 2040 implementation and are
expected to accommodate most of the Bay Area’s new homes and jobs. The Plan’s major
investments in planning assistance and transportation projects are focused in the PDAs, but
significant obstacles remain to achieving planned growth. These obstacles include lower-than-
anticipated public and private investment, displacement pressure on current residents and
businesses, declining middle-wage jobs, and the risk of natural hazards. Continuing the work of
2016 into 2017, ABAG staff will continue to:

e Provide technical assistance and administrative oversight for each PDA planning grant
made to a local jurisdiction. These grants support the development and adoption of
specific plans that create walkable, mixed-use communities close to transit.

e Obtain funding to support planning and capital projects that address specific PDA
implementation obstacles not addressed through existing programs.

Item 11, Attachment 1B



e Provide technical assistance to help local jurisdictions take advantage of State legislation
that increases the efficiency of the development entitlement process for projects within
PDAs.

e Launch a website to help local staff and developers identify PDA projects eligible for
entitlement efficiency and utilize these provisions to create development consistent with
local plans.

e Build on its Placemaking in the Bay Area report to provide best practices and targeted
technical assistance to help member jurisdictions create successful places that are lively
and inclusive, economically vital, and capitalize on community assets.

e Work to address common challenges with corridor jurisdictions, CMAs, transit agencies,
and other partners, especially through the Grand Boulevard Initiative in the west bay and
the East Bay Corridors Initiative. Working groups will focus on implementing or
developing funding for green streets implementation, seismic safety retrofits of older
apartment buildings, public placemaking, and the development of pipeline housing and
infrastructure projects.

Housing Production and Affordability

ABAG continued to support new funding source development for affordable housing and to
remove obstacles to jurisdictions’ implementation of local infill development objectives.

ABAG staff will continue to work with MTC to use existing resources to incentivize and support
infill housing production, and continue to identify and publicize replicable local effective
practices that address economic displacement due to new development.

Staff will also continue to collect and make publically available information about local
jurisdictions’ progress toward housing production targets, particularly affordably-priced housing;
as well as adoption of local housing policies that affect production, preservation and residency
protections.

Economic Development

Based on the regional economic development framework developed in 2014-2015, ABAG staff
continued to work on establishing a regional Economic Development District (EDD) as well as
an accompanying Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS). The purpose of the
EDD will be to strengthen the competitiveness of the regional economy, enhance local business
districts in PDAs, support the vitality of industrial districts, preserve and increase the number of
middle-wage jobs and expand access to job opportunities for all Bay Area residents. In addition
to meeting these goals of economic vitality, the CEDS analysis also addresses interlinkages
between environmental and equity goals of Plan Bay Area and economic vitality. The CEDS is
produced under oversight of an Economic Strategy Committee with representation from local
jurisdictions, and local and subregional economic and workforce development organizations.

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ABAG and MTC have sponsored an inventory of industrial land in the region, which has led to
the recommendation of adding Priority Production Areas as a possible tool for considering the
preservation of critical industrial space where in-fill development is occurring. Industrial land
and goods movement is an economic development initiative that will continue in 2017/2018.
MTC has sponsored a series of studies on goods movement, the most recent of which looked at
goods movement needs beyond the 9-county bay area. '

Resilience

ABAG?’s Resilience Program helps local jurisdictions build communities that can prosper and
thrive in the face of ongoing natural stressors and unexpected shocks. The program’s primary
concerns are the vulnerability of the region’s housing stock to earthquakes and flooding, the
vulnerability of interconnected infrastructure systems which support the region’s economy, and
the importance of collaborative regional resilience planning. ABAG’s work priorities are:

e Launching a Regional Lifelines Council to improve coordination and collaboration
among local jurisdictions to address natural hazard threats to utility service continuity—
threats to water, power, communications, and sanitation from earthquakes, fires, drought
and sea level rise.

e Supporting member cities and counties in developing innovative local resilience plans
that meet the requirements of a local hazard mitigation plan and are coordinated with
other local plans.

e Introducing resilience perspectives, adaptive climate action, social justice measures, and
disaster mitigation into the 2017 Plan Bay Area.

e Fostering a resilience community in the Bay Area that identifies and develops local
champions who have the opportunity to connect with and learn from one another, and
have the tools to carry resilience work forward locally and regionally.

e Providing in-depth assistance to help member jurisdictions overcome the barriers of
limited resources and technical expertise by developing resilience implementation tools
and guidance and technical assistance. ABAG staff will continue to partner closely with
the San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC) in
developing mutually beneficial shoreline flooding and earthquake strategies.

e Continuing to support cities in the East Bay Corridor Initiative with technical and policy
assistance on soft-story retrofit ordinances. Implementation programs to create safer
housing for residents will serve as model practice in other Bay Area communities.

e Promoting the adoption of consensus regional resilience strategies emanating from
ABAG’s LP25 symposium in partnership with member cities and counties and key
regional and state stakeholders.

Item 11, Attachment 1B



Bay Trail/Water Trail, Open Space and Farmland Preservation

Regional planning strategies can help protect and maintain our natural habitat, water resources,
agricultural land, and open space.

San Francisco Bay Trail & San Francisco Bay Area Water Trail

The San Francisco Bay Trail, now in its 27" year, is based on a visionary plan for a shared-use
bicycle and pedestrian path along the shoreline that will one day allow continuous travel around
San Francisco Bay. The trail extends over 500 miles to link the shoreline of nine counties,
passing through 47 cities and crossing seven toll bridges. Thus far 350 miles have been
completed and are in use. ABAG administers the project and provides regional leadership for its
completion.

The San Francisco Bay Area Water Trail is a network of landing and launch sites for non-
motorized small boats. Twenty nine sites have now been officially designated as part of the
Water Trail system, with a potential for over 100 sites. ABAG plays a critical role in
implementing this regional trail in partnership with BCDC, the California Division of Boating
and Waterways and the primary funder, the State Coastal Conservancy.

Priorities for both the Bay Trail and the Water Trail include:

e Managing planning and construction grants, and awarding new grants.

e Expanding partnerships with private corporations and other organizations for specific gap
closures.

e Participating in working groups addressing sea level rise such as Adapting to Rising
Tides.

e Designating and improving Water Trail sites.

e Publishing project updates and participating in trail dedications and other public events.

e Public outreach to promote trail usage and supporting environmental education, public

health and tourism.

Priority Conservation Areas —Priority Conservation Areas (PCAs) complement PDAs by
identifying locations with high ecological, recreational, and economic value. To date, more than
165 locally-selected PCAs populate this useful coordination framework. Adoption of Plan Bay
Area set the stage for implementation activities, including: '

e Through the One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) PCA Grant Pilot Program, ABAG and MTC
are assisting local jurisdictions and CMAs in implementing a second round of funding
through a $16.4 million program to support projects in PCAs. The agencies are also
administering $8.2 million directly through four CMAs in North Bay counties and $8.2
million through the State Coastal Conservancy for the rest of the Bay Area.

Item 11, Attachment 1B



e ABAG, in partnership with key open space entities, updated the PCA framework to
further define the role of different kinds of PCAs to support habitat, agriculture, urban
greening, recreation, and various ecological functions, and has designated many new
PCAs.

Regional Social, Economic, and Land Use Research

ABAG research staff completed the regional level forecast of household formation and
employment growth, and will work with the Interagency Modeling Group to prepare the land use
analysis and developed alternative scenarios for the Plan Bay Area 2040.

Modeling, Forecasting, and Trend Analysis

ABAG research staff applied new tools acquired in FY 2014/15 to update the forecast to be
released in 2017. ABAG staff adapted the REMI (designed by Regional Economic Modeling
Inc.) model to reflect current and expected future conditions of the region’s economy and build
on the model structure for the employment, income, and output forecasts for the region, accepted
by the Executive Board in February 2016. In-house analysis of household formation and income
distribution are additional elements of the regional forecast. The ABAG model based on the
REMI structure will be used in FY 2017/2018 to better understand likely short-term economic
growth patterns in the region and to look at short- and long-term consequences of outside
changes, such as shifts in Federal funding or a sudden event storm or earthquake.

Data Services

ABAG staff support local government through assisting in providing and updating data needed
for planning. Research staff have worked with the regional planners to improve baseline data on
recent construction and permits. As ABAG and MTC consolidate, ABAG staff will work with
MTC analytic staff to incorporate unique data sets into a larger system and to improve public
access to data.

Resources for Mapping

Research staff continues to enhance tools and resources that allow policy makers and the public

to visualize important information about regional growth, for example, releasing an inventory of
all housing sites identified in local Housing Elements for each jurisdiction’s General Plan.

10

Item 11, Attachment 1B



Intergovernmental Coordination

In its core role as convener of inter-govermmental and cross-sector collaborations to plan
regionally and to coordinate implementation of regional plans, ABAG will continue to act as the
administrative sponsor for the Joint Policy Committee, the Regional Planning Committee,
Regional Airport Planning Committee, and the Environmental Information Clearinghouse. We
will also continue to provide leadership and administrative support for the numerous
collaboratives mentioned earlier in the Planning and Research work program, including San
Francisco Bay Trail Board, San Francisco Water Trail Advisory Committee, East Bay Corridors
working groups, and the Bay Area Planning Directors’ Association.

SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PROGRAM (SFEP)

The San Francisco Estuary Partnership (SFEP) and its cooperating agencies and organizations
both initiated and continued work on a wide array of projects and activities in support of the
Partnership’s mandate, to protect, enhance, and restore the San Francisco Bay-Delta Estuary by
implementing actions called for in the Comprehensive Conservation and Management Plan.

The Partnership has:

e Released the most comprehensive report for the Estuary, using the best available science
and the most recent data to assess the status of 33 indicators of health. The State of the
Estuary 2015 Report was released in September.

e Managed $73 million in multi-benefit water quality and drought response projects across
the region through the Integrated Regional Water Management Plan.

e Partnered with the Coastal Conservancy and ABAG Finance Department to staff the San
Francisco Bay Restoration Authority. On June 7%, over 70% of voters approved a $12
parcel tax to fund wetland restoration in the San Francisco Bay. The measure will
generate $25 million per year for the next 20 years and the Restoration Authority is
responsible for distributing those funds through grants.

e Completed GreenPlan Bay Area, a collaborative effort between San Francisco Estuary
Partnership, San Francisco Estuary Institute and Bay Area municipalities to develop and
pilot the use of a watershed-based green infrastructure planning tool.

e Completed a 5-year program review by National Estuaries Program EPA staff. SFEP
passed its evaluation and continues to be eligible for funding under the Clean Water Act
Section 320. The evaluation letter pointed out that SFEP “catalyzes and builds on EPA’s
core programs, leverages significant resources, and builds collaborative partnerships in
many areas that further the goals of its CCMP.”

e Received funding from EPA for two new collaborative efforts: studying the impacts of
ocean acidification on the Bay, and advancing mapping and implementation of transition
zones.

e Planned and executed the highly successful State of the Estuary Conference. The
Conference was held in Oakland in September 2015 with over 800 attendees.

e Continued public outreach efforts with the 23" year of publication of our award-winning
ESTUARY News magazine.

11

Item 11, Attachment 1B



New and ongoing projects include:

e Continuing our $5 million partnership with seven East Bay cities, having secured funds to
build green storm water treatment devices to improve water quality and quality of life
along San Pablo Avenue.

e Undertaking a major revision of the Comprehensive Conservation and Management
Plan, the regional collaborative vision for the future of the San Francisco Estuary.

e Planning for the 2016 Bay-Delta Science Conference in partnership with the Delta
Science Program.

e Expanding the Clean Vessel Act Program with new funding and new initiatives. The
Program focuses on reducing water quality impacts by undertaking outreach and
education efforts with boaters to prevent sewage discharge.

e Providing technical support services to the Santa Clara Valley Water District, Alameda
County Flood Control Program, Caltrans, Marin County, and the Sonoma County Water
Agency.

e Providing technical assistance to the State Water Board managing fine money directed at
environmental projects and supporting the Bay-Delta Science Program through contracts
for experts to assist in the scientific research.

ABAG PUBLICLY-OWNED ENERGY RESOURCES (POWER)

ABAG Publicly Owned Energy Resources (ABAG POWER) is a joint powers agency (JPA)
formed by ABAG in 1997 to acquire energy on behalf of local governments, as well as provide
energy management and telecommunication services.

ABAG POWER currently offers natural gas aggregation to 38 local govemments and special
districts in the Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) service territory. ABAG POWER provides a
public sector approach to pooled purchasing, and each public agency is guaranteed a voice in
program operations and decisions through its representative to the ABAG POWER Board of
Directors and Executive Committee.

ABAG POWER purchases natural gas on behalf of nearly 800 member accounts and arranges for
it to be delivered to the PG&E system for distribution. The primary goal of ABAG POWER’s
Natural Gas Program is to provide both cost savings and price stability. Additional objectives
currently include:

e Continue to provide cost effective natural gas aggregation and delivery services for local
governmental agencies. This will include active solicitations among natural gas
marketers, and the addition of new gas suppliers, as necessary, to continue receiving the
most competitive pricing.

e The ABAG POWER Executive Committee will continue to discuss and analyze
refinements to the general gas purchasing strategy, including fixed-price product
allocations, in order to meet program goals related to cost savings and price stability. In
addition, the Committee will continue to investigate strategic opportunities related to
environmentally friendly substitutes for natural gas such as biogas or biomethane.

12

Item 11, Attachment 1B



e Continue to encourage additional participants in both the core, and noncore programs
that supply larger facilities. Qualified, noncore customers can take advantage of lower
gas transportation rates that are not available to PG&E customers. ABAG POWER
currently supplies gas to three noncore facilities (City of Santa Rosa, City of
Watsonville, and County of San Mateo).

Other ABAG Energy Initiatives:
The San Francisco Bay Area Regional Energy Network (BayREN)

The BayREN was initially approved as an energy-efficiency pilot for two years, with a one year
extension. The California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) recently moved to a ‘Rolling
Portfolio’ process and the BayREN’s funding was extended through 2025, subject to annual
adjustments. The four main program elements are:

1. Single Family Energy Retrofit

The BayREN Single Family Home Upgrade program is designed to reduce energy use in
existing single family homes and 2-4 unit residences in the Bay Area. Program goals
include improving the environment, helping homeowners save money by saving energy,
increasing public awareness of energy efficiency co-benefits like improved comfort and
indoor air quality, and stimulating green job growth. Homeowners can be eligible for
rebates from $1,000 to $6,500 based upon the scope of work performed and associated
energy savings, plus a $300 home energy assessment rebate with an Advanced Home
Upgrade. The BayREN has paid approximately $9 million in incentives to Bay Area
homeowners, averaging roughly 200 project reservations per month throughout 2016.

2. Multi-family Energy Retrofit

The Bay Area Multifamily Building Enhancements (“BAMBE”) program offers free
technical consulting and rebates for energy efficiency in multifamily buildings with S or
more attached dwelling units. Property owners may eamn $750 per dwelling unit for
installing energy upgrades. The program has far exceeded its targets and has repeatedly
received millions of dollars in additional funding from PG&E to satisfy the high demand
for the program.

13

Item 11, Attachment 1B



3. Energy Efficiency Codes and Standards

The BayREN Codes and Standards Program was established to address the role that local
building policies, reviews, and inspections play in the energy use of buildings in the
region. The Program provides resources and trainings for local planning and building
departments to reduce energy consumption in buildings through improved enforcement of
energy codes and greater adoption and implementation of green building ordinances.
This includes collaboration with state and regional agencies to encourage local adoption
of codes necessary to meet the state’s climate action goals. For example, BayREN
expects to continue collaborative efforts with the California Energy Commission (CEC),
the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) and the Bay Area Regional
Collaborative (BARC) to develop an ordinance requiring solar photovoltaic technologies
on the construction of new properties in designated areas.

4. Financing for Energy Efficiency Projects

Commercial PACE: Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) financing allows
property owners to 1) pay the costs of upgrades as a separate assessment on the building
tax roll, and 2) carry the costs as annual maintenance - rather than debt - expense. The
BayREN program works to educate contractors and building owners on this financing
tool.

PAYS®

The BayREN Pay As You Save (PAYS®) pilots are helping municipal water utilities in the Bay
Area use a tariff based on-bill repayment program to promote greater adoption of resource
efficiency measures. PAYS allows water utility customers to receive water and energy saving
measures (such as high efficiency toilets, shower heads, and drought-tolerant landscaping) at no
up-front cost and pay for the measures over time through a surcharge on their water bill that is
less than their utility cost savings.

Multi-Family Capital Advance Program

This financing program provides 50% of the financing at zero interest and is available for
eligible owners of multifamily properties located within the BayREN region with at least 5 units,
who undertake energy efficiency upgrade projects with a scope defined by the BayREN
Multifamily retrofit program or the PG&E’s multifamily program. The property owner is
obligated to repay the total principal, and BayREN receives a pro rata share of each payment.
The repaid funds are recycled to provide capital for additional projects.

14

Item 11, Attachment 1B



BayREN Integrated Commercial Retrofits (BRICR)

In the past year, ABAG was awarded a Department of Energy (DOE) grant to assist in the
creation of an open-source database tool to efficiently identify buildings throughout the region
that may be ideal for energy-efficient upgrades. ABAG will work with the San Francisco
Department of Environment, Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory (LBNL), the National
Renewable Energy Laboratory (NREL), and other local BayREN agencies to design and test the
tool.

INSURANCE POOL PROGRAMS

ABAG Pooled Liability Assurance Network (PLAN) Corporation provides property, liability and
crime insurance coverage to 28 cities and towns in the greater Bay Area under a pooled risk
sharing agreement. In addition to PLAN, the Shared Agency Risk Pool (SHARP) Program
provides affordable Workers’ Compensation coverage to its participating members.

In fiscal year 2016, PLAN invested $1.23 million in its Risk Management Best Practices
Program, which focuses on loss control and safety. PLAN also provided its members Risk
Management and Loss Control consulting services, as well as claims administration services that
aligned with individualized strategic goals defined by each member. This year’s focus was
Playground Safety Best Practices as well as reducing loss frequency in the public works sector
(e.g. sewer claim prevention, sidewalk safety). In 2015, PLAN also continued its ongoing
training efforts on contractual risk transfer (contracting risk).

PLAN’s annual Sewer Summit continues to be a success, with record attendance this year and
demand for the event continuing to grow. The Urban Forest Conference was also successful and
well-attended, with specific focus on drought and severe weather implications to the urban forest
environment.

PLAN also conducted a Risk Awareness Survey which provided members with valuable
information on safety and risk management temperament, and behaviors and attitudes within
member agencies.

PLAN’s financial performance continues to reflect ongoing efforts to reduce claim frequency

and manage claim severity. In addition to maintaining focus on core competencies, PLAN is
also focused on succession planning with the impending retirement of the Risk Manager.

15

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ABAG FINANCIAL SERVICES

ABAG Financial Services has been providing conduit financing to various public and private
organizations throughout the state of California since 1978. Its programs provide convenient,
cost saving, and secure means to meet the capital financing needs of public agencies and their
nonprofit and for profit partners serving the public interest. To date, the Authority has provided
over $8 billion in low cost investment capital for projects in more than 240 local jurisdictions.
The Authority helps its members to provide for construction of new hospitals and medical
clinics, transit systems, affordable housing, schools, museums, water and wastewater systems,
and other member-owned infrastructure. The Authority takes special focus on assisting in the
construction and preservation of affordable housing, providing financing to date for nearly
twelve-thousand units in nearly one-hundred affordable apartment communities.

In 2016, a new management team was installed in the Authority, with a mandate to explore new
avenues of service in the financing of municipal and special district projects. Under this new
management, the Authority will continue to service its outstanding portfolio of conduit debt and
continue the administration of existing community facilities and special assessment districts.

ABAG TRAINING CENTER

The ABAG Training Center program which was an ABAG service program from 1979 was sold
to our partner, Safety Compliance Management (SCM) during the year.

FISCAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES

ABAG provides fiscal management services to Bay Area public purpose entities and region-wide
grant programs. Entities serviced are: ABAG PLAN Corporation, ABAG Workers’
Compensation Shared Risk Pool, ABAG Finance Authority for Nonprofit Corporations, ABAG
Publicly Owned Energy Resources, and the San Francisco Bay Area Water Emergency Transit
Authority. These services include accounting, financial reporting, cash management, investment
management, debt issuance, grants management, and other related financial support services.
Over the past year, several grants furthering sustainability have been awarded, requiring
substantial financial services. These included grants for promoting and incentivizing the energy
efficiency of homes and the installation of enhancements such as insulation, double-paned
windows and solar panels. Other grants focused on water quality enhancements of the San
Francisco Bay and Delta through water recycling, creek cleanups, and stormwater capture.

LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES

The ABAG Legislation and Governmental Organization Committee (L&GO) is comprised of elected
officials from the Bay Area’s cities, towns, and counties. Through the Committee, ABAG actively
serves members by providing a platform for them to work collaboratively to influence legislation that

impacts local governments throughout the region. Approximately 30 state bills were reviewed by the
Committee during the 2016 Legislative Session.

16

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ABAG’s L&GO Committee actively supported legislation related to land use, housing, hazardous
waste disposal, energy and water efficiency, and disaster resiliency. The Committee supported AB
2406 (Tony Thurmond) Housing: Junior Accessory Dwelling Units that was chaptered into law, as
well as SB 1030 (Mike McGuire) Sonoma County Regional Climate Protection Authority that
became law. The Committee also pursued Water Efficiency Financing Legislation in 2016 authored
by ABAG POWER .

Committee activities throughout the year included policy briefings, a Legislative Workshop and
Reception co-hosted by ABAG and California State Association of Counties (CSAC), and face-to-
face dialogues with legislators about Bay Area needs and challenges.

In fiscal year 2017, it is anticipated that the L&GO Committee will:

e Continue to pursue legislation that provides resources and incentives for planning,
infrastructure and services to assist local govemments, as well as State and Federal
legislation establishing innovative financing and project delivery mechanisms.

e Continue to focus on SB 375 and Plan Bay Area Implementation through legislative
objectives such as affordable housing funding, housing element reform, and better California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) entitlement efficiency.

e Continue to monitor implementation of the Cap and Trade Program.

e Increase focus on resiliency.

e Continue to seek voter threshold reduction for infrastructure taxes and bonds statewide and
locally.

COMMUNICATIONS

The ABAG Communications Department is instrumental in helping to promote ABAG programs
and services through newsletters, website articles, twitter announcements, reports, conferences,
and media outreach. In 2015, the department worked with all internal programs to promote
ABAG’s mission and to inform and engage members in relevant programs and activities. Major
efforts included regional conferences and workshops, publications, media relations, and web
outreach centered on sustainable growth, economic and infrastructure resilience, and creating
complete communities, as well as municipal insurance and energy programs.

Activities included:

e Releasing of a comprehensively updated website with a major overhaul in appearance and
content. This extensive update increases access to all ABAG programs, projects, initiatives,
and resources in a more attractive, user-friendly format.

e Working with the Planning and Research Department to release several publications,
including the State of the Region and People, Places, and Prosperity; implementing Plan
Bay Area outreach and public engagement strategies; expanding outreach to ABAG General
Assembly delegates and member staffs to facilitate better use of ABAG programs and
services.

17

Item 11, Attachment 1B



€onvening the Getting Ready for El Nifio Briefing in collaboration with the California Office
of Emergency Services, helping inform cities and counties on how to be resilient in the face
of an anticipated strong El Nifio event. Attendees leamed about the actions each city needs to
take to prepare for El Nifio, available resources, preparations by utilities, and what the State
can offer cities and counties. In support of these activities, the Communications Group
provided conference planning and coordination for the workshop held in December 2015.
Providing updates on ABAG initiatives, programs, and services through online and e-
distributed publications. ABAG Update is an online monthly e-newsletter, sent to both
members and interested parties. The ABAG website news section featured the latest agency
trends and events. Media coverage included articles and TV and radio interviews on agency-
wide subjects and other related regional perspectives.

In fiscal year 2017, the Communications Group will continue to:

Expand the methods and tools used to communicate the full breadth of ABAG programs and
activities to our member cities, towns, and counties, key stakeholders and the public.
Conduct outreach to ABAG General Assembly’ delegates and member staffs via the county-
wide delegate meetings.

Examine ways to expand discussion of ABAG activities and programs at the General
Assembly and facilitate increased access to ABAG programs, projects, initiatives and
resources, through comprehensive update of the website and use of social media.

18

Item 11, Attachment 1B



SAN FRANCISCO BAY RESTORATION AUTHORITY

San Francisco Bay Restorations Authority (Authority) is a regional agency with a goveming
board made up of local elected officials appointed by ABAG. Its purpose is to raise and allocate
local resources for the restoration, enhancement, protection, and enjoyment of wetlands and
wildlife habitat in San Francisco Bay and along its shoreline.

In June 2016, the Authority placed a regional parcel tax, Measure AA, on the ballot and it
passed. The passage of the Measure demonstrated public support for the restoration and
preservation needs of the Bay and Delta and the role of the Authority in meeting those needs.
The Authority will begin receiving the tax revenues in the fall of 2017, fiscal year 2018.

In fiscal year 2017 the Authority will begin grant making operations for the restoration and
enhancement of San Francisco Bay and its shoreline. While the Authority has laid the ground-
work for the eventual administration of the Measure, adopting grant program guidelines as well
as procedures for the Advisory Committee and Independent Citizens Oversight Committee,
much work remains to facilitate efficient and effective use of Measure AA funds. The following
are the main activities in the development of the grant making functions, both in program and
tax/fiscal operations:

e Develop a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA).

e Develop and adopt a multi-year workplan and budget.

e Develop internal control policies and procedures including financial tracking and oversight
mechanisms.

e Develop Board Policies.

e Develop Citizens Oversight Committee Policies.

e Develop contract mechanisms (grant agreements, billing mechanisms/materials).

e Develop Request for Proposals (RFP) process.

CONTACTING THE ASSOCIATION’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, creditors, and stakeholders with a
general overview of the Association’s finances. Questions about this report may be directed to

Courtney Ruby, ABAG Finance Director, Association of Bay Area Govemments, 375 Beale
Street, Suite 700, San Francisco, California 94105.

19

Item 11, Attachment 1B



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30,2016
Association of ABAG SF Bay
Bay Area Finance BALANCE Restoration
Governments Corporation Foundation Total Authority
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Investments (Note 2):
Cash and Cash Equivalents $7.,299,589 $27,453 $338,091 $7,665,133 $2,101
Receivables:
Federal, State and Local Grants 29,681,393 4,069 29,685,462
Interest 3,016 342 3,358
Prepaid Expenses and Other 325,570 5,000 330,570
Total Current Assets 37,309,568 27,453 347,502 37,684,523 2,101
Noncurrent Assets
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets (Note 3) 800,000 800,000
Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation (Note 3) 262,441 262,441
Total Assets 38,372,009 27453 347,502 38,746,964 2,101
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS »
Deferred Outflows Related to Pension (Note 8) 2,078,247 2,078,247
Total Deferred Outflows 2,078,247 2,078,247
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 26,438,233 453 27,332 26,466,018
Compensated Absences (Note 1E) 357,523 357,523
Other Accrued Liabilities 397,650 397,650
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations (Note 4) 77,747 71,747
Unearned Revenue 6,173,403 6,173,403
Total Current Liabilities 33,444,556 453 27,332 33,472,341
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated Absences, Noncurrent (Note 1E) 173,144 173,144
Collective Net Pension Liability (Note 8) 12,998,297 12,998,297
Net OPEB Obligation (Note 9) 289,511 289,511
Long-Term Obligations, Net of Current Portion (Note 4) 216,000 216,000
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 13,676,952 13,676,952
Total Liabilities 47,121,508 453 27,332 47,149,293
DEFERRED INFLOWS
Deferred Inflows Related to Pension (Note 8) 1,188,223 1,188,223
Total Deferred Inflows 1,188,223 1,188,223
NET POSITION (Note 7)
Net Investment in Capital Assets 768,694 768,694
Restricted 249,657 249,657 2,101
Unrestricted (8,628,169) 27,000 70,513 (8,530,656)
Total Net Position ($7,859,475) $27,000 $320,170 ($7,512,305) $2,101

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

21

Item 11, Attachment 1B



PROGRAM REVENUES

Operating Grants and Contributions:
Grants

Subtotal

Charges for Services
Reimbursements
Other

Subtotal
Total Program Revenues
PROGRAM EXPENSES

Salaries and Related Benefits
Consultant Services
Pass-through Awards
Equipment, Maintenance and Supplies
Outside Printing Costs
Conference and Meeting Costs
Depreciation (Note 3)
Building Maintenance

Postage

Insurance

Telephone

Utilities

Committee

Other

Interest Expense

Total Program Expenses
Net Program Loss
GENERAL REVENUES
Membership Dues
Donations - Unrestricted
Interest Income
Total General Revenues
Change in Net Position
Net Position-Beginning

Net Position-Ending

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Association of ABAG SF Bay
Bay Area Finance BALANCE Restoration
Governments  Corporation ~_Foundation Total Authority
$51,700,177 $51,700,177
51,700,177 51,700,177
4,662,581 $162 $16,779 4,679,522
226,593 226,593
4,889,174 162 16,779 4,906,115
56,589,351 162 16,779 56,606,292
10,818,257 10,818,257
35,537,963 4,132 85,485 35,627,580 $45,503
10,120,973 10,120,973
103,822 103,822
77,895 68 77,963
218,371 400 218,771
166,035 166,035
286,768 286,768
10,970 10,970
159,676 159,676
83,845 83,845
135,824 135,824
85,200 85,200
485,000 19,267 504,267
70,352 10 70,362
58,360,951 4,142 105,220 58,470,313 45,503
(1,771,600) (3,980) (88,441) (1,864,021) (45,503)
1,896,480 1,896,480
95,815 62,495 158,310 38,000
14,815 24 1,214 16,053 3
2,007,110 24 63,709 2,070,843 38,003
235,510 (3,956) (24,732) 206,822 (7,500)
(8,094,985) 30,956 344,902 (7,719,127) 9,601
($7,859,475) $27,000 $320,170 ($7,512,305) $2,101

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

22

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Association of ABAG SF Bay
. Bay Area Finance BALANCE Restoration
Governments  Corporation Foundation Total Authority
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Grant receipts $30,565,113 $30,565,113
Receipts from customers and members 6,654,876 $162 $100,825 6,755,863 $38,000
Payments to contractors and members (27,089,101) (5,343) (90,320) (27,184,764) (45,503)
Payments to employees (10,949,719) (10,949,719)
Payments to committees (85,200) (85,200)
Other receipts (payments) 226,593 226,593
Net cash flows from operating activities (677,438) (5,181) 10,505 (672,114) (7,503)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (21,122) (21,122)
Repayment of long-term obligations (73,231) (73,231)
Interest paid (70,352) (10) (70,362)
Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities (164,705) (10) (164,715)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 13,384 24 1,073 14,481 3
Net cash flows (828,759) (5,167) 11,578 (822,348) (7,500)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,128,348 32,620 326,513 8,487,481 9,601
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $7,299,589 $27,453 $338,091 $7,665,133 $2,101
Reconciliation o foperating income t o net cash provided by
operating activities:
Net Program Loss ($1,771,600) ($3,980) ($88,441) ($1,864,021) ($45,503)
Adjustments to reconcile net program loss to
cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation 166,035 166,035
Membership dues 1,896,480 1,896,480
Donations - unrestricted 95,815 62,495 158,310 38,000
Interest 70,352 10 70,362
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables (21,277,296) 21,551  (21,255,745)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (201,700) (5,000) (206,700)
Accounts payable 20,343,767 (1,211) 19,900 20,362,456
Compensated absences (19,196) (19,196)
Other accrued liabilities 135,639 135,639
Unearned revenue 142,232 142,232
Net OPEB obligation (112,266) (112,266)
Decrease (increase) in due to retirement system (145,700) (145,700)
Net cash flows from operating activities ($677,438) ($5,181) $10,505 ($672,114) ($7,503)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

23

Item 11, Attachment 1B



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES I

The Association of Bay Area Governments (the Association) was established in 1961 by agreement
among its members—counties and cities of the San Francisco Bay Area pursuant to the Joint Exercise
of Powers Act, California Government Code Section 6500, et sq. The Association is a separate entity
from its members and its purpose is to serve as a permanent forum to discuss and study matters of
mutual interest and concern to member jurisdictions, develop policies and action plans, and provide
services and undertake actions addressing such matters.

The Association is governed by a General Assembly comprised of elected officials from member
cities and counties. The General Assembly appoints an Executive Board to carry out policy
decisions, approve the annual budget, appoint an Executive Director, and report to the General
Assembly.

A. Reporting Entity

The Association is a membership organization that provides a variety of planning and other service
programs for its members.

The accompanying basic financial statements present the operations of the Association, which is the
primary activity, along with the financial activities of its component units, which are entities for which
the Association is financially accountable. Although they are separate legal entities, they are presented
in the basic financial statements as either a blended component unit or discretely presented component
unit.

Blended Component Units

Blended component units are in substance part of the Association’s operations and are reported as an
integral part of the Association’s financial statements. The following component units are blended and
are described below:

e ABAG Finance Corporation (Corporation) is a non-profit public benefit corporation created on
June 24, 1985 that aids members in obtaining financing by acting as a conduit in the
sponsorship of credit pooling arrangements. Participating members issue debt, leases or
certificates of participation (COPs) that are pooled as a single issue by the Corporation.
Members’ payments are pooled to repay the debt and the assets leased become the property of
the member when it has paid off its debt obligation.

The Corporation is governed by a sub-committee of the Association’s Executive Board, which
establishes financing policies and approves each credit pooling arrangement.

e BALANCE Foundation (BALANCE) is a non-profit, tax-exempt corporation created on
September 22, 1987, established to assist Bay Area governments in obtaining funds to study,

analyze and resolve regional issues. BALANCE is governed by a Board of Directors whose
appointment is controlled by the Association.

25

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

[NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) ]

Discretely Presented Component Unit

A component unit is a legally separate organization for which elected officials of the primary entity are
financially accountable. It can also be an organization whose relationship with the primary entity is
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statement to be misleading or
incomplete. The Association has one discretely presented component unit, San Francisco Bay
Restoration Authority.

e The San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority (Restoration Authority) was created by State
legislation on September 30, 2008 to raise and allocate resources for the restoration,
enhancement, protection, and enjoyment of wetlands and wildlife habitat in the San Francisco
Bay and along its shoreline. The Restoration Authority is governed by a board that is appointed
by the Association, yet is composed of members that are different from the Association’s board.

Additional financial information for each component unit can be obtained at the entity’s administrative
offices, 375 Beale Street, Suite 700, San Francisco, CA 94105, to the attention of Association of Bay
Area Governments.

Other Affiliated Entities

Over the past two decades, the Association created a number of public purpose entities to offer various
service programs. The financial activities of the entities are not included in these financial statements
because these entities are not controlled by the Executive Board and the composition of their
membership may be different than that of the Association. However, the Association has agreements
with each of these entities to provide management, administrative and other support services. These
entities and the service programs offered are described below:

e ABAG Pooled Liability Assurance Network (PLAN) Corporation provides risk management,
liability coverage, claims management and loss prevention services for participating members
of PLAN. The Association acts as PLAN’s trustee, providing promotional, administrative and
management support. On behalf of PLAN, the Association incurred $1,493,651 for these
services and $781,631 for contract services in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

e ABAG Finance Authority for Non-profit Corporations (FAN) assists non-profit corporations
and local governments in obtaining financing. The Association assists FAN in issuing tax-
exempt debt. It also provides administrative and management support. On behalf of FAN, the
Association incurred $655,043 for these services and $396,357 for contract services in the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2016.

e ABAG Comp Shared Risk Pool (SHARP) provides workers compensation coverage and claims
management for participating members. The Association provides risk management,
administrative and management support. On behalf of SHARP, the Association incurred
$94,590 for these services and $27,555 for contract services in the fiscal year ended June 30,
2016.

26

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

[NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)]

e ABAG Publicly Owned Energy Resources (POWER) provides gas energy aggregation services
to participating members. The Association acts as POWER'’S trustee, providing promotional,
administrative and management support. On behalf of POWER, the Association incurred
$335,381 for these services and $9,800 for contract services in the fiscal year ended June 30,
2016.

B. Basis of Presentation

The Association’s Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Government Accounting Standards Board is
the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards
followed by govermmental entities in the U.S.A.

These Standards require that the financial statements described below be presented.

Government-wide Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display
information about the primary reporting entity (the Association). These statements include the financial
activities of the overall Association. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of
internal activities. These statements display the business-type activities of the Association. Business-
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function of the Association’s business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational needs of a particular program, (c) grants providing advances of funds that are
passed through ABAG to contractors or end recipients as reimbursements or incentive payments for
specified purposes and (d) fees, grants and contributions that are restricted to financing the acquisition
or construction of capital assets. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as
general revenues.

C. Major Funds
Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets, liabilities, revenues or expenses equal to ten
percent of their fund-type total and five percent of the grand total. The Association’s major funds are
presented separately in the fund financial statements.

The Association reported all its enterprise funds as major funds in the accompanying financial
statements:

Association of Bay Area Governments Fund — this fund accounts for revenues and expenses of the
Association.

ABAG Finance Corporation Fund — this fund accounts for revenues and expenses of the ABAG
Finance Corporation.

BALANCE Foundation Fund — this fund accounts for revenues and expenses of the Bay Area
Leaders Addressing the Challenge of the Economy and Environment Foundation.

27

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) l

D. Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the Association gives or receives value without directly
receiving or giving equal value in exchange, include grants, entitlements, and donations. On the
accrual basis, revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all performance requirements have been satisfied. Expenditures in excess of reimbursement
are recorded as receivables, and advanced reimbursements are recorded as unearned revenues.

The Association offers a number of service programs that are funded on a cost-reimbursement or fee-
for-service basis. Discretionary funds, comprised primarily of membership dues, amount to about
3.9% of total revenues, excluding pass-through awards. Discretionary funds are used to cover certain
management and administrative expenses and may occasionally be allocated to meet local match
requirements as stipulated in certain grant contracts. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net
position may be available to finance program expenditures. The Association’s policy is to first apply
restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by unrestricted revenues if necessary.

Certain indirect costs are included in program expenses reported for individual functions and activities.
E. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences comprise vacations and are recorded as an expense when earned. The accrued

liability for unused compensated absences is computed using current employee pay rates. Sick pay

does not vest and is not accrued.

The changes in the compensated absences were as follows:

Balance June 30, 2015 $549,863
Additions 511,163
Payments (530,359)
Balance June 30, 2016 $530,667
Due within one year $357,523

F. Estimates
The Association’s management has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the
reporting of assets and liabilities and revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent

liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). Actual results could differ from those estimates.

28

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30,2016

] NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) ]

G. Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position or balance sheet reports a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position or balance sheet reports a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

H. Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Association
categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to which inputs used in
measuring fair value are observable in the market.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 inputs are inputs — other than quoted prices included within level 1 — that are observable
for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.
If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the fair

value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input that is
significant to the entire measurement.

29

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30,2016

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments comprised the following at June 30, 2016:

Association and SF Bay
other blended Restoration
component units Authority Total
Local Agency Investment Fund $2,441,583 $2,441,583
Cash:
Cash in banks 5,223,230 $2,101 5,225,331
Cash on hand 320 320
Total Cash and Investments $7,665,133 $2,101 $7,667,234

The Association pools cash from all sources and all funds so that it can be invested at the maximum
yield, consistent with the principles of safety and liquidity. Individual funds can make expenditures at
any time. Investments are carried at fair value.

A. Investments Authorized by the Association

The Association’s Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the Association to
invest in the following, within the stated guidelines:

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Minimum Credit Percentage of  Investment in

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality Portfolio One Issuer
U.S. Treasury Obligations 1 year N/A None None
U.S. Agency Securities 1 year N/A None None
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days N/A 40% None
Commercial Paper 180 days Al/P1 10% None
Investment Agreements On Demand N/A None None
Repurchase Agreements 15 days N/A 10% None
Certificates of Deposit 3 years N/A 10% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1 year N/A 10% None
Money Market Mutual Funds OnDemand  Top rating category 20% 10%
California Local Agency Investment Fund On Demand N/A None None
Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST) On Demand N/A None None

B. Fair Value Hierarchy

The Association categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs.

The Association’s only investment in the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is
classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, and is valued based on the fair value factor provided
by the Treasurer of the State of California, which is calculated as the fair value divided by the
amortized cost of the investment pool.

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) ]

C. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates may adversely affect the fair value of
the Association’s investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater is the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The sensitivity of the fair values of the
Association’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is presented by the following maturity
schedule of the Association’s cash and investments:

12 Months
or less
Local Agency Investment Fund $2,441,583
Cash in banks 5,225,331
Cash on hand 320
Total Cash and Investments $7,667,234

As of year-end, the weighted average maturity of the investments in the LAIF investment pool is
approximately 167 days.

D. Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the Association may not be able to recover its deposits or collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. Under California Government Code Section 53651, depending on
specific types of eligible securities, a bank must deposit eligible securities posted as collateral with its
agent having a fair value of 110% to 150% of the Association’s cash on deposit. All of the
Association’s deposits are either insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or
collateralized with pledged securities held in the trust department of the financial institutions in the
Association’s name.

E. Local Agency Investment Fund

The Association is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the
State of California. The Association reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by
LAIF. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF,
which are maintained on an amortized cost basis. Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are
collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to
certain state funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored
enterprises, and corporations.

Under California Government Code, LAIF is allowed greater investment flexibility than the
Association is permitted. As such, LAIF’s investment portfolio may contain investments not

otherwise permitted for the Association. For funds invested in LAIF, LAIF’s investment policy
overrides the Association’s investment policy.

31

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30,2016

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) I

F. Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Association considers all highly liquid investments,
including restricted investments but excluding cash with fiscal agents, with a maturity of three months
or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated acquisition value on the date
contributed. The Association’s policy is to capitalize all assets with costs exceeding $5,000.

Capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The purpose
of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all users over the life of these
assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year’s pro rata share of the
cost of capital assets.

Depreciation expense is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of assets,
which are as follows:

Facilities and improvements 5 to 30 years

Fumiture and equipment 3 to 10 years

Vehicles 5 years

Capitalized software 3 to 6 years
32

Item 11, Attachment 1B




ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30,2016

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Capital asset balances and transactions as of June 30 are surnmarized below:

June 30, 2015 Additions June 30,2016

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Construction in process $800,000 $800,000
Total capital assets not being depreciated 800,000 800,000
Capital assets being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements 3,604,147 3,604,147
Furniture and equipment 1,079,155 $21,122 1,100,277
Vehicles 57,652 57,652
Capitalized software 697,974 697,974
Total capital assets being depreciated 5,438,928 21,122 5,460,050
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements (3,477,001) (45,932) (3,522,933)
Furniture and equipment (805,612) (117,680) (923,292)
Vehicles (57,652) (57,652)
Capitalized software (691,309) (2,423) (693,732)
Total accumulated depreciation (5,031,574) (166,035) (5,197,609)
Total depreciable assets 407,354 (144,913) 262,441
Total $1,207,354 ($144,913) $1,062,441

NOTE 4 - LONG TERM OBLIGATION

A. Additions and Retirements

The Association’s obligation issues and transactions are summarized below and discussed in detail

thereafter:
Balance Balance Current
June 30,2015 Retirements  June 30,2016  Portion
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY
Office Improvement Project
Variable rate + 1%, due 1/1/2020 $366,978 ($73,231) $293747  $77,747

33

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30,2016

| NOTE 4 - LONG TERM OBLIGATION (Continued) |

B. Line of Credit

In July 2009, the Association signed a $2 million line of credit arrangement with a bank. In fiscal year
2014, the Association renewed the line of credit to mature on February 28, 2016. Interest is at a
variable rate that shall not be less than 4.00% annually and is to be paid monthly. Pursuant to its
agreement with the bank the Association assigned its future rents and revenues and pledged its
interest in the building as collateral. No borrowings were made on the line of credit during fiscal year
2016. On July 26, 2016, the letter of credit was extended to mature on June 30, 2017.

C. Installment Sales Agreement

In January 2010, the Association entered into an installment sale agreement with ABAG Finance
Authority for Non-profit Corporations (Authority) in the amount of $700,000, whereby, the Authority
financed various office improvement projects to the Association. Principal and interest payments are
paid monthly beginning February 1, 2010 until January 1, 2020. The agreement bears a variable
interest rate at the average annual Local Agency Investment Fund’s (LAIF) rate plus one percent
(1.576% as of June 30, 2016). As of June 30, 2016, based on the year-end interest rate, the installment
agreement obligations were as follows:

For the Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2017 $77,747 $4,629 $82,376
2018 82,543 3,404 85,947
2019 87,634 2,103 89,737
2020 45,823 722 46,545
Total $293,747 $10,858 $304,605

H\IOTE 5 - WINDEMERE RANCH ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DEBT

On behalf of Contra Costa County, in 1997 the Association formed the Windemere Ranch
Assessment District (District) in an unincorporated area of that County. The District issued special
assessment debt to fund infrastructure improvements as part of the development of residential housing
in the District.

These debt issues are repayable out of special assessments on the parcels in the District, and are
secured by liens on each parcel. The Association has no obligation for the repayment of the District’s
assessment debt, and accordingly, does not record this debt in its financial statements.

The outstanding balance of each of the District’s debt issues was refunded by new debt issued on June
26, 2007 by the ABAG Finance Authority for Nonprofit Corporation. In July 2014, the outstanding
balance of each of the District’s debt issues from this June 2007 refunding was authorized by the
ABAG Finance Authority for Nonprofit Corporation’s Board to be refinanced in fiscal year 2014-15
to provide for savings of over $2 million. The new debt was issued by the ABAG Financing
Authority for Nonprofit Corporation in August 2014. The Association has no obligation for the
repayment of these new revenue bonds; therefore it has not recorded this debt in its financial
statements.

34

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 6 - CONDUIT FINANCING PROGRAMS FOR MEMBERS J

The Association assists members and other borrowers in obtaining financing through the issuance of
revenue bonds, special assessment debt, certificates of participation in lease revenues and in straight
leasing arrangements.

The underlying liability for the repayment of each of these issues rests with the borrower participating
in that issue, and not with the Association, which acts only as a conduit in pooling each issue. For
that reason, the Association has not recorded a liability for these issues. The Association sponsored
the following outstanding conduit debt balances that were payable by their respective borrowers at

June 30:
Type of Financing Unpaid balance - June 30
2016 2015
Revenue Bonds $116,880,000 $136,325,000
Certificates of Participation 6,970,000 8,950,000
Total $123,850,000 $145,275,000

| NOTE 7 - NET POSITION |

A. Entity-Wide Financial Statements - Net Position
Net Position is the excess of all the Association’s assets and deferred outflows of resources over all its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, regardless of fund. The Association’s Net Position is

divided into the three captions described below:

Net Investment in Capital Assets is the current net book value of the Association’s capital assets, less the
outstanding balance of any debt issued to finance these assets.

Restricted describes the portion of Net Position which is restricted as to use by the terms and conditions
of donations received by the Association. As of June 30, 2016, the entire amount in Restricted Net
Position is restricted for the support of the Tranter-Leong Internship Program.
Unrestricted describes the portion of the Net Position which may be used for any Association purpose.
B. Net Position Deficit
The Association has a deficit net position of $7,859,475 primarily due to the Association’s

implementation of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 68 — Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions.

35

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

| NOTE 8 — PENSION PLAN

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Plan and
additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

A. General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description — All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in
the Association’s Miscellaneous Employee Pension Rate Plan. The Association’s Miscellaneous Rate
Plan are part of the public agency cost-sharing multiple-employer, which is administered by the
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). The employer participates in one cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan regardless of the number of rate plans the
employer sponsors. Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and Board
resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension
plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the
CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided — CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time
employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily
reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service.
The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the
Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as
specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous
Tier] Tier I
Prior to On or after

Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.5% @55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule Syears service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50- 67+ 52-67+
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0%-2.5% 1.0%-2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8.00% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 9.067% 6.237%

Beginning in fiscal year 2016, CalPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a percentage
of payroll for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as a dollar amount for
contributions toward the unfunded liability and side fund. The dollar amounts are billed on a monthly
basis. The Association’s required contribution for the unfunded liability and side fund was $491,374
in fiscal year 2016.

36

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30,2016

NOTE 8 — PENSION PLAN (Continued) l

Contributions — Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that
the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding
contributions for the Plan are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS.
The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits
eamed by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability. The Association is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined
rate and the contribution rate of employees.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the contributions to the Plan were as follows:

Miscellaneous
TierI & II
Contributions - employer $491,374
Contributions - employee (jointly paid by employer and employee) 436,643

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net positon of the Plan and
additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

As of June 30, 2016, the Association reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability of the Plan as follows:

Proportionate Share

of Net Pension Liability
Miscellaneous Tierl & I $12,998,297
Total Net Pension Liability $12,998,297

37

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

| NOTE 8 — PENSION PLAN (Continued) |

The Association’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total
pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2014 rolled forward to June 30, 2015 using standard update procedures. The
Association’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Association’s
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating employers, actuarially determined. The Association’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2014 and 2015 was as follows:

Miscellaneous Tier I & II

Proportion - June 30, 2014 0.4744%
Proportion - June 30, 2015 0.4738%
Change - Increase (Decrease) -0.0006%

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Association recognized pension expense of $345,674. At June
30, 2016, the Association reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Miscellaneous Tier I & Tier II

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Contributions made afterthe measurement date $491,374
Differences between actual and expected experience 83,655
Changes in assumptions (8791,456)
Net differences in actual contributions and proportionate
contributions 216,775

Net differences between projected and actual eamings

on pension plan investments (396,767)
Adjustments due to differences in proportion 1,286,443

Total : $2,078,247 (51,188,223)

38

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 8 — PENSION PLAN (Continued) I

Deferred outflows of $491,374 related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts
reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as

follows:
Miscellaneous
Tier 1 & Tier 2
Year Ended Annual
June 30 Amortization
2017 ($38,965)
2018 (26,796)
2019 (42,752)
2020 507,163
Thereafter

Actuarial Assumptions — For the measurement period ended June 30, 2015, the total pension liability
was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2014 total pension liability. The June 30, 2014 and
June 30, 2015 total pension liability was based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Miscellaneous
TierIand Tier IT
Valuation Date June 30, 2014
Measurement Date June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Depending on age, service and type of
Projected Salary Increase employment
" - Investment Rate of Retum 7.5% (1)
Based on CalPERS 2010 Experience Study for
Retirement Age period 1997 to 2007
Derived using CalPers Membership Data for
Mortality all Funds (2)

(1) Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses, including inflation.

(2) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table
includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale AA. For
more details on this table, please refer to the CalPERS 2010 experience study report
available on CalPERS' website.

39

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 8 — PENSION PLAN (Continued) |

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results of a
January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary
increase, mortality and retirement rates. Further details of the Experience Study can be found on the
CalPERS website under Forms and Publications.

Change of Assumptions — GASB 68, paragraph 68 states that the long-term expected rate of return
should be determined net of pension plan investment expense, but without reduction for pension plan
administrative expense. The discount rate of 7.50 percent used for the June 30, 2014 measurement
date was net of administrative expenses. The discount rate of 7.65 percent used for the June 30, 2015
measurement date is without reduction of pension plan administrative expense. All other assumptions
for the June 30, 2014 measurement date were the same as those used for the June 30, 2015
measurement date.

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65% for the Plan.
To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for
each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be
different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run
out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.65 discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond
rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.65 will be applied to all
plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a
detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using
historical returns of all the funds® asset classes, expected compound (geometric) retums were
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block
approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of
benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. Such cash flows were developed assuming
that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in
all future years. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate
calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

In December 2016, CalPERS’ Board of Directors voted to lower the discount rate used in its actuarial
valuations from 7.5% to 7.0% over three fiscal years, beginning in fiscal year 2018. The change in the

discount rate will affect the contribution rates for employers beginning in fiscal year 2019, and result
in increases to employers’ normal costs and unfunded actuarial liabilities.

40

Item 11, Attachment 1B




ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30,2016

| NOTE 8 — PENSION PLAN (Continued) |

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return
was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation. These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New Strategic Real Retumn Real Retum

Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11Hb)
Global Equity 51% 5.25% 5.711%
Private Equity 19% 0.9%% 2.43%
Global Fixed Income 6% 0.45% 3.36%
Liquidity ‘ 10% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Assets 10% 4.50% 5.13%
Inflation Sensitive Assets 2% 4.50% 5.09%
Absolute Retum Strategy (ARS) 2% -0.55% -1.05%

Total 100%

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the Association’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the Association’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage
point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Miscellaneous Tier I & II
1% Decrease 6.65%
Net Pension Liability $18,751,013
Current Discount Rate 7.65%
Net Pension Liability $12,998,297
1% Increase 8.65%
Net Pension Liability $8,248,761

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

41

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

[ NOTE 9 -POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS ]

The Association follows the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. This Statement establishes uniform financial reporting standards for employers providing
postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB).

By Board resolution and through agreements with its labor unit, the Association provides certain
health care benefits for retired employees (spouse and dependents are not included) under third-party
insurance plans. A summary of these benefits is shown below:

Benefit Summary:
Eligibility Service or disability retirement
Age 50 & 5 years service
Disability retire directly from ABAG under CalPERS
Benefit:
Tier 1
Hired < 7/1/2009 Retired < 9/1/94- 100% ofKaiser single basic premium
Retired > 9/1/94 -100% of Kaiser 2-party basic premium
Same cap pre- & post-65
PEMHCA administration fee paid by ABAG
Tier 2
Hired > 7/1/2009 PEMHCA minimum
: PEMHCA administration fee paid by ABAG
Medical After Retirement Tier 1 Tier2
(MARA) One time only option to enroll Must enroll in MARA
Must opt out of defined benefit ABAG contributes $100/month to an
medical plan individual MARA account for each
ABAG contributes PEMHCA non-management employee
minimum if opt in MARA ABAG contributes $200/month to an
Open enrollment for MARA individual MARA account for each
ended in 2013 management employee
MARA not included in the OPEB
evaluation
Medicare B Reimbursement’ Retired < 9/1/94 - 100% None
for retiree
Retired > 9/1/94 -100% for
retiree and spouse
Surviving Spouse of Retiree Same benefit continues to surviving spouse if retiree elects CalPERS
survivor annuity

1 Tier 1 reflects January 1, 2015 plan amendment. Pre-amendment benefit does not include Medicare B Reimbursement.

As of June 30, 2016, approximately 64 participants were eligible to receive benefits.

42

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30,2016

rNOTE 9 —-POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFTTS (Continued) l

Funding Policy and Actuarial Assumptions

The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of a June 30, 2013 actuarial
valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. This is a projected benefit cost method,
which takes into account those benefits that are expected to be earned in the future as well as those
already accrued. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.61% investment rate of return, (b) 3.25%
projected annual salary increase, include inflation and (c) 5.0 — 7.8% health inflation increase. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that smooth the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Actuarial calculations
reflect a long-term perspective and actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined
amounts are subject to revision at least biannually as results are compared to past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The Association’s OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll using a 21 year closed
amortization period.

In accordance with the Association’s budget, the annual required contribution (ARC) is to be
funded throughout the year as a percentage of payroll. Concurrent with implementing Statement
No. 45, the Association’s Board passed a resolution to participate in the California Employers
Retirees Benefit Trust (CERBT), an irrevocable trust established to fund OPEB. CERBT is
administered by CalPERS, and is managed by an appointed board not under the control of
Association Board. This Trust is not considered a component unit by the Association and has been
excluded from these financial statements. Separately issued financial statements for CERBT may
be obtained from CALPERS at P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709.

43

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 9 - POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued) ]

Funding Progress and Funded Status

Generally accepted accounting principles permit contributions to be treated as OPEB assets and
deducted from the Actuarial Accrued Liability when such contributions are placed in an irrevocable
trust or equivalent arrangement. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the Association
contributed $786,756 which represented 11.89% of the $6,616,000 of covered payroll. As a result,
the Association has recorded the Net OPEB Obligation, the difference between the ARC and actual
contributions, as presented below:

Net OPEB Obligation June 30, 2015 $401,777
Annual required contribution (ARC) 761,000
Interest on net OPEB obligation 33,000
Implied subsidy (42,000)
Adjustment to annual required contribution (77,510)
Annual OPEB cost 674.490
Contributions made:
Contributions to CERBT 401,777
Association's portion of current year premiums paid 384,979
Total contributions 786,756
Change in net OPEB Liability (112,266)
Net OPEB Obligation June 30, 2016 $289,511

The Plan’s annual required contributions and actual contributions for the last three fiscal years are

set forth below:
Percentage of

Annual OPEB Actual AOC Net OPEB

Fiscal Year Cost (AOC) Contributions Contributed Obligation
6/30/2014 $826,995 $893,739 108% $599,976
6/30/2015 695,675 893,874 128% 401,777
6/30/2016 674,490 786,756 117% 289,511

44

Item 11, Attachment 1B




ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A.  Federal and State Grant Programs

The Association participates in Federal and State grant programs. These programs have been audited
by the Association’s independent accountants through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 in
accordance with the provisions of the Federal Single Audit Act, as amended, and applicable State
requirements. No cost disallowances were proposed as a result of these audits; however, these
programs are still subject to further examination by the grantors and the amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time.
The Association expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

B.  Staff Consolidation

On May 25, 2016, the governing bodies of ABAG and MTC voted to support a full functional staff
consolidation and the pursuit of new governance options. This resolution retains the independence and
statutory responsibilities of both boards and calls for new governance options to be considered by
ABAG and MTC over the longer term. In the near term, both ABAG and MTC are developing a
Contract for Services to officially consolidate the two staffs under the MTC executive director and to
continue funding ABAG’s projects and activities. Under the Contract of Services the organization and
the financial structure of ABAG will not significantly change and ABAG will continue to exist as a
separate entity.

45

Item 11, Attachment 1B



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Item 11, Attachment 1B



Required Supplemental Information

Item 11, Attachment 1B



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Association of Bay Area Governments, a Cost-Sharing Defined Pension Plan

As of fiscal year ending June 30,2016
Last 10 Years*

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
Tier I& II Tier I& II

Measurement Date 6/30/2015 6/30/2014
Plan's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability/Asset 0.4738% 0.4744%
Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension
Liability/(Asset) $12,998,297 $11,357,673
Plan's Covered-Employee Payroll $6,038,648 $7,230,571
Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension
Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of its Covered-Employee
Payroll 215.25% 157.08%
Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position
as a Percentage of the Plan's Total Pension Liability 0.2144% 0.2256%

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.

49

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Association of Bay Area Governments, a Cost-Sharing Defined Pension Plan
As of fiscal year ending June 30, 2016

Last 10 Years*
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
Tier I& II Tier I& II
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Fiscal Year 2014-2015

Actuarially determined contribution $491,374 $1,305,738
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions (491,374) (1,305,738)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $0 $0
Covered-employee payroll $6,038,648 $7,230,571
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 8.14% 18.06%
Notes to Schedule
Valuation date: 6/30/2014 6/30/2013

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed
Remaining amortization period 30years
Asset valuation method 5-year smoothed market
Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
7.65%, net of pension plan investment and ~ 7.5%, net of pension plan investment and
Investment rate of return admiistrative expenses, including inflation administrative expenses, including inflation
Retirement age 55 yrs. Misc., 62 yrs. Tier 2

The probabilities of mortality are derived The probabilities of mortality are derived
from CalPERS' Membership Data for all from CalPERS' Membership Data for all

Funds based on CalPERS' specific data Funds based on CalPERS'specific data

froma 2010 CalPERS Experience Study. froma 2014 CalPERS Experience Study.

The table includes 20 years of mortality The table includes 20 years of mortality

improvements using the Society of improvements using the Society of
Mortality Actuaries Scale AA. Actuaries Scale BB.

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.

50

Item 11, Attachment 1B




ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Association of Bay Area Governments, Other Post Employment Benefits
As of fiscal year ending June 30, 2016

Last 3 Valuations

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING CONTRIBUTIONS

Actuarial

Unfunded Unfunded (overfunded)

Valation Value of  Accrued Accrued  Funded Covered  Actual Liability as % of
Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
6/30/2009 $0  $4,346,000 $4,346,000 0.00% $6,616,000 63.6%
6/30/2011 - 1,226,000 6,684,000  5458,000 18.34% 6,684,000 81.7%
6/30/2013 2,754,000 7,675,000  4921,000 35.88% 6,871,000 71.6%
51

Item 11, Attachment 1B



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Item 11, Attachment 1B



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL
AND
REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL
AND
REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2016

Table of Contents
Page

Memorandum on Internal CORIroL........................oecerveeeictreieernesesteesecettsees et sset e 1
Schedule of Other Matters...........oeeeeueereeccuemrenrietre ettt ss e sess s ene 3
Required COMMURICAHONS...................ooeeeerererenereienctetetesesesesese st st 11
Significant Findings ... s 11
AccOUNING POLICIES ....covevrieereriiiiiccecesies ettt et e 11
Unusual Transactions, Controversial or Emerging Areas ..........ccocoeeeveeverereeeesccereessncncncnene 13
Accounting EStIMALES ........ccoceeeriereecrrneneneicserirsece ettt st sese st s e et seene 13
DISCIOSUIES. .....eeeeeeereeeeieeeeetetseraraeae e e et steas s asasae s st e et s as s s ssssassssa st sessesseessesresasssnsasasnsennas 14
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit........cccoceueeerermeceeeccreeccese e 14
Corrected and Uncorrected MiSStatements..........coueueururerereeueccncnensieeeceeeeseseesesessesesenacs 14
Disagreements With Management ............cccoeeeeereeuerererertresesseeseseseseeeseseesessesesesessssesesssesesens 14
Management Representations.........c.cococeeereecrerercrententreesesees s seetsee et seseseesesesesaeseens 14
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants ..........coceeeeeereeccrerceecennnee 14

Other Audit Findings and ISSUES .........cccccovururirireentrernecietnineeneeecceseest st sesesesessanecs 14

Other Information Accompanying the Financial Statements ................cccocevreernecirnnenne. 15

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL

To the Executive Board of the
Association of Bay Area Governments
San Francisco, California

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the Association of Bay
Area Governments (Association) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the
Association’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
our audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Association’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses. In addition, because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the
possibility of management override of controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected by such controls. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Included in the Schedule of Other Matters are recommendations not meeting the above
definitions that we believe are opportunities for strengthening internal controls and operating
efficiency.

Management’s written responses included in this report have not been subjected to the audit
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of
Directors, others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Pleasant Hill, California
February 10, 2017
T 925.930.0902
Accountancy Corporation F 925.930.0135
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215 E maze@mazeassociates.com

Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 w mazeassociates.com

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL

SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS

FS2016-01 Upcoming Governmental Accounting Standards Board Pronouncements

The following pronouncements are effective in fiscal year 2016/17:

GASB 73 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within
the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and
68

This Statement establishes requirements for defined benefit pensions that are not within the scope of
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as well as for the assets accumulated
for purposes of providing those pensions. In addition, it establishes requirements for defined contribution
pensions that are not within the scope of Statement 68. It also amends certain provisions of Statement No.
67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, and Statement 68 for pension plans and pensions that are
within their respective scopes.

The requirements of this Statement extend the approach to accounting and financial reporting established
in Statement 68 to all pensions, with modifications as necessary to reflect that for accounting and
financial reporting purposes, any assets accumulated for pensions that are provided through pension plans
that are not administered through trusts that meet the criteria specified in Statement 68 should not be
considered pension plan assets. It also requires that information similar to that required by Statement 68
be included in notes to financial statements and required supplementary information by all similarly
situated employers and nonemployer contributing entities.

This Statement also clarifies the application of certain provisions of Statements 67 and 68 with regard to
the following issues:

1. Information that is required to be presented as notes to the 10-year schedules of required
supplementary information about investment-related factors that significantly affect trends in the

amounts reported

2. Accounting and financial reporting for separately financed specific liabilities of individual
employers and nonemployer contributing entities for defined benefit pensions

3. Timing of employer recognition of revenue for the support of nonemployer contributing entities
not in a special funding situation.

GASB 74 - Financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans

The objective of this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about postemployment
benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose
external financial reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing
accountability. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing
standards of accounting and financial reporting for all postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB)
with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and
interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency.

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL
SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS

This Statement replaces Statements No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other
Than Pension Plans, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent
Multiple-Employer Plans. It also includes requirements for defined contribution OPEB plans that replace
the requirements for those OPEB plans in Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit
Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, as amended, Statement 43, and
Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures.

Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements for governments whose
employees are provided with OPEB, as well as for certain nonemployer governments that have a legal
obligation to provide financial support for OPEB provided to the employees of other entities.

The scope of this Statement includes OPEB plans—defined benefit and defined contribution—
administered through trusts that meet the following criteria:

. Contributions from employers and nonemployer contributing entities to the OPEB plan
and earnings on those contributions are irrevocable.

. OPEB plan assets are dedicated to providing OPEB to plan members in accordance with
the benefit terms.

. OPEB plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer
contributing entities, and the OPEB plan administrator. If the plan is a defined benefit
OPEB plan, plan assets also are legally protected from creditors of the plan members.

This Statement also includes requirements to address financial reporting for assets accumulated for

purposes of providing defined benefit OPEB through OPEB plans that are not administered through trusts
that meet the specified criteria.

GASB 77 - Tax Abatement Disclosures

This Statement establishes financial reporting standards for tax abatement agreements entered into by
state and local governments. The disclosures required by this Statement encompass tax abatements
resulting from both (a) agreements that are entered into by the reporting government and (b) agreements
that are entered into by other governments and that reduce the reporting government’s tax revenues.

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL
SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS

This Statement requires governments that enter into tax abatement agreements to disclose the following
information about the agreements:

. Brief descriptive information, such as the tax being abated, the authority under which tax
abatements are provided, eligibility criteria, the mechanism by which taxes are abated,
provisions for recapturing abated taxes, and the types of commitments made by tax

abatement recipients

. The gross dollar amount of taxes abated during the period

. Commitments made by a government, other than to abate taxes, as part of a tax
abatement agreement.

Governments should organize those disclosures by major tax abatement program and may disclose
information for individual tax abatement agreements within those programs.

Tax abatement agreements of other governments should be organized by the government that entered into
the tax abatement agreement and the specific tax being abated. Governments may disclose information for
individual tax abatement agreements of other governments within the specific tax being abated. For those
tax abatement agreements, a reporting government should disclose:

. The names of the governments that entered into the agreements
. The specific taxes being abated
. The gross dollar amount of taxes abated during the period

GASB 78 - Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The objective of this Statement is to address a practice issue regarding the scope and applicability of
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. This issue is associated with
pensions provided through certain multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans and to state or local
governmental employers whose employees are provided with such pensions.

Prior to the issuance of this Statement, the requirements of Statement 68 applied to the financial
statements of all state and local governmental employers whose employees are provided with pensions
through pension plans that are administered through trusts that meet the criteria in paragraph 4 of that
Statement.

This Statement amends the scope and applicability of Statement 68 to exclude pensions provided to
employees of state or local governmental employers through a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan that (1) is not a state or local governmental pension plan, (2) is used to provide
defined benefit pensions both to employees of state or local governmental employers and to employees of
employers that are not state or local governmental employers, and (3) has no predominant state or local
governmental employer (either individually or collectively with other state or local governmental
employers that provide pensions through the pension plan). This Statement establishes requirements for
recognition and measurement of pension expense, expenditures, and liabilities; note disclosures; and
required supplementary information for pensions that have the characteristics described above.

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL
SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS

GASB 80 - Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units—an amendment of GASB Statement
No. 14

The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement
presentation requirements for certain component units. This Statement amends the blending requirements
established in paragraph 53 of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended.

This Statement amends the blending requirements for the financial statement presentation of component
units of all state and local governments. The additional criterion requires blending of a component unit
incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary government is the sole corporate
member. The additional criterion does not apply to component units included in the financial reporting
entity pursuant to the provisions of Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are
Component Units.

How the Changes in This Statement Improve Financial Reporting
The requirements of this Statement enhance the comparability of financial statements among

governments. Greater comparability improves the decision-usefulness of information reported in financial
statements and enhances its value for assessing government accountability.

GASB 82 - Pension Issues—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73

The objective of this Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised with respect to
Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are
Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB
Statements 67 and 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of
payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the
treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting
purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member)
contribution requirements.

Presentation of Payroll-Related Measures in Required Supplementary Information

Prior to the issuance of this Statement, Statements 67 and 68 required presentation of covered-employee
payroll, which is the payroll of employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan, and
ratios that use that measure, in schedules of required supplementary information. This Statement amends
Statements 67 and 68 to instead require the presentation of covered payroll, defined as the payroll on
which contributions to a pension plan are based, and ratios that use that measure.

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL
SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS

Selection of Assumptions

This Statement clarifies that a deviation, as the term is used in Actuarial Standards of Practice issued by
the Actuarial Standards Board, from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice is not considered to
be in conformity with the requirements of Statement 67, Statement 68, or Statement 73 for the selection
of assumptions used in determining the total pension liability and related measures.

Classification of Employer-Paid Member Contributions

This Statement clarifies that payments that are made by an employer to satisfy contribution requirements
that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution requirements should be
classified as plan member contributions for purposes of Statement 67 and as employee contributions for
purposes of Statement 68. It also requires that an employer’s expense and expenditures for those amounts
be recognized in the period for which the contribution is assessed and classified in the same manner as the
employer classifies similar compensation other than pensions (for example, as salaries and wages or as
fringe benefits).

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL
SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS

The following pronouncements are effective in fiscal vear 2017/18:

GASB 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and
local governments for post-employment benefits other than pensions (other post-employment benefits or
OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial
support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review
of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for all post-employment
benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting
assessments of accountability and inter-period equity, and creating additional transparency.

This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB
Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. Statement No. 74,
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, establishes new
accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans.

The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for OPEB that is provided to the
employees of state and local governmental employers. This Statement establishes standards for
recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and
expense/expenditures. For defined benefit OPEB, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions
that are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their
actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service. Note disclosure
and required supplementary information requirements about defined benefit OPEB also are addressed.

In addition, this Statement details the recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with
payables to defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the specified
criteria and for employers whose employees are provided with defined contribution OPEB. This
Statement also addresses certain circumstances in which a nonemployer entity provides financial support
for OPEB of employees of another entity.

In this Statement, distinctions are made regarding the particular requirements depending upon whether the
OPEB plans through which the benefits are provided are administered through trusts that meet the
following criteria:

. Contributions from employers and nonemployér contributing entities to the OPEB plan
and eamings on those contributions are irrevocable.

. OPEB plan assets are dedicated to providing OPEB to plan members in accordance with
the benefit terms.
. OPEB plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer

contributing entities, the OPEB plan administrator, and the plan members.

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL
SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS

GASB 81 - Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements

The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-
interest agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a
government is a beneficiary of the agreement.

Split-interest agreements are a type of giving agreement used by donors to provide resources to two or
more beneficiaries, including governments. Split-interest agreements can be created through trusts—or
other legally enforceable agreements with characteristics that are equivalent to split-interest agreements—
in which a donor transfers resources to an intermediary to hold and administer for the benefit of a
government and at least one other beneficiary. Examples of these types of agreements include charitable
lead trusts, charitable remainder trusts, and life-interests in real estate.

This Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest
agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the
agreement. Furthermore, this Statement requires that a government recognize assets representing its
beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest agreements that are administered by a third party, if the
government controls the present service capacity of the beneficial interests. This Statement requires that a
government recognize revenue when the resources become applicable to the reporting period.

How the Changes in This Statement Improve Financial Reporting

This Statement enhances the comparability of financial statements by providing accounting and financial
reporting guidance for irrevocable split-interest agreements in which a government is a beneficiary. This
Statement also enhances the decision-usefulness of general purpose external financial reports, and their
value for assessing accountability, by more clearly identifying the resources that are available for the
government to carry out its mission.

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

February 10, 2017

To the Executive Board of the
Association of Bay Area Governments
San Francisco, California

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Association of Bay Area Governments for the year
ended June 30, 2016. Professional standards require that we communicate to you the following
information related to our audit under generally accepted auditing standards and, Government Auditing
Standards and Uniform Guidance.

Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Association are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year,
except as follows:

GASB Statement No. 72 — Fair Value Measurement and

The intention of this Statement is to enhance the comparability of financial statements among
governments by requiring measurement of certain assets and liabilities at fair value using a
consistent and more detailed definition of fair value and accepted valuation techniques. It also
enhances fair value application guidance and related disclosures.

Local Governments

The objective of this Statement is to identify, in the context of the current governmental financial
reporting environment, the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The
“GAAP hierarchy” consists of the sources of accounting principles used to prepare financial
statements of state and local governmental entities in conformity with GAAP and the framework
for selecting those principles. This Statement reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of
authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of authoritative and non-authoritative literature in the
event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is not specified within a source
of authoritative GAAP. This Statement supersedes Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments.

T 925.930.0902

Accountancy Corporation 11 F 925.930.0135
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215 E Maze@mazeassociates.com
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 w mazeassociates.com

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



The requirements in this Statement improve financial reporting by (1) raising the category of
GASB Implementation Guides in the GAAP hierarchy, thus providing the opportunity for broader
public input on implementation guidance; (2) emphasizing the importance of analogies to
authoritative literature when the accounting treatment for an event is not specified in authoritative
GAAP; and (3) requiring the consideration of consistency with the GASB Concepts Statements
when evaluating accounting treatments specified in nonauthoritative literature. As a result,
governments will apply financial reporting guidance with less variation, which will improve the
usefulness of financial statement information for making decisions and assessing accountability
and enhance the comparability of financial statement information among governments.

The pronouncement became effective, but did not have a material effect on the financial
statements

GASB 79—  Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2015, except for certain provisions on portfolio quality, custodial credit risk, and shadow pricing.
Those provisions are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.

This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain external investment pools
and pool participants. Specifically, it establishes criteria for an external investment pool to qualify
for making the election to measure all of its investments at amortized cost for financial reporting
purposes. An external investment pool qualifies for that reporting if it meets all of the applicable
criteria established in this Statement. The specific criteria address (1) how the external investment
pool transacts with participants; (2) requirements for portfolio maturity, quality, diversification,
and liquidity; and (3) calculation and requirements of a shadow price. Significant noncompliance
prevents the external investment pool from measuring all of its investments at amortized cost for
financial reporting purposes. Professional judgment is required to determine if instances of
noncompliance with the criteria established by this Statement during the reporting period,
individually or in the aggregate, were significant.

If an external investment pool does not meet the criteria established by this Statement, that pool
should apply the provisions in paragraph 16 of Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, as amended. If an external
investment pool meets the criteria in this Statement and measures all of its investments at
amortized cost, the pool’s participants also should measure their investments in that external
investment pool at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. If an external investment pool
does not meet the criteria in this Statement, the pool’s participants should measure their
investments in that pool at fair value, as provided in paragraph 11 of Statement 31, as amended.

This Statement establishes additional note disclosure requirements for qualifying external
investment pools that measure all of their investments at amortized cost for financial reporting
purposes and for governments that participate in those pools. Those disclosures for both the
qualifying external investment pools and their participants include information about any
limitations or restrictions on participant withdrawals.

The pronouncement became effective, but did not have a material effect on the financial
statements.

12

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



Unusual Transactions, Controversial or Emerging Areas

We noted no transactions entered into by the Association during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the Association’s financial
statements were:

Estimated Net Pension Liabilities and Pension-Related Deferred Outflows and Inflows of
Resources: Management’s estimate of the net pension liabilities and deferred outflows/inflows of
resources are disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements and are based on actuarial studies
determined by a consultant, which are based on the experience of the Association. We evaluated
the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate and determined that it is reasonable
in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Estimated Net OPEB Liability: Management’s estimate of the net OPEB liability is disclosed in
Note 9 to the financial statements and is based on actuarial study determined by a consultant,
which is based on the experience of the Association. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the estimate and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Estimated Fair Value of Investments: As of June 30, 2016, the Association held approximately
$7.7 million of cash and investments as measured by fair value as disclosed in Note 2 to the
financial statements. Fair value is essentially market pricing in effect as of June 30, 2016. These
fair values are not required to be adjusted for changes in general market conditions occurring
subsequent to June 30, 2016.

Estimate of Depreciation: Management’s estimate of the depreciation is based on useful lives
determined by management. These lives have been determined by management based on the
expected useful life of assets as disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements. We evaluated the
key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciation estimate and determined that it is
reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Estimate of Compensated Absences: Accrued compensated absences which are comprised of
accrued vacation, holiday, and certain other compensating time is estimated using accumulated
unpaid leave hoaurs and hourly pay rates in effect at the end of the fiscal year as disclosed in
Note 1E to the financial statements. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the accrued compensated absences and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Unbilled Receivables: The Association has recorded unbilled receivables approximating $16.5
million. Actual billings and the ultimate collections may vary from this estimate.

13

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



Disclosures
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements
detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or
in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in a management
representation letter dated February 10, 2017.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the Association’s financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Association auditors. However, these

discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

14

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



Other Information Accompanying the Financial Statements

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information that accompanies and
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other lsmowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the required supplementary information
and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the required supplementary information.

We were not engaged to report on the Introductory Section included as part of the Basic Financial

Statements, but are not required supplementary information. We did not audit or perform other procedures
on this other information and we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

*okokokkk

This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Directors and management and is not intended
to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Mezp k fasomiato

Pleasant Hill, California
February 10, 2017

15

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

ltem 11, Attachment 1C



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

ltem 11, Attachment 1D



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 11, Attachment 1D



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT
For The Year Ended June 30, 2016

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Schedule of Findings and QUestioned COStS .........ceeererereecnieeertreeseneseeeseeteeseesesseeeesens 1
Section I - Summary of Auditor’s ReSULLS......cceueeeieererieentreerieeeeetreeet e esee e seeeaene 1
Section II — Financial Statement FINdings........c.cceeoeeeeeeereececccrteceeeseeecteeee e 2
Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs ........cecceeverenerceeeerserscecennenns 2
Section IV - Status of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs........ccceoveererverrerienicncncns 2
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWArdS .........cococoeeeerreecrececremecceseecsenereseesesesesesenaene 3
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWards..........cccceveeererccrenerceeereseneeneceesseeeeennnees 5
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards............u..cu..... 7
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance ............ 9

Iltem 11, Attachment 1D



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

ltem 11, Attachment 1D



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2016

SECTION I—SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial
statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
None
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified? _Yes X Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No
Federal Awards

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
programs: Unmodified

Internal control over major programs:

e Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
None
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X Reported

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA#(s Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.205 Highway Planning and Construction Grant
66.439 Targeted Watershed Grants
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750.,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
1

Iltem 11, Attachment 1D



SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Our audit did not disclose any significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses or instances of
noncompliance material to the basic financial statements. We have also issued a separate Memorandum on
Internal Control dated February 10, 2017 which is an integral part of our audits and should be read in
conjunction with this report.

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Our audit did not disclose any findings or questioned costs required to be reported in accordance with
Uniform Guidance.

SECTION IV - STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS —
Prepared by Management

Financial Statement Prior Year Findings

There were no prior year Financial Statement Findings reported.

Federal Award Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no prior year Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs reported

Iltem 11, Attachment 1D



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Federal Pass-Through  Pass-Through
Federal Grantor/ CFDA Identifying To Federal
Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures
Department of Interior, US Geological Survey Direct Programs:
Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program
Bay Area Housing Risk Communication Tools Update 15.807 $55,470
Program Subtotal 55470
U.S. Geological Survey - Research and Data Collection
Local Government Resilience Toolkit 15.808 8,892
Program Subtotal 8,892
Subtotal Department of Interior, US Geological Survey Direct Programs 64,362
Department of Interior, US Geological Survey Pass - Through Programs:
California Department of Parks & Recreation
Clean Vessel Act Program 15.616 C8957407 156,649
Subtotal Department of Interior, US Geological Survey Pass - Through Programs 156,649
Total Department of Interior, US Geological Survey Programs 221,011
Department of Transportation Pass - Through Programs
Pass - Through the Metropolitan Transportation Commission
Highway Planning and Construction Programs:
Information Analysis and Planning Services 20.205 Not Available 2,630,575
Total Department of Transportation Pass - Through Programs 2,630,575
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Direct Programs
Surveys, Studies, Investigations, Demonstrations and Training Grants and
Cooperative Agreements - Section 104(b)(3) of the Clean Water Act
EPA Estuary 2100 66.436 $70,608 181,608
Targeted Watershed Grants
EPA Green Infill /Clean SW 66.439 165,542
National Estuary Program
EPA FY 13-14 Estuary 66.456 522,778
Congressionally Mandated Projects
Estuary 2100 Phase II 66.202 365,038 449,469
The San Francisco Bay Water Quality Improvement Fund
San Pablo Ave. Green SW Spine 66.126 3,506
Flood 2.0 - Rebuilding Habitat & Shoreline Resilience 66.126 243,121 290,196
Greener Pesticides for Cleaner Waterways 66.126 10,258
EPA Mercury CPR 66.126 27,692
Urban Greener Bay Area 66.126 157,779 220,085
Suisun Marsh Water Quality Monitoring Project 66.126 61,769
Program Subtotal 400,900 613,506
Subtotal U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Direct Programs 836,546 1,932,903
(Continued)

ltem 11, Attachment 1D



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Federal Pass-Through  Pass-Through
Federal Grantor/ CFDA Identifying To Federal
Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Pass - Through Programs
Pass - Through the California State Water Resources Board
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water States Revolving Funds
SRF Unified Bay & Delta Reporting 66.458 14-818-550 307,556
Pass - Through the Aquatic Science Center
Regional Wetland Program Development Grant
Aquatic Science Center Contract II 66.461 CD-99T34301-0 22427
Subtotal U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Pass - Through Programs 329,983
Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Programs
2,262,886
Department of Homeland Security Direct Programs
Cooperating Technical Partners
Regional Resilience Plan 97.045 77,234
FY 2015 Community Engagement and Risk Communication 97.045 671,863
Total Department of Homeland Security Direct Programs 749,097

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

$836,546 $5,863,569

See Accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Iltem 11, Attachment 1D



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1-REPORTING ENTITY

The Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes expenditures of federal awards for
the Association of Bay Area Governments (Association), California as disclosed in the notes to the Basic
Financial Statements.

NOTE 2-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts
and reported in the financial statements, regardless of the measurement focus applied. All proprietary funds
are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures of Federal Awards reported on the
Schedule are recognized when incurred.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST ELECTION

The Association has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

ltem 11, Attachment 1D



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 11, Attachment 1D



MAZE

& ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Members of the Executive Board of the
Association of Bay Area Governments, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the Association
of Bay Area Governments (Association), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes
to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 10, 2017. Our report
included an emphasis of a matter paragraph disclosing the implementation of new accounting principles.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Association's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Association’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Association’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Association’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

T 925.930.0902

Accountancy Corporation 7 F 925.930.0135
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215 E Maze@mazeassociates.com
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 w mazeassociates.com

Iltem 11, Attachment 1D



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Association's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Association’s Response to Findings

We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated February 10, 2017 which is an
integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Association’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

MNaze k frameto

Pleasant Hill, California
February 10, 2017

Iltem 11, Attachment 1D



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE;
AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Honorable Members of the Executive Board of the
Association of Bay Area Governments, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Association of Bay Area Governments' (Association) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the Association's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. The
Association's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Association’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Association’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major

federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Association’s
compliance.

T 925.930.0902

Accountancy Corporation 9 F 925.930.0135
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215 E maze@mazeassociates.com
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 w mazeassociates.com

Iltem 11, Attachment 1D



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Association complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 20, 2016.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the Association’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

10

Iltem 11, Attachment 1D



Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the basic financial statements of the business-type activities of the Association as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Association’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated February 10,
2017 which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for
the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform
Guidance and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

MNazp k foreniaton

Pleasant Hill, California
February 10, 2017

11

Iltem 11, Attachment 1D



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

ltem 11, Attachment 1D



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area

ABAG

Date: May 12, 2017
To: ABAG Finance and Personnel Committee
From: Courtney Ruby

Director of Finance and Administrative Services

Subject: Financial Reports March 2017

The following are highlights of the March 2017 financial reports.

Overall Summary

Expenses exceeded Revenue by $8 thousand for the nine months ended March 31, 2017. A
$50 thousand surplus is projected at year-end in the budget. Please refer to the Table of
Financial Report Data Elements for fiscal year budget, year-to-date actual and projected fiscal
year numbers.

Budget Adjustments for FY 2016-17

The Budget for FY 2016-17 was adopted in January 2016. This report includes budget
adjustments for SFEP and BayREN.

SFEP. Several budgeted SFEP projects were completed early in the previous fiscal
year and several current projects are being extended into the next fiscal year. Therefore
SFEP’s FY 2016-17 budget is being adjusted from $31 million to $19.6 million. Given the
large size of these construction projects and their multi-year duration, such budget
changes are to be expected and are consistent with prior years.

BayREN. Due to the success of the BayREN program, PG&E increased their rebate
funding significantly by almost $4 million. Therefore BayREN’s budget is being adjusted
from $13.3 million to $17.1 million.

Cash on Hand

The cash balance was $6.4 million at the end of March, including $2.2 million deposited in the
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). As shown in Figure 1 the actual monthly cash balances
for the first nine months of fiscal year 2016-17, and the projected balance for the year end are
within our normal range of $6.0 to $9.0 million. The cash balance is projected to be
approximately $7 million at the end of the fiscal year.

Item 11, Attachment 2A



Financial Reports March 2017
May 12, 2017
Page 2

Receivables

At the end of March, total receivables amounted to $9.7 million which included $3.7 million of
unbilled receivables (mainly attributed (42%) to SFEP’s Integrated Regional Water Management
Program (IRWMP) and $6 million (mainly attributed to IRWMP and BayREN) of grant and
service program receivables. Receivables over 90 days past due were $3.6 million, including
$3.4 million from the Department of Water Resources. All receivables are believed to be
collectible. Figure 2 shows the comparison of receivables generated by grants and service
programs over the current and prior fiscal year.

Revenues and Expenses

As of March 31, 2017, total revenue amounted to $26.1 million, which is 56 percent, of the
projected revenue for the year of $50.5 million; Total expenses amounted to $26.1 million, which
is 56 percent of the projected expenses for the year of $50.5 million;

Figure 3 presents a graphic comparison of the current month of March, the nine month year-to-
date actual, and fiscal year projected revenues and expenses.

Figures 4 and 5 show year-to-date revenues and expenses by major categories. Grants
revenue is 84% of total revenue, compared to 81% for the prior fiscal year. Pass-through and
Consultant expense are 64% of total expenses, compared to 69% for the prior fiscal year.

Net Position/Fund Equity

Total fund equity was negative $7.9 million as of March 31, 2017. In compliance with GASB 68,
beginning with the June 30, 2015 audited financial statements, we have recorded the ABAG
accumulated unfunded pension obligation as a liability and reduction of fund equity. For internal
financial statement purposes, we have elected to separately track the fund equity for the
pension obligation and operations. Thus, the June 30, 2016 fund equity for pension obligations
is presented as a negative $12.1 million, and the accumulated fund equity from operations is
presented as a positive $2.6 million in the financial reports. The restricted fund equity of $1.6
million consists of capital, self-insurance, building maintenance and reserves. Figure 6 is a
graphic presentation of actual and projected: unrestricted, restricted, and total net equity for the
current fiscal year.

Indirect Overhead Rate

After careful analysis of our ABAG overhead accounts, we projected and obtained an approval
from EPA for an increase to our project overhead rate by 1.2% to 46.15% in FY 2016-17 (up
from 44.95% in FY 2015-16).

The Agency’s actual indirect overhead cost rate through March 2017 was 46.58%, which was
.43 percentage points above the current adopted budget of 46.15% approved by the EPA. Rate
variances throughout the year are to be expected. Figure 7 shows a comparison between the
actual indirect cost rate through March 31 and EPA approved rates for the year.

Item 11, Attachment 2A



Financial Reports March 2017
May 12, 2017
Page 3

Financial Information by Program

The Report by Program of Net Surplus/(Deficit) is included after the charts. This report presents
revenue and expense information by program. It provides an overview of budgeted and year-to-
date revenue and expense data for major programs such as the Planning Services, San
Francisco Estuary Partnership (SFEP), Bay Trail and POWER/Energy. It should be noted for
SFEP and Bay Trail, the actual progress of their projects is below projection because we have
not been billed by subrecipients as it takes several weeks to know the actual progress due to
the complex nature and multi-year duration of the projects.

Financial Outlook

The projection for fiscal year 2016-17 is for a surplus of revenues over expenses of $50,000.

Item 11, Attachment 2A



Blank Page



Association of Bay Area Governments

Table of Financial Report Data Elements
(thousands of dollars)

for March 2017

Projected percentage of
: budget is 75%.

70 OT

Projected ear-To- Projected
Adopted Fiscal Year Date Fiscal Year
Description Budget Budget Actual Budget

ASSETS
Cash 7,000 6,367
Receivables 14,000 9,739
REVENUES
Membership Dues 1,958 1,958 1,473 75%
Grants 51,717 44,067 21,859 50%
Charges for Services and Other 4,545 4,545 2,800 62%
Total Revenues 58,220 50,570 26,132 52%
EXPENSES
Salaries and Benefits 11,828 11,828 7,880 67%
Pass-through and Consultant Expenses 44,011 36,361 16,772 46%
Other Expenses 2,331 2,331 1,488 64%
Total Expenses 58,170 50,520 26,140 52%
Change in Net Position 50 50 (8) -16%
Beginning Net Position (7,728) (7,728) (7,859) 102%
Ending Net Position (7,678) (7,678) (7,867) 102%
NET POSITION BREAKDOWNS
Unrestricted - Accumulated Operations Surplus 2,969 2,969 2,634 89%
Unrestricted - Pension Adjustment - June 30, 2016 (12,254) (12,254) (12,108) 99%
Restricted - Tenant Improvements 800 800 800 100%
Restricted - Other 857 857 807 94%
Total Net Position (7,628) (7,628) (7,867) 103%
INDIRECT OVERHEAD
Overhead Rate 44.95% 44.95% 46.58%
Approved Rate 46.15%

Item 11, Attachment 2B



ABAG Financial Indices

Cash on Hand FY 16-17 ($'000)

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
FY 17 Actual 7,501 8,243 6,706 6,103 7,934 5,634 6,244 8,460 6,367
FY 17 Projected 7,000 7,000 7,000
FY 16 Actual 8,316 7,258 7,533 8,312 8,298 7,052 6,073 7,010 7,353 7,079 6,818 7,300
- Figure 1--Cash on Hand--FY 16 and FY 17 ($'000)
Represents the sum total of cash deposited at banks 18888
or invested in money markets and the Local Agency ?888
Investment Fund. This chart shows fluctuation patterns of 6.000
cash on hand for the current and the prior fiscal year. 2888
3,000
2,000
1,000 | : : : : : :
» & R & S & ¢ KW w@* N
Accounts Receivable FY 16-17 ($'000)
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
FY 17 Actual 29,781 | 20,360 | 14,161 | 13,526 11,711 | 12,461 | 12,690 9,225 9,739
FY 17 Projected 14,000 14,000 29,000
FY 16 Actual 8,163 8,471 7,515 8,974 8,299 9,710 7,593 5,885 13,973 14,576 14,708 29,687
Accounts receivable include receivables generated by \ Figure 2--Accounts Rece{i(;/liglne\--FY 16 and FY 17
grants and service programs over two fiscal years. Due to 30,000 A ’
accrual of unbilled receivables at year end on June 30, 2016, 25,000
mainly attributed to IRWMP, receivables were higher in July 20,000
and August and settles back to the expected level in 15,000
September. Receivables up to February 2017 are expected to 10,000
be higher than corresponding period in FY 16 due to 5,000
0 ‘ ‘ ‘

increased activity attributable to IRWMP grants.

> X
» \?OQ‘ R F S F

Item 11, Attachment 2B




ABAG Financial Indices

Figure 3--Revenues and Expenses ($'000)
$70,000
. $60,000
Presents a comparison of current month $50,000
actual, year-to-date actual, and $40,000
adopted/projected revenues and expenses. $30,000
$20,000
$10,000
$0 — L ——— -

Current Month Actual YTD Actual Projected

iTRevenues $2,929 $26,132 $50,570

B Expenses $2,901 $26,140 $50,520

Shows year-to-date revenues by major category including Shows year-to-date expenses by major category including salaries

membership dues, grants, and charges for services and other. and benefits, pass-through and consultant expenses, and other
expenses.

Figure 4--Year-to-date Revenues by Category ($'000) Figure 5--Year-to-date Expenses by Category ($'000)
Charges for ) Salaries and
Services and Membership Other Benefits . .
Dues Expe nses Salaries and Benefits
Other $1,488 $7,880
$2’800 $1’473 mMembership Dues 6,% 30%

11% 5%

BGrants =Other Expenses

mCharges for Services and Other

Pass-throu
and Consult

Grants Expenses
$21,859 $16,772
84% 64%

Item 11, Attachment 2B



Presents actual and adopted/projected general,
restricted and total fund equities for the current
fiscal year. General fund equity represents
unrestricted equity. Restricted equities include
building improvements, building maintenance, self-
insurance, capital and contingency reserve. These
restricted equities represent the Association's
equities set aside for specific purposes. Total equity
is the sum total of general and restricted equities.

Shows a comparison between the actual indirect
cost rate and approved rate. The approved indirect
cost rate is computed by dividing total estimated
overhead expenses by total projected direct labor
cost for a fiscal year. This rate is used as a standard
overhead cost rate to allocate indirect costs to all
projects. This process is performed in accordance
with an indirect cost plan, which is prepared annually
in accordance with federal guidelines.

ABAG Financial Indices
Year-To-Date Actual

$3,500
$1,500
$(500)
$(2,500)
$(4,500)
$(6,500)
$(8,500)
$(10,500)

Figure 6--Net Position/Fund Equity ($'000)

$(9,474)

Restricted mYTD Actual m Projected

$(9,285) $(7,867)  $(7,628)

48.00%

Figure 7--Indirect Overhead Rate

47.50%

47.00%

46.50% -
46.00% -
45.50% -
45.00% -
44.50% -
44.00% -
43.50% -
43.00% -
42.50% -
42.00% -

Actual Rate Approved Rate

Item 11, Attachment 2B




Association of Bay Area Governments

Report by Program of Net Surplus/(Deficit)
Through March 2017 / 75% of Year Elapsed

Projected e ot
Adopted Fiscal Year Year-To-Date | Year-To-Date Surplus/ Expense Comments
Program Description Budget Adjustments Budget Revenues Expenses (Deficit) Budget (for variances 10% > or < from 75%)
A B C D=B-C E=C/A

Planning Services 4,398,001 4,398,001 2,879,626 2,879,809 (183) 65%

San Francisco Estuary 31,023,411 (11,431,344) 19,592,067 4,621,896 4,600,944 20,952 23%|Expenses are expected to increase at year-end as

Partnership subrecipients bill for the IRWMP project. Many are large
construction projects with typical variations in timing and
nonewill be completed in the current fiscal year. We
expect some variation between budgeted and actual
expenses given size of projecte and multi-year duration.
However, all expenses are expected to be incurred before
grants expire.

Disaster Recovery 866,296 866,296 544,007 543,756 251 63%|Work is proceeding more slowly then projected on some
projects. Anticipate extending work into next fiscal year.

Bay Trail 1,998,340 1,998,340 1,123,451 1,125,121 (1,670) 56%|Slower progress of projects at the beginning of the fiscal
year for planning and construction grants due to weather,
public process and delayed contracting. Expected to catch
up in the later parts of the year.

Training Center, Web Hosting 280,000 280,000 12,987 5,735 7,252 2%|The budget did not anticipate the sale of the training

and Publications center late in the prior fiscal year but after 2016-17 budget
was approved.

POWER/Energy 13,277,000 3,781,138 17,058,138 13,225,812 13,258,592 (32,780) 78%|BayRen Program runs on a calendar year basis. Larger
amount of rebates were paid out in December 2016; and
expect the budget amount increased.

FAN Finance Authority 1,050,000 1,050,000 650,590 643,260 7,330 61%|Some FAN consultant expense were included in ABAG
budget, however these expenses are being paid directly by
FAN.

PLAN Corporation - Property & 2,450,000 2,450,000 1,417,808 1,417,808 - 58%

Liability Insurance Pool

SHARP - Worker's Comp Pool 150,000 150,000 76,119 76,119 - 51%|Expect expenses to increase towards year end as members
claim reimbursements for loss prevention program
expenditures.

Fiscal Agent Services 131,400 131,400 105,649 103,802 1,847 79%

Communications/Legislative 660,000 660,000 423,424 421,424 2,000 64%|Expenses are underbudget due to staff reductions in
Communications after 2016-17 budget was approved and
cost savings from producing GA in house.

Agency Administration 1,885,267 1,885,267 1,054,585 925,062 129,523 49%|Due to reduction in excecutive staff. Decrease in expenses
appears reasonable.

Payroll Clearing - - - 114,086 (114,086) n/a|Expect the payroll clearing account to be close to
breakeven towards year end.

Central Overhead - - 2,259,727 2,287,727 (28,001) n/a|The expense of $2,287,727 is 68% of indirect costs of the
$3,346k projection reported to EPA, so amount is
reasonable.

Totals 58,169,715 (7,650,206) 50,519,509 28,395,681 28,403,245 (7,564) ltem 11 _Attachment|

2B



Planning Services

San Francisco Estuary Partnership

Disaster Recovery

Bay Trail

Green Business

Training Center, Web Hosting and Publications
POWER/Energy

Finance Authority

Plan Corporation - Property & Liability Insurance
SHARP - Worker's Comp Pool

Fiscal Agent Services
Communications/Legislative

Agency Administration

Totals

2015/16 2016/17
3,844,000 4,398,001
5,380,000 31,023,411

700,000 866,296
1,028,000 1,998,340

90,000 -

540,000 280,000
9,712,304 13,277,000
1,104,696 1,050,000
2,200,000 2,450,000

150,000 150,000

106,200 131,400

560,000 660,000
1,241,622 1,885,267

26,656,822 58,169,715

Item 11, Attachment 2B



SFEP CONTRACTORS FOR
PROPOSED BUDGET WORK PLAN

FY 2017-18

Contractor
Vendor Name Budget 17-18 |Funding/Grant Source Project Description
Misc., small $ totaling about S50K each year S 32,000 |CA Department of Fish and Wildlife Interagency Ecological Program Annual Workshop
Wilsey Ham S 250,544 [CA Strategic Growth Council Design for San Pablo Avenue stormwater site
Harris & Associates S 49,456 [CA Strategic Growth Council Construction management for San Pablo Spine project, El Cerrito site
Ghilotti Brothers S 900,000 |Caltrans San Pablo Spine Construction Bid Package A
Science Experts S 41,829 [Delta Stewardship Council Provide scientific review
Science Communications Estuary News 2 S 25,000 |Delta Stewardship Council Editorial services for Delta Science Program
Science Communications Chris Austin 2 S 11,306 |Delta Stewardship Council Write up proceedings for Delta Science Program workshops
Miscellaneous small totaling $37,800 S 37,800 |DOI to CA Department of Boating and Waterways Clean Vessel Act Outreach 2017-18
State Coastal Conservancy S 1,014,745 [DWR IRWM 4 Novato Creek Flood & Habitat
State Coastal Conservancy S 932,892 [DWR IRWM 4 Eden Landing SBSP
State Coastal Conservancy S 1,373,714 [DWR IRWM 4 Mountain View Shoreline SBSP
State Coastal Conservancy S 298,386 |DWR IRWM 4 San Francisquito Restoration
San Mateo County Resource Conservation District S 400,000 |DWR IRWM 4 Coastal San Mateo Drought I
City of East Palo Alto S 430,300 [DWR IRWM 4 East Palo Alto Groundwater Sply
Marin Municipal Water District S 223,304 [DWR IRWM 4 Marin 2020 Turf Replacement
Santa Clara Valley Water District S 1,168,571 [DWR IRWM 4 Anderson Dam Seismic Retrofit
Marin Municipal Water District S 490,195 |DWR IRWMP 3 SMART Irrigation MMWD
Stopwaste.org S 2,991,808 [DWR IRWMP 3 Bay Area Conservation Project
Stinson Beach County Water District S 346,568 [DWR IRWMP 3 Stinson Beach Water Supply
San Mateo County Resource Conservation District S 1,983,023 [DWR IRWMP 3 San Mateo Co Drought Relief
City of Calistoga S 409,091 [DWR IRWMP 3 Calistoga Recycled Water
DSRSD-EBMUD Recycled Water Authority (DERWA) S 2,181,818 [DWR IRWMP 3 DERWA Phase 3 Recycled Water
Santa Clara Valley Water District S 2,181,818 [DWR IRWMP 3 Sunnyvale Recycled Water
Napa Sanitation District S 2,181,818 [DWR IRWMP 3 Napa San Recycled Water
Zone 7 Water Agency S 1,621,751 [DWR IRWMP 3 Zone 7 Water Supply
San Francisco Public Utility Commission S 1,591,566 [DWR IRWMP 3 SFPUC Lower Cherry Creek
Horizon Water & Environment S 61,538 [DWR Grant Administration Assistance
Point Blue Conservation Science S 19,484 |[DWR IRWMP?2 Students and Teachers Restoring a Watershed
City of St. Helena S 600,000 |DWR IRWMP2 Upper York Creek Dam Removal
Contra Costa Water District S 450,000 [DWR IRWMP2 Rheem Creek Restoration
City of San Jose S 1,445,526 [DWR IRWMP2 San Jose Green Street
San Francisco International Airport S 562,500 |DWR IRWMP2 SFO Reclaimed Water Facility
Roseview Heights Mutual Water Company S 375,000 [DWR IRWMP2 Roseview Heights Infrastructure
East Bay Regional Park District S 179,660 [DWR IRWMP2 Breuner Marsh Restoration
City of Redwood City S 851,250 |[DWR IRWMP2 Bayfront Canal & Atherton Channel
City of Petaluma S 618,750 [DWR IRWMP2 Petaluma Flood Reduction
San Mateo County S 494,850 |DWR IRWMP2 Pescadero Water Supply
City of Oakland S 375,000 [DWR IRWMP2 Sausal Creek Restoration
Sonoma Valley County Sanitation District S 765,000 [DWR IRWMP2 North Bay Water Reuse
Napa County S 375,000 [DWR IRWMP2 Napa Milliken Creek
Marin Resource Conservation District S 221,365 |DWR IRWMP2 Marin/Sonoma Conserving Our Watersheds
Marin Municipal Water District S 182,637 |DWR IRWMP2 Lagunitas Creek Sediment Reduction
Solano County Water Agency S 618,714 |DWR IRWMP2 Bay Area Regional Water Conservation
The Bay Institute S 10,208 [DWR Horizontal levee outreach
Horizon Water & Environment S 61,538 |DWR Grant administration assistance
San Francisco Estuary Institute S 168,337 [DWR Flood Infrastructure Mapping Project 25
Committee for Green Foothills S 54,801 |DWR Watershed Guidance and San Francisquito Watershed Restoration
Urban Tilth S 39,500 [DWR Richmond shoreline flood protection project
San Mateo Resource Conservation District S 8,031 [DWR Pescadero flood reduction and habitat enhancement
San Francisco Estuary Institute S 245,362 |DWR Monitoring for green infrastructure construction sites

Iltem 11, Attachment 3




SFEP CONTRACTORS FOR
PROPOSED BUDGET WORK PLAN

FY 2017-18
Contractor
Vendor Name Budget 17-18 |Funding/Grant Source Project Description
Harris & Associates S 205,092 [DWR Construction Management for San Pablo Spine project sites
Wilsey Ham S 37,903 |DWR Construction, San Pablo Spine project sites
Labor Consultants of California S 23,810 |DWR Labor Compliance, San Pablo Spine project sites
Gates & Associates S 12,595 [DWR Bay Friendly Rater, San Pablo Spine project sites
Several, tbd S 103,689 |EPA National Estuaries Program Estuary Blueprint Implementation FY 17-18
SFEI S 988,335 |EPA Healthy Watersheds, Resilient Baylands
Sunnyvale S 380,000 [EPA Healthy Watersheds, Resilient Baylands
Grassroots Ecology S 52,250 |EPA Healthy Watersheds, Resilient Baylands
Canopy S 38,000 |EPA Healthy Watersheds, Resilient Baylands
SFBay Joint Venture S 19,200 [EPA Healthy Watersheds, Resilient Baylands
Tetra Tech, Inc S 315,321 |EPA Suisun Marsh monitoring
Suisun Resource Conservation District S 313,838 |EPA Suisun Marsh monitoring
San Francisco Estuary Institute S 373,811 |EPA Urban Greening science partner
San Mateo S 300,000 |EPA Urban Greening municipal partner
Sunnyvale S 150,000 |EPA Urban Greening municipal partner
Bay Area Stormwater Management Agencies Association S 139,635 |EPA Urban Greening stormwater partner
San Jose S 100,000 (EPA Urban Greening municipal partner
Santa Clara County Parks Department S 652,605 [EPA South Bay mercury remediation (Calcine Paved Roads project)
State Coastal Conservancy S 46,031 (EPA Blue Carbon
Ariel Rubissow Okamoto S 9,333 |EPA Estuary News editorial services
San Francisco Estuary Institute S 3,000 |EPA Web support for sfestuary.org
Gigantic Idea Studio, Inc. S 44,253 [EPA Outreach for pesticide reduction campaign
Ariel Rubissow Okamoto S 60,000 |Local agencies Estuary News, donation funded
Misc., small totaling about $100K each year S 115,259 |[Local agencies State of the Estuary Conference
Miscellaneous small, about $90K S 55,000 |USGS USGS science conference support
$ 36,492,315

Federal

State

Other

Iltem 11, Attachment 3




Planning/Bay Trail
CONTRACTORS FOR
PROPOSED BUDGET WORK PLAN

FY 2017-18
Contractor
Vendor Name Budget 17-18 |Funding/Grant Source Project Description
Technical Assistance (TBD #1) S 39,400 |[MTC/Department of Transportation Planning & Research
Technical Assistance (TBD #2) $35,000 [ MTC/Department of Transportation Planning & Research
Technical Assistance (TBD #4) $400,000(EPA Brownfields Assessment
Technical Assistance (TBD #3) $40,000 [ Rockefeller ABAG 10RC Regional Coordination Project
Communications development (TBD #4) $50,000|USGS Safe Smart Housing
Communications development (TBD #4) $90,000|FEMA Coop. Tech. Partners. #4 Resilience Planning Assistance to Cities
Urban Resilience Strategies (Chakos) $15,000|FEMA Coop. Tech. Partners. #4 Resilience Planning Assistance to Cities
Urban Resilience Strategies (Chakos) $60,600 | Rockefeller ABAG 10RC Regional Coordination Project
Urban Resilience Strategies (Chakos) $27,000|USGS Safte Smart Housing
Urban Resilience Strategies (Chakos) $15,120|USGS 16-17 Earthquake Awareness Outreach
Urban Resilience Strategies (Chakos) $17,280(USGS 17-18 Seismic Safety Assistance to Cities
David Bonowitz $5,000|USGS 17-18 Seismic Safety Assistance to Cities
Lohnes & Wright $8,000|Bay Trail RDP Bay Trail Implementation
$ 802,400

Federal

State

Other

Iltem 11, Attachment 3




PLAN Corp. / SHARP

CONTRACTORS FOR
PROPOSED BUDGET WORK PLAN
FY 2017-18
Contractor
Vendor Name Budget 17-18 |Funding/Grant Source Project Description
York Risk Services Group S 645,839 |Plan Corp Provide claim Administrative Services
Bickmore S 30,000 [Plan Corp Provide actuarial services
Technical Assistance (TBD) S 10,000 |Plan Corp Provide technical assistance
York Risk Services Group S 14,291 |Sharp Provide claim Administrative Services
Bickmore S 8,000 |Sharp Provide actuarial services
Technical Assistance (TBD) S 695 [Sharp Provide technical assistance
$ 708,825
Federal
State
Other

Iltem 11, Attachment 3




POWER/BAYREN
CONTRACTORS FOR

PROPOSED BUDGET WORK PLAN

FY 2017-18

Vendor Name

Contractor
Budget 17-18

Funding/Grant Source

Project
Description-1

Project Description-2

Single family residential energy efficiency contractor training, marketing, reporting, customer support and

CLEAResult S 932,000 [PG&E/CPUC - MSA 4400007460 / CO 2 CWA 2501322994 BayREN rebate processing.
Provide administrative and technical support for Codes & Standards program management (training,
BKi / Frontier Energy S 694,500 |PG&E/CPUC - MSA 4400007460 / CO 2 CWA 2501322994 BayREN technical pilots, reports, filings, etc.)
Regulatory coordination and consultation with staff. Drafting of comments, advice letters, protests, and
Regulatory Consultant S 25,000 [PG&E/CPUC - MSA 4400007460 / CO 2 CWA 2501322994 BayREN other strategy and communication involving regulatory affairs.
Program management, and policy and program design issues in energy efficiency and energy building code
Codes and Standards Project Manager S 85,310 |PG&E/CPUC - MSA 4400007460 / CO 2 CWA 2501322994 BayREN compliance
Conduct energy efficiency and renewable energy contractor outreach and training workshops for
Sustainable Real Estate Solutions S 128,975 |PG&E/CPUC - MSA 4400007460 / CO 2 CWA 2501322994 BayREN commercial properties
Administration and customer servicing of multifamily loans and receivables provided to finance energy
Concord Servicing Corporation S 100,000 [PG&E/CPUC - MSA 4400007460 / CO 2 CWA 2501322994 BayREN efficiency improvements
Blue Point Planning S 50,000 [PG&E/CPUC - MSA 4400007460 / CO 2 CWA 2501322994 BayREN Develop and implement communication strategies to relay program successes to significant stakeholders
Contingency / Unassigned / TBD S 663,325 [PG&E/CPUC - MSA 4400007460 / CO 2 CWA 2501322994 BayREN Supplement existing program offerings, alleviate unexpected program expenses, etc.
BKi / Frontier Energy S 10,000 |EPC-15-065 (California Energy Commission) BEAT Protoype Analysis & Case Study: Microgrids in Urban Settings
$ 2,689,110
Federal
State
Other

Iltem 11, Attachment 3




Financial Services
CONTRACTORS FOR

PROPOSED BUDGET WORK PLAN
FY 2017-18

Contractor
Vendor Name Budget 17-18 |[Funding/Grant Source Project Description
Sheelaugh Flanagan S 150,000 [Financial Services Provide services for business developments and marketing
Charlie Adams S 63,000 [Financial Services Provide financial and accounting services

Provide administrative services for Windemere CFD account, and assist on

NBS S 60,000 [Financial Services continue disclosure reporting for financing projects.
Union Bank S 13,000 [Financial Services Provide Trustee services
Financial Audit Consultants (TBD) S 18,000 [Financial Services Provide financial Audit services
Thimmig S 6,000 |Financial Services Provide legal services
Goodwin S 9,000 (Financial Services Provide administrative services for San Francisco CFD accounts

$ 319,000

Federal
State

Other

Iltem 11, Attachment 3




SFBRA

CONTRACTORS FOR
PROPOSED BUDGET WORK PLAN
FY 2017-18

Contractor
Vendor Name Budget 17-18 |Funding/Grant Source Project Description
NBS S 67,500 [Measure AA Tax collection
Finanical Audit Consultant (TBD) S 5,000 [Measure AA
Consultant's reimb. Expenses (TBD) S 5,000 [Measure AA
Financial Consultant (TBD) S 5,000 [Measure AA

$ 82,500

Federal
State
Other

Iltem 11, Attachment 3




ABAG Management
CONTRACTORS FOR
PROPOSED BUDGET WORK PLAN

FY 2017-18

Vendor Name

Contractor
Budget 17-18

Funding/Grant Source

Project Description

Management Partners S 137,500 |General funds Organizational assistance
Financial Audit Consultant (TBD) S 76,400 |General funds Provide financial audit services
Oracle America, Inc. S 10,232 [General funds Software License & Support
Comworx Inc S 4,768 |General funds IT Support maintainence
$ 228,900

Federal

State

Other

Iltem 11, Attachment 3




L

PROPOSED
REVENUES
AND
EXPENSES
BY PROGRAM

Note: The proposed FY 17-18
budget assumes that the local
collaboration programs will
continue to receive the same
level of management and
administrative support services
as provided in the past.

42 ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM




DING

5791,283

791,283

727,765

519,048

519,048

ABAG
FUNDED

Program
Expenses

$1,900,077
1,113,708
608,876

3,622,661

38,464,225
1,025,926
16,862,131
995,004
2,159,835
158,971
555,700

60,221,792

588,056
97,027

685,083

1,770,557

$66,300,093

$66,300,093

FEDERAL

566,319
608,876

1,175,195

2,818,133

641,970

3,460,103

$4,635,298

$4,635,298

STATE

$418,848

418,848

35,405,074
32,803

16,862,131

52,300,008

$52,718,857

$52,718,857

OTHER

$1,468,929

547,389

2,016,318

241,018

33,615

565,700

830,333

$2,846,651

$2,846,651

REVENUE SOURCES

SERVICES

$12,300

12,300

317,538

995,004

2,159,835

158,971

3,631,348

390,000

$4,033,648

$4,033,648

TOTAL

MEMBERSHIP REVENUES

$1,900,077
1,113,708
608,876

3,622,661

38,464,225
1,025,926
16,862,131
995,004
2,159,835
158,971
565,700

60,221,792

588,056 588,056
97,027 97,027

685,083 685,083

1,380,556 1,770,556

$2,065,639 $66,300,093

$2,065,639 $66,300,093

FTE (full-time equivalent) Based upon a few individuals working less than full-time, the 60 employees transitioning to MTC represent 58.6 FTEs.

This funding has historically flowed to ABAG from MTC to fund planning activities.

This funding is the additional cost to fund the staff consolidation activities.

Overhead is ongoing business expenses, not including direct labor, direct materials, or third party expenses that are billed directly to programs.
Functions charging to overhead include accounting, IT, clerk, reception, mail/supply clerk, and HR. This represents 13.3 FTEs and corresponding
dollar amounts are included above in the Expenses column program line items.

Iltem 11, Attachment 4

ABAG BUDGET & WORK PROGRAM 43



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area

ABAG
May 10, 2017

To: Regional Planning Committee

From: Miriam Chion, ABAG Planning and Research Director

Re: Regional Planning Committee Review of ABAG Budget and Work Program, May 3, 2017
cc: ABAG Executive Board, ABAG General Assembly

At its May 3, 2017 meeting, the Regional Planning Committee (RPC) reviewed the 2017-2018
ABAG Budget and Work Program. This Budget and Work Program is essential for the ABAG-
MTC Staff Consolidation. It defines the tasks that support the Council of Governments and is a
requirement for the implementation of the Contract for Services between ABAG and MTC. This
document will be submitted for approval by the ABAG General Assembly on June 5, 2017.

This is a summary of the comments, questions, and answers from the RPC for consideration by
the ABAG Executive Board and General Assembly. The RPC requested that this information be
sent to all bodies before the May 18, 2017 Executive Board meeting.

1. How will the housing program change as a result of the staff consolidation? Can we get a
briefing on CASA? Can we insert equity and housing protection in the work program?

ABAG and MTC have been collaborating on regional housing strategies. Our approach has
been to address production, preservation, and protection of existing residents. We have
leveraged each agency’s resources to support housing strategies. An example was to
condition One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) funding on the completion of Housing Elements,
which allowed us to go from 60 to 100 percent of all cities being in compliance with State
requirements. Now we are working together on the CASA initiative, which is an effort to
bring stakeholders together to take bold actions to address the region’s housing crisis. Its
purpose is to identify and carry out specific actions; to develop regional strategies such as
supporting a suite of local ballot measures, or building a regional housing trust fund with a
dedicated source of revenue that could also attract contributions from the tech community,
then going to Sacramento together to get necessary legislative support.

The CASA Initiative will be informed by the work of the RPC housing committee, which has
already started building consensus across sectors. Staff will coordinate a presentation of

CASA at an RPC meeting in the Fall.

Equity and housing protection has been included in the work program but they will be made
more explicit in the Tasks List (light blue document) under Housing, section 6a.

Iltem 11, Attachment 5



2. The Bay Area Council sponsored legislation to make Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs)
easier and less expensive to permit. The Bay Area Council would like to offer technical
and financial assistance on ADUs at the regional agencies. It would be helpful for ABAG to
help local governments and home owners to get assistance on planning, contractors, and
best practices related to the production of ADUs. Can you identify this effort in the list of
tasks?

Yes, ADUs are part of the housing program. It will be inserted in the Tasks List (light blue
document) under Housing, section 6a. We have also included references to the Bay Area
Council reports in our housing material. ABAG staff appreciates the ongoing collaboration.

3. We want to acknowledge the work of the economic and workforce team convening,
informing, and driving the discussion of key regional issues. This has supported multiple
initiatives including those of the community colleges that are increasingly organizing
themselves as a region to offer programs that align with the needs of industry. The
completion of the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy is a major milestone
for the region. Moving forward, it is important that specific budget resources are
identified to establish the Economic Development District and the Priority Production
Areas. The integration of housing, jobs, transportation, land use, and shared prosperity is
very important to the region, in particular to the poorest people in our communities.

As indicated below, the Tasks List includes two Full-Time Equivalent Employees (FTEs) for
Jobs and Workforce, which is a preliminary figure. Cynthia Kroll will be preparing a work
program for the Day 1 Organization Chart to identify the level of resources available.

4. The Finance Authority for Non-Profits (FAN) is vital and important to us. The fees from
transactions and issuance of bonds are critical to the Council of Governments’ success.
We want to make sure FAN continues to exist and gets off the ground to provide valuable
services soon. Could you explain the status of FAN?

We are currently working with the FAN Executive Committee and MTC to create a new
Finance Authority, a new Joint Powers Authority, which would basically take the place of the
existing FAN. FAN will not take on any new business, but needs to persist as a legal entity to
carry out its fiduciary responsibilities for its current portfolio. We hope we will be able to
launch the new Finance Authority in early fall 2017.

5. Itis important to understand what are and what would be the ABAG assets and liabilities
as we move into a consolidated staff under MTC? When can we get a report?

The assets and liabilities are part of ABAG’s audited financial statements. They will continue
to remain ABAG’s assets and liabilities after staff consolidation. The audited financial
statements will be sent to the ABAG Regional Planning Committee, Executive Board and
General Assembly before the next Executive Board meeting on May 18, 2017.

Page 2 of 4

Iltem 11, Attachment 5



6. What are the proposed full-time equivalent staff (FTEs) assigned to ABAG planning tasks?

The ABAG Planning Department has 22 FTEs that were considered for the Draft Integrated
Regional Planning Program (Tasks List in light blue pages at the end of Budget and Work
Program) to serve the Council of Governments. This is a partial component of the ABAG-
MTC Integrated Planning Department and does not include current MTC staff that support
or will be assigned to support the activities identified in the ABAG Budget and Work
Program.

This proposed total is subdivided as follows:

Housing 3.5 FTEs
Jobs and Workforce 2.5 FTEs
Resilience 2.0 FTEs
Trails and Open Space 4.0 FTEs
Complete Communities 4.0 FTEs
Research and Analysis 4.0 FTEs
Local Engagement 2.0 FTEs
Total 22.0 FTEs

7. How would ABAG tasks be retained or modified in the integrated planning department
under MTC? How would the ABAG tasks relate to the Day 1 Organizational Chart?

The budget for fiscal year 2017-2018 carries 20 FTEs, which excludes the current ABAG
planning director and a junior planner. It includes all other current ABAG planners and one
vacancy. The 20 FTEs will be integrated with 25 FTEs at the MTC Planning Department into
a single department that is described in the Day 1 Organization Chart. This Chart is the basis
for the integration of ABAG and MTC planning staff. They are currently meeting by teams to
develop specific work programs that will serve both agencies. It is essential that staff from
both agencies take the time to learn from each other’s tasks and explore the possibilities of
forming a productive integrated department. This is an important coordination and
collaboration effort that will take several more weeks. The ABAG Tasks List will inform the
development of the new integrated work program.

8. Several committee members and planning directors indicated that local engagement is a
critical component of regional planning efforts. How many FTEs are allocated to local
engagement? Where is local engagement in the proposed Day 1 Integrated Planning
Department Organizational Chart?

As indicated above, the current ABAG Local Engagement effort on committees, assemblies
and coordination with local staff is two FTEs. Local engagement efforts related to specific
projects are included in each of the teams. In particular, the Complete Communities team of

Page 3 of 4

Iltem 11, Attachment 5



10.

11.

four FTEs has the highest share of local engagement since the central focus is coordination
with local staff and stakeholders around PDAs, Corridors, and place-making. This level of
effort is likely to be distributed across the five units proposed in the Day 1 organizational
chart. More information will be provided as the new work program is developed.

Planning directors have identified some key concerns and made specific requests:
(1) A comparison of the last year’s budget and the proposed consolidated budget by
tasks.
(2) Request to retain same level of effort on local engagement, housing, and trails.
(3) Identify FTEs that will be allocated specifically to housing tasks in the
housing/neighborhoods section shown in the planning team organization chart,
compared to current FTEs performing this work at ABAG;
(4) Identify FTEs allocated to engaging cities in the RHNA process—both in designing
the next round and developing the allocation;
(5) Identify FTEs allocated to work on the refinement of the land use process in Plan
Bay Area, based on local plans;
(6) Identify FTEs allocated to the work done by the Bay Area Planning Directors
Association (BAPDA)
This is very helpful input. As indicated above, the allocation of FTEs and specific work
programs for the ABAG-MTC Integrated Planning Department are under development. The
location of BAPDA support within the organization chart is one of the tasks in this process.

How will the RPC and other ABAG committees be retained and supported through the
staff consolidation and future merger process? What are the risks of losing these
committees?

As a Council of Governments and a Joint Powers Authority, ABAG has final authority over its
governance structure, its committees and assignments, and the charges given to those
committees. Any change to the current number and structure of ABAG committees will be
made solely at the discretion of the ABAG Executive Board. The functionality and support to
the committees depends on the resources available. We are not expecting any changes to
the RPC during the initial phase of staff consolidation. Changes to the ABAG and MTC
committees might be considered in the future if committee members find excessive overlap
on content and discussions across committees. For the RPC, Duane Bay will provide
continuity in the transition as he understands the composition and expectations of the
committee.

What is the work plan for the Regional Planning Committee for fiscal year 2017-2018?

The work of the Committee this year has focused on the ABAG-MTC Staff Consolidation, Plan
Bay Area, and implementation strategies. Staff will discuss with the chair and vice-chairs a
more specific program for the six meetings of the 2017-2018 fiscal year.

Page 4 of 4

Iltem 11, Attachment 5



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area

ABAG

Date: May 12, 2017
To: ABAG Executive Board
From: Brad Paul

Acting Executive Director

Subject: Update on Budget and Work Plan and Staff Consolidation

This memo addresses questions raised at the April 20" Executive Board meeting related to the
draft 2017-18 ABAG Budget and Work Plan (B&WP) and summarizes MTC actions on the
Contract for Services and MOU since the last ABAG Executive Board meeting on April 20™.

Budget and Work Plan Questions

The Executive Board raised some questions and asked for additional information before
referring the 2017-2018 ABAG Budget and Work Plan (B&WP) to the June 5" ABAG General
Assembly. Since then, as authorized by the Board, staff has corrected several identified budget
errors and made some changes to the narrative based on feedback from a number of Board
members.

The current draft (attached) will be discussed again at the May 18" Executive Board meeting.
We have also widely distributed it to ABAG delegates and other local stakeholders and invited
them to attend the May 18™ ABAG Board meeting to comment on the B&WP and suggest
amendments to the General Assembly.

In general, the April 20" Executive Board comments on the B&WP focused on ABAG'’s overall
financial health going into the staff consolidation, what assets ABAG now owns and what
impact, if any, the staff consolidation might have on those assets, the current financial strengths
the Council of Governments and what financial challenges the staff foresees in the future.

An attached memo from ABAG’s Director of Finance, Courtney Ruby, addresses these larger
issues along with some more specific questions raised at our April Board meeting. It also
includes, as attachments, some of the documents requested at the last Executive Board
meeting, including:

ABAG’s audited financial statements (which include all ABAG assets);
A list of consultant expenses by program;

A list of FTE’s by program.

A memo describing RPC’s concerns/comments and staff responses.

PN~

Item 12



Update on Budget and Work Plan and Staff Consolidation
May 12, 2017
Page 2

Summary of ABAG Actions on Contract for Services at April 20" Board Meeting

On April 20", the ABAG Executive Board approved as to form the Contract for Services as
presented and amended as follows:

a. Added changes related to ABAG retirees suggested by Revan Tranter;
b. Added changes related to ABAG retirees suggested by Henry Gardner;

c. Added changes suggested in an April 19" memo from Jake Mackenzie that summarized
recommendations from an April 18" meeting of MTC’s Executive Committee, changes related to
CalPERS Pension Obligation and when a FAN Successor Conduit Finance Authority would be
operational (October 31, 2017).

The approval was also contingent on the following conditions being met:

1. ABAG and MTC senior management agreeing on contract language that if CalPERS
determines that one or more members of the consolidated staff are, for CalPERS
purposes, ABAG employees, the parties will make each other whole for the financial
consequences of the CalPERS determination and MTC will make each affected
employee whole for the financial consequences of the CalPERS determination; and

2. MTC voluntarily recognizes SEIU 1021 as the labor representative of the members of
the Transitioned Employees currently represented by them and to bargain with SEIU
1021 regarding employment with MTC.

The ABAG motion approving the form of the Contract for Services and conditions provided that
these conditions would be deemed to have been met when the following had occurred:

1. As to the CalPERS condition, a written communication to the ABAG Executive
Board and the Commission of MTC signed by the chief executive officers of
ABAG and MTC stating that agreement has been reached and transmitting the
agreed upon contract language.

2. As to the labor condition, a written communication to the ABAG President
signed by the chief executive officer of MTC and the President of SEIU 1021
stating that the condition has been met.

Regarding the MOU, the ABAG Executive Board proposed two possibilities for the language
regarding the composition of the selection committee for a successor to the current MTC
Executive Director:

Having the Chair of MTC and the President of ABAG appoint equal numbers of MTC and ABAG
board members, respectively, to the interview/selection committee for the successor Executive
Director of MTC, and, alternatively, to have all ABAG Executive Board members who are also
MTC Commissioners be appointed to the interview/selection committee.

Item 12



Update on Budget and Work Plan and Staff Consolidation
May 12, 2017
Page 3

MTC Actions at its April 26" Meeting

On April 26™, MTC took up the version of the Contract for Services and MOU referred to it from
the March 24th Joint MTC Planning and ABAG Administrative and made the following changes
based on the recommendations from the MTC Executive Committee and what was approved by
the ABAG Executive Board.

MTC agreed to the brief amendments suggested by Revan Tranter and Henry Gardner with
regard to issues of concern to the ABAG retirees. The Commission also agreed to those
suggestions from the MTC Executive Committee that ABAG had already adopted on April 20th
regarding Pension Obligations and when the new ABAG Finance Authority would be up and
running (October 31, 2017). There was also one minor revision to the title of Section 6.7 that is
still consistent as to form. Finally, MTC approved language to address most of the
organizational piece of the CalPERs issue called out in the ABAG Executive Board’s condition
#2.

With regard to the MOU, MTC adopted the language suggested by its Executive Committee with
the addition of the ABAG representative to MTC as a member of the Interview Committee.
Currently this would result in 3 of the 4 people serving on both the ABAG and MTC boards—
Jake Mackenzie, Scott Haggerty and Julie Pierce— serving on MTC'’s interview committee. In
discussing this compromise language, ABAG President Julie Pierce felt it was close enough to
ABAG’s alternative language that she could support it and recommend it to the ABAG Executive
Board.

With regard to the two contingent issues forwarded by the ABAG Executive Board, MTC agreed
that the senior management teams should work on mutually agreed upon language to clarify
and resolve any outstanding parts of the CalPERS issue.

With respect to the second condition, labor representation, the Commission:

1.  Reaffirmed absolute neutrality regarding union representation;

2.  Referred for further study ABAG’s condition #2 regarding SEIU’s request that MTC
voluntarily agree to let SEIU represent ABAG staff following consolidation; and

3.  Accepted David Campos (Santa Clara Deputy County Executive) as an executive on loan
to serve as a facilitator to address the remaining labor issues; and

Report back to the Commission on all of the above no later than the May Commission (5/24)
meeting.

Current Status

Since MTC’s board action on April 26" ABAG and MTC management teams have been
working on refinements to the MTC approved language to address remaining CalPERS issues
about making both agencies and each affected employee whole for the financial consequences
of any CalPERS determination. Our work has been informed by attorney Isabel Safie from Best,
Best & Krieger that we retained to assist us in this complicated matter. Staff believes that we are
very close to final language on this issue and hope to be able to share agreed upon language,
and the confirmation communication requested in condition #2, at the May Board meeting.

Item 12



Update on Budget and Work Plan and Staff Consolidation
May 12, 2017
Page 4

With regard to the labor representation issue, David Campos has been meeting with all the
relevant parties (SEIU, CSR, MTC management, ABAG senior staff) to more clearly understand
the remaining issues and help find a path forward. We will update you on his progress, as
available, at our May 18" Executive Board meeting.

Item 12



	EB 20170518 Agenda Final
	EB 20170518 Item 06A Minutes 20170420 Draft
	EB 20170518 Item 06B Memo Conveyance Real Property Interest South Lake Tahoe
	Blank Page 01
	EB 20170518 Item 06B Resoluton 02-17 Conveyance Real Property South Lake Tahoe
	Blank Page 02
	EB 20170518 Item 06C Debt Issual Policy
	ABAG - Memo to EB re Debt Issuance Policy (2017) fnl
	ABAG - Debt Issuance Policy (2017) fnl
	DEBT ISSUANCE POLICY
	(i) The debt is intended to assist a Member or Cooperating Member of ABAG in its financing needs or providing facilities or services in its jurisdiction or have other public benefits.
	(ii) The debt will be used to refinance outstanding debt in order to produce debt service savings or to realize the benefits of a debt or legal covenant restructuring.
	(i) The issuance of the debt will comply with the Agreement, the Act and any other applicable state and federal law.
	(ii)  The staff has made an independent recommendation for approval of the transaction.
	(iii) The debt must be approved by the Executive Board.
	(iv) The debt must comply with the Debt Policy, or a waiver must be obtained.
	(i) conduit revenue bonds or notes
	(ii) bond or grant anticipation notes
	(iii) leases, lease revenue bonds, installment sale or purchase agreements, certificates of participation and lease-purchase transactions
	(v) revenue bonds
	(vi)  tax and revenue anticipation notes
	(vii) land-secured financings, such as special tax revenue bonds issued under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, and limited obligation bonds issued under applicable assessment statutes, including PACE financings
	(viii) tax increment financing to the extent permitted under state law
	(ix) any other type of debt permitted under the Agreement and authorized by the Act or other applicable law.
	As a conduit financing vehicle, ABAG generally does not have its own capital improvement program or budget.  Therefore, any consideration of the consistency of proposed debt to capital improvement programs or budgets shall only apply if ABAG has such ...
	(a) When issuing debt, in addition to complying with the terms of this Debt Policy, the ABAG shall comply with (i) any other applicable policies regarding initial bond disclosure, continuing disclosure, post-issuance compliance, and investment of bond...
	(b) ABAG will periodically review the requirements of and will remain in compliance with the following:
	(i) any continuing disclosure undertakings under SEC Rule 15c2-12,
	(ii) any federal tax compliance requirements, including without limitation arbitrage and rebate compliance, related to any prior bond issues, and
	(iii) any requirements of State agencies such as the Office of the State Treasurer, the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission, the California Debt Limit Allocation Committee and the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee.
	(c) Whenever reasonably possible, proceeds of conduit revenue debt will not be held by ABAG, and ABAG shall direct the disbursement or investment of such proceeds only at the written direction of the borrower.  ABAG shall require the borrower’s or the...

	ABAG Bylaws - Section IV_H

	Blank Page 03
	EB 20170518 Item 06D Memo Windemere Ranch Reassessment Refunding
	Blank Page 04
	EB 20170518 Item 06D Resoluton 01-17 Windemere Ranch Reassessment Refunding
	Blank Page 05
	EB 20170518 Item 06D Supplemental Agreement No 2 Fiscal Agent Agreement Windemere Ranch Reassessment
	Blank Page 06
	EB 20170518 Item 06E Memo The Civic Edge
	Blank Page 07
	EB 20170518 Item 06E Attach Contract The Civic Edge
	Recitals
	Agreement
	_________________________________________

	Blank Page 08
	EB 20170518 Item 07 LGO Committee Agenda
	Blank Page 09
	EB 20170518 Item 08 FP Committee Agenda
	EB 20170518 Item 09 Proposed Timetable New Financial Services JPA
	EB 20170518 Item 10A Staff Memo Public Hearing Draft PBA Combined
	5ai_pba40_release_v2
	5a-sig
	5aii_pba40_dv

	Blank Page 10
	EB 20170518 Item 10B Staff Memo Public Hearing Draft EIR Combined
	5bi_pba40eir_release_v2
	5b-sig
	5bii_pba40eir_ExecSummary
	_Cover-Title page
	0.0 Executive Summary

	5biii_pba40eir_Presentation ht

	Blank Page 11
	EB 20170518 Item 11 Memo Financial Considerations
	EB 20170518 Item 11 Proposed Budget and Work Program
	ABAG_BudgetWorkProgram_2017_v37_singles
	ABAG_BudgetWorkProgram_Template_Planning_v3
	ABAG_BudgetWorkProgram_Template_Communications_v3

	EB 20170518 Item 11 Attach 1A Memo Audited Financial Reports June 2016
	EB 20170518 Item 11 Attach 1B Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year End June 2016
	EB 20170518 Item 11 Attach 1C Memorandum Internal Control Required Communications Year End June 2016
	EB 20170518 Item 11 Attach 1D Single Audit Report Year End June 2016
	EB 20170518 Item 11 Attach 2A Memo Financial Reports March 2017
	Blank Page 12 
	EB 20170518 Item 11 Attach 2B Indices Financial Reports March 2017
	EB 20170518 Item 11 Attach 3 Consultants by Program
	EB 20170518 Item 11 Attach 4 FTE
	ABAG_BudgetWorkProgram_2017_Budget_v5 7
	ABAG_BudgetWorkProgram_2017_Budget_v5 8

	EB 20170518 Item 11 Attach 5 RPC Review Budget and Work Program Final
	EB 20170518 Item 12 Staff Memo Update Budget Work Plan Staff Consolidation



